
Chief Executive’s Directorate
Legal and Democratic Services  The Lonsdale Building  The Courts  Carlisle

Cumbria  CA3 8NA  Fax 01228 226372
Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

17 July 2015

To:  The Chair and Members of the Cumbria 
Health Scrutiny Committee

Agenda
CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee will be held as follows: 

Date: Monday 27 July 2015
Time: 10.00 am
Place: Committee Room 1, County Offices, Kendal

Dawn Roberts
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance

NB
(1) Please would District Council representatives arrive at Committee 

Room 1 for 9.00 am to discuss the election of Vice-Chair
(2) A pre-meeting will then be held at 9.15 am in Committee Room 1 

and all Members are encouraged to attend

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Lynn Harker
Direct Line: 01228 226364
Email: lynn.harker@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria



MEMBERSHIP

Conservative (2) Labour (3)

Mr J Bland
Mr J Lister

Mr M Hawkins
Ms C Wharrier
Mr M Wilson

Liberal Democrat (2)

Mr D Fletcher
Mr N Hughes (Chair)

District Council Representatives (6)

Mr R Burns - Carlisle City Council
Ms C McCarron-Holmes - Allerdale Borough Council
Mr R Gill - Copeland Borough Council
Vacancy - South Lakeland District Council
Mrs M Robinson - Eden District Council
Mrs D Seward - Barrow Borough Council

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
www.cumbria.gov.uk 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/


A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

1  ELECTION OF CHAIR

To elect a Chair for this meeting only.

2  ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR

In accordance with the Committee’s Terms of Reference to appoint a Vice-Chair who 
shall be a District Councillor representative for the ensuing year.  The Vice-Chair shall 
be appointed by the District Council representatives serving on the Committee.

3  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

4  MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE

To note any changes to the membership of the Committee.

5  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1. Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2. Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3. Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority.

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 



4. Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.

5. Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.

6. Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge).

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

7. Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of the authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).

6  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda.

7  MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 4 June 2015 (copy enclosed).
(Pages 7 - 16)

8  SUCCESS REGIME  [10.10 TO 10.50 AM]

To receive a presentation from the Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group.



9  KIRKUP REPORT  [10.50 TO 11.30 AM]

To consider a report by NHS England and University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS 
Trust (copy enclosed).
(Pages 17 - 124)

10 COMMITTEE BRIEFING REPORT  [11.30 TO 11.40 PM]

To consider a report by the Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Adviser (copy enclosed).
(Pages 125 - 130)

11 DATE OF FUTURE MEETING

To note that the next meeting of the Committee will be held on Thursday 
15 October 2015 at 10.00 am at County Offices, Kendal.



This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of a Meeting of the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee held on Thursday, 
4 June 2015 at 10.00 am at Old Court Room, The Courts, Carlisle, CA3 8NA

PRESENT:

Mr N Hughes (Chair)

Mr D Fletcher
Mr M Hawkins
Mr J Lister

Mrs D Seward
Ms C Wharrier
Mr M Wilson

Also in Attendance:-

Mr D Blacklock - Chief Executive, Healthwatch
Ms R Chapman - Programme Communications and Engagement Lead, 

Clinical Commissioning Group
Mrs L Harker - Democratic Services Officer
Ms H Horne - Chair, Healthwatch
Mr D Houston - Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Adviser – Health and 

Social Care
Ms A Laverty - Director of Patient Experience, Northumbria 

Healthcare, NHS Foundation
Mr D Rogers - Medical Director, NHS Cumbria Clinical 

Commissioning Trust
Mr P Rooney - Interim Chief Operating Officer, NHS Cumbria Clinical 

Commissioning Trust
Mr J Rushmer - Medical Director, North Cumbria University Hospital 

Trust
Mr D Stephens - Policy and Scrutiny Project Officer
Ms  G Tiller - Chair, North Cumbria University Hospital Trust

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

1 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR

It was agreed to defer this item until the next meeting of the Committee as only two 
district council representatives had been appointed following the recent elections.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mr J Bland and Ms C McCarron-Holmes.

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



3 MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no changes to the Membership of the Committee on this occasion.

4 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest on this occasion.

5 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be not excluded from the meeting for any 
items of business.

6 MINUTES

A concern was raised regarding the lack of further information which had been 
requested on the actual number of transfers which had taken place regarding GI 
bleeds.  It was confirmed that of the figure quoted at the last meeting only one 
transfer had been as the result of a GI bleed.

With reference to minute 56(1) (Cumbria Partnership Trust Update - Performance) 
further information was requested on the allocation of clusters.  The Strategic Policy 
and Scrutiny Adviser – Health and Social Care agreed to investigate this and report 
back direct.

With reference to minute 59 (North West Ambulance Service – CQC Inspection) a 
concern was raised at the lack of a response referred to at resolution (2) and it was 
agreed to investigate this further and report back direct.

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2015 be agreed as 
a correct record and signed by the Chair.

7 NORTH CUMBRIA UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL TRUST - PATIENT 
EXPERIENCE

The Chair of North Cumbria University Hospitals NHS Trust and the Medical 
Director of NHS Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Trust gave a brief update on the 
recent announcement about the Success Regime in North Cumbria.

The Committee were informed that the announcement had been welcomed and it 
was seen as a great opportunity to look at the whole health economy.  It was felt 
that being part of the Success Regime would build on the joint working which had 
already taken place across organisations in North Cumbria and were looking 
forward to working with Monitor, NHS Trust Development Authority and NHS 

Page 8



England to understand how to make the most of opportunities that would be 
available.

The Committee then received an update on patient experience until the end of 
March 2015.  The Committee were informed that feedback was requested from 
friends and family of patients and this had seen an improvement in scores since 
May 2013 – up to 74 (above the national average) compared to a baseline position 
in May 2013 of only 51.  

The Trust had taken actions to improve response rates, which included:-

 weekly reporting of response rates by ward;
 transparent sharing of results with patients, families and the public;
 Trust Board commitment to the programme and dedicated response 

from the Chief Executive to ensure results were discussed and feedback 
acted upon.

Members were presented with the patient perspective data which was collated 
independently of the Trust and the information suggested that the Trust was above 
the NHS average of 83%.

A concern was raised regarding the figure relating to information about discharge for 
patients and it was explained that the Trust were aware of problems with 
communication, therefore, work would take place to look at systems to support 
teams to ensure appropriate information was available to patients.  The importance 
of robust checklists for discharge was highlighted and Members were informed that 
bespoke work was needed in a number of areas and this was being investigated.  
The Trust highlighted the importance of follow-up for patients after discharge to 
ensure they received everything that was promised.  It was agreed that it was 
important to have a robust checklist on discharge 

The Committee were informed that Patient Experience Time Out Sessions had been 
organised which involved a programme of ward based training which commenced in 
2013 and focused on team working, communication, safety and quality of care.  It 
was explained that during 2014 112 sessions had been held which involved 1124 
members of staff which represented 26% of the workforce.  It was highlighted that 
95% of participants felt that the session would support them in improving patient 
experience in the future.

During the course of discussion the Committee were informed that training did not 
always involve patients but it was their aspiration to work more towards this in 
future.

RESOLVED, that the update be noted.

Page 9



8 NORTH CUMBRIA UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL TRUST - MAJOR INTERNAL 
INCIDENT

The Committee received an update from the Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group 
on actions following the internal major incident affecting health and care services 
across North Cumbria in March 2015.

Members were informed that an internal major incident in North Cumbria had taken 
place from Wednesday 18 March until Monday 23 March 2015.  This was against a 
background of North Cumbria University Hospitals NHS Trust (NCUHT) 
experiencing severe pressures since mid January 2015, during which time it had 
been operating at ‘level four escalation’ (the highest level before a major incident 
was called).

It was explained that on the morning of Wednesday 18 March NCUHT had alerted 
NHS Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and NHS England that they 
were under an extraordinary level of pressure.  The Trust did not have the bed 
capacity or the required staff numbers, predominantly at the Cumberland Infirmary, 
Carlisle to safely provide care for the number of patients presented.  Following 
discussions the NCUHT declared an internal major incident.

During 18 and 19 March a total of 11 patients were transferred out of county to 
Dumfries and Galloway, Newcastle and Northumberland.  There were twice daily 
calls during 18 and 19 March to monitor the situation and agree actions to cope with 
pressures.  It was agreed that the internal major incident would be stood down when 
the following objectives had been met:-

 mutual aid from out of county hospitals were no longer required;
 escalation beds at Cumberland Infirmary beds, Carlisle were either fully 

closed or safely staffed;
 effective discharge processes able to manage the volume of patients 

were in place across the health and social care system;
 there were no more 12 hour waits in A&E for a period of 48 hours.

During the course of discussion Members asked whether the closure of Reiver 
House had attributed to the incident and it was emphasised that this had not 
affected it and highlighted that there were more ‘hospital at home beds’ available 
since the closure.

Members questioned the availability of beds out of county in the future should 
further incidents occur and it was explained that although everyone worked very well 
together other hospitals also experienced significant pressures, therefore, this could 
not be guaranteed.  During discussion it was emphasised that there had been no 
deterioration of patients who had been relocated.

The Committee were also informed that as part of the escalation process use of the 
West Cumberland Hospital was made.  It was explained that part of the problem 
was the lack of resources available for the escalation beds.

Page 10



Members were informed that on Monday 23 March it had been agreed to step down 
from the internal major incident but daily or twice daily system-wide calls would 
continue when required.  It was emphasised that during the period of the internal 
major incident all providers had worked together to relieve the pressures in the 
system and this had continued with an increased focus on transfers and discharges 
involving all partners.

The Committee were informed that in response to the internal major incident a 
review of the causes and the management of it had begun at a meeting of the 
System Resilience Group on 2 April 2015.  It had also been agreed that external 
support would be sought to undertake a full and comprehensive root cause analysis 
in relation to the causes and management of the major internal incident.  It was 
anticipated that a report from the Group, including lessons learnt, would be available 
by the end of July.

RESOLVED, that

(1) the report be noted;

(2) a further report be made to the meeting in October.

9 PROPOSED CHANGES TO RESPIRATORY HIGH RISK PATIENT 
PATHWAY

The Committee received a report from the Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCCG) regarding changes to respiratory pathways affecting a small number of 
transfers from West Cumbria to the Cumberland Infirmary, Carlisle.

Members were informed that the proposed changes would result in a small number 
of patients with serious respiratory conditions either being transferred from West 
Cumbria to the Cumberland Infirmary in Carlisle or being taken direct to the 
Cumberland Infirmary by ambulance to enable them to access 24 hour specialist 
care, because of the severity of their illness, their frailty or other complex conditions. 

The Committee were informed that the high risk patient pathway referred to covered 
two groups of respiratory patients – acute respiratory and chronic respiratory 
conditions and overall it was estimated that the changes would impact upon 0.5% 
(less than 15 patients per year) of West Cumberland patients with respiratory 
conditions.  It was emphasised that services for the vast majority of respiratory 
patients who received care at the West Cumberland Hospital would be unchanged.

During the course of discussion concerns were raised regarding the significant 
impact this could have on patients’ families and carers and requested what 
measures were put in place to provide support to them when patients were 
transferred.  Members were informed that no guarantee could be made to transport 
relatives and carers but this was being investigated.  The Trust had finalised a travel 
plan which provided analysis of current travel patterns for patients, visitors and staff, 
with recommendations and actions aimed at improving car parking, as well as 

Page 11



moving towards more sustainable travel arrangements in the future.  The Trust 
agreed to forward a copy of the travel plan to Members.

The Committee were informed that in order to ensure that people who lived in West 
Cumbria had timely access to urgent ambulances there had been discussions with 
North West Ambulance Service (NWAS).  As a result from April 2015, NHS Cumbria 
CCG had agreed to pay for an additional ambulance which was available seven 
days a week, 12 hours a day for six months when a further review would take place.

Members raised their concerns regarding delays in ambulances in West Cumbria 
and were informed that liaison did take place with NWAS and any delays were 
investigated.  It was highlighted that time limits had much improved recently.

A detailed discussion took place to consider whether this did constitute a substantial 
service change and whilst the whole Committee did not agree the majority of 
Members considered this not to be a substantial service change.  It was therefore

RESOLVED, that the proposals did not constitute a substantial service change.

10 MATERNITY SERVICES REVIEW

The Committee received a report from the Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCCG) on the outcome and actions following the independent review of maternity 
services.

Members were informed that a review had been commissioned from the Royal 
College of Gynaecologists and Obstetricians (RCOG) during autumn 2014 by 
CCCG and NHS Lancashire North CCG.  The purpose of the review was to provide 
independent and expert advice on the best way to arrange high quality, safe and 
sustainable maternity services in the future.  The review had taken place in 
November 2014 and reported in March 2015.

There was recognition of the strong community support for the continuation of 
current services by maintaining four consultant-led units.  It highlighted that 
deprivation in some areas reinforced the need to provide services that were 
convenient but such services had to meet current safety standards.  Current working 
practices of a number of doctors within the four consultant-led units were not 
sustainable and a choice of birth arrangements for women could be improved by the 
gradual development of (alongside, near to or on the same site) midwifery-led units.  
A long-term strategic plan for development of maternity services was needed which 
increased competencies of primary care, including community midwifery to increase 
normal birth and develop new working relationships for medical staff.  It was 
emphasised that the future much include active community engagement and a 
better understanding by the public and staff of true safety and access data.

The outcome of the review had recommended that three options should be 
considered.

Page 12



Option 1 – Four consultant-led maternity units at Carlisle, Whitehaven, 
Barrow and Lancaster with the immediate development of ‘alongside’ (on the 
same site or next to) midwifery-led units at Carlisle and Lancaster and in the 
longer term to evaluate the development of the same at Barrow and 
Whitehaven.

Option 2a – Two consultant-led units at Carlisle and Lancaster and 
developing two alongside (on the same site or next to) midwifery-led units at 
Carlisle and Lancaster.  This was the assessors’ second favoured option 
should it not be possible to achieve option 1.  It would mean the closure of 
consultant-led units at Whitehaven and Barrow.

Option 2b – Two consultant-led units at Carlisle and Lancaster, developing 
two on the same site or next to midwifery-led units at Carlisle and Lancaster 
and converting the consultant-led units at Whitehaven and Barrow to become 
‘free-standing’ midwifery-led units, which meant they have no consultant 
obstetrics services on site.

However, the preferred recommendation was option 1 and it recommended that a 
project team be established reporting to a nominated governing body member 
appointed by the two CCGs to lead the project on the viability of options 1, 2a and 
2b.

The Committee were informed that the CCG, NCUHT and UHMBT had formally 
confirmed that they accepted the review’s recommendations of the preference for 
option 1 and confirmed this would not have an impact on Penrith and Kendal.  It was 
explained that for this option the change in experience for mothers would be 
minimal.  However, it was highlighted that option 2a was being explored in parallel, 
in case option 1 was not viable, but that if option 2a was to be considered this was a 
very significant change and would involve a major consultation.

During discussion the Committee were informed that if option 1 was not successful 
there was the possibility of potential risks for mothers during transfer.  It was also 
explained that patients preferred the availability of intervention from consultants 
on-site.

Members were then informed of the next steps which included:-

 Getting the governance right and linking things up
 Setting up the RCOG review project team
 Engaging with service users and key stakeholders
 Getting the right expertise
 Undertaking the detailed work required.

It was highlighted that the Maternity Services Liaison Committee was represented 
on the Project Team and the outcomes of their discussions would be fed back.  It 
was also explained that a vast amount of engagement would take place with various 
organisations ie mother/toddler groups etc and this would be collated and fed back 
to the Project Team.

Page 13



RESOLVED, that

(1) the report be noted;

(2) an interim report be presented to the Committee on 
2 December 2015.

11 COMMITTEE BRIEFING REPORT

The Committee received an update report from the Policy and Scrutiny Team which 
outlined the developments in health scrutiny, the Committee’s Work Programme and 
monitoring of actions not covered elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda.

Members discussed the notes from the Mental Health Task and Finish Group held 
on 12 May 2015 to consider the draft Cumbria Mental Health Strategy.

The Group had discussed the development of the Strategy, its programme plans 
and main work streams, with representatives from the Health and Care Directorate 
of the County Council and the North of England Commissioning Support Unit.  
Following those discussions Task Group Members agreed a number of points to 
formally feed back to the County Council and Clinical Commissioning Group on the 
Draft Strategy.  

The Health Scrutiny Committee Members agreed with the issues highlighted by the 
Task Group Members (referred to at Appendix 1 to the report) but requested that the 
paragraph referring to ‘care into the custody chain’ include the words ‘making 
reference to best practice undertaken elsewhere’ at the end of the paragraph. 

A discussion took place regarding the workshop report from the Health Scrutiny 
Development day held on 18 May 2015.  Concerns were raised regarding the 
proposal to consider a scheme of delegation for using the toolkit to be made to the 
Chair, Vice-Chair and Lead Members as it was stated by some Members that 
responsibility would be taken from the majority of Committee Members.

The Committee discussed an update report regarding the preparations for 
consultation on changes to cardiac and upper gastro intestinal pathways which it 
was anticipated would affect around five patients a week  

Members were informed that North Cumbria University Hospitals NHS Trust was 
currently preparing a list of patients from both pathways who had transferred to the 
Cumberland Infirmary for 24 hour specialist care.  In due course letters would be 
sent to patients offering them the opportunity to take part in in-depth telephone 
interviews or focus groups as part of the consultation.  It was also hoped that some 
family members/carers would also wish to participate.

It was explained that arrangements were also being made for similar discussions to 
take place with patients who were taking part in cardiac rehabilitation sessions in 
West Cumbria. 

Page 14



To ensure a level of independence, the interviews or focus groups would be carried 
out by a community and voluntary sector organisation.  Discussions were underway 
with an organisation to agree a brief and timescales for the work.  It was expected 
that the engagement activity would take place during June and July 2015.  Once 
feedback had been collated and a report received from the community and voluntary 
sector organisation and considered by the relevant NHS organisations, this would 
be shared with the Committee.

Members highlighted the importance of including as many groups and individuals as 
possible, particularly carers groups.

RESOLVED, that

(1) the report be noted;

(2) the submission by the Cumbria Mental Health Task Group on 
the draft Cumbria Mental Health Strategy be agreed after the 
words ‘making reference to best practice undertaken 
elsewhere’ were included at the end of the paragraph referring 
to ‘care into the custody chain’ (referred to at Appendix 1 to 
the report);

(3) the arrangements of the role of the Joint Cumbria and 
Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee continue and the 
representatives on the body to scrutinise the development and 
implementation of the ‘Better Care Together’ Programme be 
as follows:-

Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee Representative for
  South Lakeland District
Mrs D Seward
Mr D Fletcher
Mr M Wilson

(4) the following Members attend the CQC and OSC feedback 
meeting regarding the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay 
Foundation Trust on Thursday 11 June 2015:-

Mr D Fletcher
Mrs D Seward
Mr M Wilson

(a request also be made for the Chair, Mr N Hughes, to also 
attend the event);

(5) officers review and update the toolkit and associated guidance 
which is currently used for identifying a substantial variation 
and this be brought back to a future meeting of the Committee 
for approval;

Page 15



(6) officers investigate further options regarding the consideration 
of changes to services, including delegation to Lead 
Members;

(7) preparations for consultation on changes to cardiac and upper 
gastro intestinal pathways in North Cumbria be noted;

(7) the appointment of Member Champions be considered at a 
future meeting of the Committee;

(8) the timeline for the countywide review of maternity services be 
discussed at the 15 December 2015 meeting;

(9) the cardiology services be a desktop review to take place in 
the autumn;

(10) the ‘Together for a Healthier Future/Success Regime’ be 
discussed at the 27 July meeting;

(11) a visit to the West Cumberland Hospital be added to the work 
programme;

(12) an open book visit to the University Hospitals of Morecambe 
Bay Foundation Trust be included in the work programme.

12 DATE OF FUTURE MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be held on Monday 
27 July 2015 at 10.00 am in County Offices, Kendal.

The meeting ended at 1.10 pm

Page 16



CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 27 July 2015

From: Chief Executive

KIRKUP REPORT

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report contains responses from NHS England and University Hospitals of 
Morecambe Bay Foundation Trust (UHMBT) to the recommendations contained 
in the Kirkup Report.

2.0 ISSUES FOR SCRUTINY

2.1 The Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider:
i. whether the proposals constitute an effective response to the 

recommendations contained in the Kirkup Report; and
ii. how the Committee can continue to monitor progress.

3.0 BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT 

3.1 The Kirkup Report was commissioned to investigate the management, delivery 
and outcomes of care provided by the maternity and neonatal services at the 
University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust (UHMBT) from 
January 2004 to June 2013.

3.2 The investigation reported in March 2015 with a series of 44 recommendations 
– 18 of which were specific to UHMBT and the remainder relating to the wider 
health system (Appendix 1 contains a briefing on the report and the full list of 
recommendations).

3.3 NHS England and UHMBT have provided a series of reports which set out 
context and governance for the actions they have subsequently taken, together 
with an update on progress against the recommendations (Appendices 2 to 8).

3.4 The Committee is asked to consider the arrangements that the various 
organisations have put in place, their governance and reporting mechanisms 
and the progress that has been made. 

Diane Wood
Chief Executive

July 2015

Page 17

Agenda Item 9

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/morecambe-bay-investigation-report-published


Appendices

Appendix 1 Background Briefing on Kirkup Report
Appendix 2 Covering Report from NHS England
Appendix 3 NHS Governance Map
Appendix 4 Single Item Quality Surveillance Group Terms of Reference
Appendix 5 UHMBT Morecambe Bay Investigation Report Committee Terms of 

Reference
Appendix 6 Kirkup Report Terms of Reference
Appendix 7 Maternity Review Terms of Reference
Appendix 8 UHMBT Progress Report

Contact: 

Derek Houston
Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Adviser
Cumbria County Council
derek.houston@cumbria.gov.uk 
07771 975902

Page 18

mailto:derek.houston@cumbria.gov.uk


Title of Briefing:  Kirkup Report   
Date: March 2015
Author: Derek Houston, Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor, Health and Care
Audience: Directors

1.0 PURPOSE OF BRIEFING

1.1 To provide information on the Kirkup Report into the management, 
delivery and outcomes of care provided by the maternity and neonatal 
services at the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation 
Trust (MBUHT) from January 2004 to June 2013.

2.0 SUMMARY 

2.1 The investigation report details 20 instances of significant failures of care 
in the Furness General Hospital (FGH) maternity unit which may have 
contributed to the deaths of 3 mothers and 16 babies. Different clinical 
care in these cases would have been expected to prevent the death of 1 
mother and 11 babies.

2.2 The report focuses on three main areas: the internal clinical failings which 
were particular to the maternity service at (FGH); the overall management 
and culture of MBUHT; and the systematic failure of the wider NHS 
system to spot and intervene on issues early enough.

3.0 MAIN FINDINGS

3.1 The report says the maternity department at FGH was dysfunctional with 
serious problems in 4 main areas:

 Clinical competence of a proportion of staff fell significantly below 
the standard for a safe, effective service. Essential knowledge was 
lacking, guidelines not followed and warning signs in pregnancy 
were sometimes not recognised or acted on appropriately.

 Poor working relationships between midwives, obstetricians and 
paediatricians. There was a ‘them and us’ culture and poor 
communication hampered clinical care.

 Midwifery care became strongly influenced by a small number of 
dominant midwives whose ‘over-zealous’ pursuit of natural 
childbirth ‘at any cost’ led at times to unsafe care.

Page 19

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/morecambe-bay-investigation-report-published


 Failures of risk assessment and care planning resulted in 
inappropriate and unsafe care.

3.2 The report also criticises the internal governance arrangements of 
MBUHT, in particular it finds that:

 There was a grossly deficient response from unit clinicians to 
serious incidents with repeated failure to investigate properly and 
learn lessons;

 There were poorly developed systems of clinical governance within 
the Trust which meant that there was little formal oversight of safety 
or other quality matters in clinical services;

 A resultant failure, at a board level, to consider the evidence of 
systematic failing;

 The Trust did not commission the Fielding Review [an independent 
review instigated by the SHA] to investigate, as was originally 
intended, the previous incidents to ascertain whether there were 
systemic failings; and

 There was an element of conscious suppression of the Fielding 
report, both within the Trust and externally.

3.3 As well as criticisms of the Trust there were also criticisms of the wider 
NHS system and it failure to identify issues earlier. The report says proper 
investigations into serious incidents as far back as 2004 would have 
raised the alarm. It was not until 5 serious incidents occurred in 2008 that 
the reality began to emerge. The investigation found at least seven 
significant missed opportunities to intervene over the three years from 
2008 (and two previously), across each level – from the FGH maternity 
unit upwards, including the CQC, SHA and PHSO.

4.0 ASSESSMENT OF CURRENT POSITION

4.1 The investigation’s terms of reference charged it with assessing and 
making findings as to the ability of the University Hospitals of Morecambe 
Bay NHS Foundation Trust (the Trust) to discharge its duties in delivering 
maternity services. 

4.2 With regard to the clinical functioning of the maternity unit at Furness 
General Hospital (FGH), the investigation found that new medical staff 
have been appointed in both paediatrics and obstetrics; new midwifery 
staff have been appointed with experience and training in other units, not 
just one unit within the Trust; regular multidisciplinary meetings take place 
to discuss incidents, practice and management; and a more systematic 
approach has been put in place to investigate incidents, identify root 
causes and disseminate lessons learnt.

Page 20



4.3 Nevertheless, the investigation still has significant concerns. First, deep-
rooted problems of organisational culture take a long time to resolve.  
Secondly, real change had effectively not begun until within the last year.  
Thirdly, and consistent with the previous point, there was evidence that 
untoward incidents with worryingly similar features to those seen 
previously had occurred as recently as mid-2014.  Fourth, the 
investigation is not convinced that the change in midwifery leadership has 
yet been matched by a comparable improvement in medical leadership at 
divisional level. Finally, four years after the unsatisfactory physical 
accommodation of the FGH maternity unit was clearly pointed out, 
conditions remain poor, and the improvised ‘fix’ for the previous problem 
of getting patients to theatre for an emergency caesarean section remains 
unsatisfactory.

4.4 The investigation also considered the ability of the Trust as a whole, 
particularly its governance and ability to function as an effective 
organisation, through which safe, high-quality maternity services can be 
delivered.

4.5 A pattern emerged during the investigation of a Trust that has undertaken 
reviews, produced action plans and provided assurance to commissioners 
and regulators that appropriate action is in hand. However, on numerous 
previous occasions this assurance has proved false. Given this history, 
assessment of the current position has been approached with caution both 
by the investigation and other external regulatory bodies. 

4.6 Overall, the inquiry found that a picture has emerged of an organisation 
that has moved from a very weak position to one that is stronger, but by 
no means complete. 

4.7 Monitor’s more recent assessment was of a Trust that had made real 
progress, particularly in the last year – but one with significant challenges 
to overcome.

4.8 The CQC was cautious in its assessment, seeing progress but aware of 
previous claims of improvement that had proved to be false. It saw 
encouraging signs but emphasised that its forthcoming [May 19th 
announced follow-up inspection] inspection of the Trust was a critical test 
of the organisation. In the CQC’s view, this re-inspection would be crucial 
in determining whether there had been real and material change, or 
whether the signs were once again to be proved premature.

Page 21



4.9 Commissioners were positive about the level of engagement they were 
getting from the Trust, and saw the dialogue over the future direction of 
services positively. However, they also recognised that there were 
significant challenges ahead before a viable, sustainable service would be 
in place.

4.10 It is the view of the investigation that, whilst progress has been made, 
there is still significant work to be done in embedding a culture of good 
governance and clinical quality into the organisation

4.11 The Trust has made real progress in terms of improving its governance. It 
has introduced new systems, and the Board has focused appropriate 
attention on ensuring that it has the information it requires. Reporting 
internally is improved, and reports are shared externally with regulators. 
Work to strengthen divisional tiers has begun and the Trust has 
recognised that clinical leadership must be strengthened as a priority.

4.12 However, the Trust is still some way from where it needs to be in 
developing satisfactory governance and external relationships. The 
investigation was told by the regulators that there is still a reluctance to be 
proactive in sharing information. There needs to be a more proactive 
approach to openness with the regulators if confidence in the Trust is to 
be improved.

4.13 The delivery of services has been strengthened by the additional 
investment made by the Trust in staffing. However there is a concern 
about whether this is sustainable as the Trust remains in financial deficit 
and it is vital that a strategy is developed, in agreement with the national 
NHS system, regulators and local commissioners, which will deliver 
stability – or the Trust will remain vulnerable.

5.0 MBUHT RESPONSE

5.1 MBUHT issued a press release on 3 March 2015 in which Pearse Butler, 
the chair of the Trust Board states, “This Trust made some very serious 
mistakes in the way it cared for mothers and their babies. More than that, 
the same mistakes were repeated. And after making those mistakes, there 
was a lack of openness from the Trust in acknowledging to families what 
had happened.  This report vindicates these families. 

“For these reasons, on behalf of the Trust, I apologise unreservedly to the 
families concerned. I’m deeply sorry that so many people have suffered as 
a result of these mistakes. As the Chair of the Trust Board, it’s my duty to 
ensure that lessons are learned and that we do everything we possibly 
can to make sure nothing like this happens again.”

Page 22

http://www.uhmb.nhs.uk/patients-and-visitors/the-morecambe-bay-investigation/


Appendix 1

RECOMMENDATIONS

Recommendations for the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS 
Foundation Trust

Some of these recommendations will have been partially implemented already, 
but the report set them out in full to show the range of action required, and 
completion dates.

1. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
formally admit the extent and nature of the problems that have previously 
occurred, and should apologise to those patients and relatives affected, 
not only for the avoidable damage caused but also for the length of time it 
has taken to bring them to light and the previous failures to act. This 
should begin immediately with the response to this Report.

2. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
review the skills, knowledge, competencies and professional duties of care 
of all obstetric, paediatric, midwifery and neonatal nursing staff, and other 
staff caring for critically ill patients in anaesthetics and intensive and high 
dependency care, against all relevant guidance from professional and 
regulatory bodies. This review should be completed by June 2015, and 
identify requirements for additional training, development and, where 
necessary, a period of experience elsewhere.

3. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
draw up plans to deliver the training and development of staff identified as 
a result of the review of maternity, neonatal and other staff, and should 
identify opportunities to broaden staff experience in other units, including 
by secondment and by supernumerary practice. These should be in place 
in time for June 2015.

4. Following completion of additional training or experience where necessary, 
the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
identify requirements for continuing professional development of staff and 
link this explicitly with professional requirements including revalidation. 
This should be completed by September 2015.

Page 23



5. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
identify and develop measures that will promote effective multidisciplinary 
team-working, in particular between paediatricians, obstetricians, 
midwives and neonatal staff. These measures should include, but not be 
limited to, joint training sessions, clinical, policy and management 
meetings and staff development activities. Attendance at designated 
events must be compulsory within terms of employment. These measures 
should be identified by April 2015 and begun by June 2015.

6. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
draw up a protocol for risk assessment in maternity services, setting out 
clearly: who should be offered the option of delivery at Furness General 
Hospital and who should not; who will carry out this assessment against 
which criteria; and how this will be discussed with pregnant women and 
families. The protocol should involve all relevant staff groups, including 
midwives, paediatricians, obstetricians and those in the receiving units 
within the region. The Trust should ensure that individual decisions on 
delivery are clearly recorded as part of the plan of care, including what risk 
factors may trigger escalation of care, and that all Trust staff are aware 
that they should not vary decisions without a documented risk 
assessment. This should be completed by June 2015.

7. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
audit the operation of maternity and paediatric services, to ensure that 
they follow risk assessment protocols on place of delivery, transfers and 
management of care, and that effective multidisciplinary care operates 
without inflexible demarcations between professional groups. This should 
be in place by September 2015.

8. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
identify a recruitment and retention strategy aimed at achieving a balanced 
and sustainable workforce with the requisite skills and experience. This 
should include, but not be limited to, seeking links with one or more other 
centre(s) to encourage development of specialist and/or academic practice 
whilst offering opportunities in generalist practice in the Trust; in addition, 
opportunities for flexible working to maximise the advantages of close 
proximity to South Lakeland should be sought. Development of the 
strategy should be completed by January 2016.

9. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
identify an approach to developing better joint working between its main 
hospital sites, including the development and operation of common 
policies, systems and standards. Whilst we do not believe that the 
introduction of extensive split-site responsibilities for clinical staff will do 

Page 24



much other than lead to time wasted in travelling, we do consider that, as 
part of this approach, flexibility should be built into working responsibilities 
to provide temporary solutions to short-term staffing problems. This 
approach should be begun by September 2015.

10. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
seek to forge links with a partner Trust, so that both can benefit from 
opportunities for learning, mentoring, secondment, staff development and 
sharing approaches to problems. This arrangement is promoted and 
sometimes facilitated by Monitor as ‘buddying’ and we endorse the 
approach under these circumstances. This could involve the same centre 
identified as part of the recruitment and retention strategy. If a suitable 
partner is forthcoming, this arrangement should be begun by September 
2015.

11. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
identify and implement a programme to raise awareness of incident 
reporting, including requirements, benefits and processes. The Trust 
should also review its policy of openness and honesty in line with the duty 
of candour of professional staff, and incorporate into the programme 
compliance with the refreshed policy. This should be begun with maternity 
staff by April 2015 and rolled out to other staff by April 2016.

12. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
review the structures, processes and staff involved in investigating 
incidents, carrying out root cause analyses, reporting results and 
disseminating learning from incidents, identifying any residual conflicts of 
interest and requirements for additional training. The Trust should ensure 
that robust documentation is used, based on a recognised system, and 
that Board reports include details of how services have been improved in 
response. The review should include the provision of appropriate 
arrangements for staff debriefing and support following a serious incident. 
This should be begun with maternity units by April 2015 and rolled out 
across the Trust by April 2016.

13. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
review the structures, processes and staff involved in responding to 
complaints, and introduce measures to promote the use of complaints as a 
source of improvement and reduce defensive ‘closed’ responses to 
complainants. The Trust should increase public and patient involvement in 
resolving complaints, in the case of maternity services through the 
Maternity Services Liaison Committee. This should be completed, and the 
improvements demonstrated at an open Board meeting, by December 
2015.

Page 25



14. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
review arrangements for clinical leadership in obstetrics, paediatrics and 
midwifery, to ensure that the right people are in place with appropriate 
skills and support. The Trust has implemented change at executive level, 
but this needs to be carried through to the levels below. All staff with 
defined responsibilities for clinical leadership should show evidence of 
attendance at appropriate training and development events. This review 
should be commenced by April 2015.

15. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
continue to prioritise the work commenced in response to the review of 
governance systems already carried out, including clinical governance, so 
that the Board has adequate assurance of the quality of care provided by 
the Trust’s services. This work is already underway with the facilitation of 
Monitor, and we would not seek to vary or add to it, which would serve 
only to detract from implementation. We do, however, recommend that a 
full audit of implementation be undertaken before this is signed off as 
completed.

16. As part of the governance systems work, we consider that the University 
Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should ensure that 
middle managers, senior managers and non-executives have the requisite 
clarity over roles and responsibilities in relation to quality, and it should 
provide appropriate guidance and where necessary training. This should 
be completed by December 2015.

17. The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should 
identify options, with a view to implementation as soon as practicable, to 
improve the physical environment of the delivery suite at Furness General 
Hospital, including particularly access to operating theatres, an improved 
ability to observe and respond to all women in labour and en suite 
facilities; arrangements for post-operative care of women also need to be 
reviewed. Plans should be in place by December 2015 and completed by 
December 2017.

18. All of the previous recommendations should be implemented with the 
involvement of Clinical Commissioning Groups, and where necessary, the 
Care Quality Commission and Monitor. In the particular circumstances 
surrounding the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation 
Trust, NHS England should oversee the process, provide the necessary 
support, and ensure that all parties remain committed to the outcome, 
through an agreed plan with the Care Quality Commission, Monitor and 
the Clinical Commissioning Groups.

Page 26



Recommendations for the wider NHS

Many of these recommendations are for other Trusts, but the report has 
generally indicated the bodies responsible for leading and ensuring that action is 
completed.

19. In light of the evidence we have heard during the Investigation, we 
consider that the professional regulatory bodies should review the findings 
of this Report in detail with a view to investigating further the conduct of 
registrants involved in the care of patients during the time period of this 
Investigation. Action: the General Medical Council, the Nursing and 
Midwifery Council.

20. There should be a national review of the provision of maternity care and 
paediatrics in challenging circumstances, including areas that are rural, 
difficult to recruit to, or isolated. This should identify the requirements to 
sustain safe services under these conditions. In conjunction, a national 
protocol should be drawn up that defines the types of unit required in 
different settings and the levels of care that it is appropriate to offer in 
them. Action: NHS England, the Care Quality Commission, the Royal 
College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists, the Royal College of 
Midwives, the Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health, the National 
Institute for Health and Care Excellence.

21. The challenge of providing healthcare in areas that are rural, difficult to 
recruit to or isolated is not restricted to maternity care and paediatrics. We 
recommend that NHS England consider the wisdom of extending the 
review of requirements to sustain safe provision to other services. This is 
an area lacking in good-quality research yet it affects many regions of 
England, Wales and Scotland. This should be seen as providing an 
opportunity to develop and promote a positive way of working in remote 
and rural environments. Action: NHS England.

22. We believe that the educational opportunities afforded by smaller units, 
particularly in delivering a broad range of care with a high personal level of 
responsibility, have been insufficiently recognised and exploited. We 
recommend that a review be carried out of the opportunities and 
challenges to assist such units in promoting services and the benefits to 
larger units of linking with them. Action: Health Education England, the 
Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists, the Royal College of 
Paediatrics and Child Health, the Royal College of Midwives.

Page 27



23. Clear standards should be drawn up for incident reporting and 
investigation in maternity services. These should include the mandatory 
reporting and investigation as serious incidents of maternal deaths, late 
and intrapartum stillbirths and unexpected neonatal deaths. We believe 
that there is a strong case to include a requirement that investigation of 
these incidents be subject to a standardised process, which includes input 
from and feedback to families, and independent, multidisciplinary peer 
review, and should certainly be framed to exclude conflicts of interest 
between staff. We recommend that this build on national work already 
begun on how such a process would work. Action: the Care Quality 
Commission, NHS England, the Department of Health.

24. We commend the introduction of the duty of candour for all NHS 
professionals. This should be extended to include the involvement of 
patients and relatives in the investigation of serious incidents, both to 
provide evidence that may otherwise be lacking and to receive personal 
feedback on the results. Action: the Care Quality Commission, NHS 
England.

25. We recommend that a duty should be placed on all NHS Boards to report 
openly the findings of any external investigation into clinical services, 
governance or other aspects of the operation of the Trust, including 
prompt notification of relevant external bodies such as the Care Quality 
Commission and Monitor. The Care Quality Commission should develop a 
system to disseminate learning from investigations to other Trusts. Action: 
the Department of Health, the Care Quality Commission.

26. We commend the introduction of a clear national policy on whistleblowing. 
As well as protecting the interests of whistleblowers, we recommend that 
this is implemented in a way that ensures that a systematic and 
proportionate response is made by Trusts to concerns identified. Action: 
the Department of Health.

27. Professional regulatory bodies should clarify and reinforce the duty of 
professional staff to report concerns about clinical services, particularly 
where these relate to patient safety, and the mechanism to do so. Failure 
to report concerns should be regarded as a lapse from professional 
standards. Action: the General Medical Council, the Nursing and Midwifery 
Council, the Professional Standards Authority for Health and Social Care.

28. Clear national standards should be drawn up setting out the professional 
duties and expectations of clinical leads at all levels, including, but not 
limited to, clinical directors, clinical leads, heads of service, medical 
directors, nurse directors. Trusts should provide evidence to the Care 
Quality Commission, as part of their processes, of appropriate policies and 

Page 28



training to ensure that standards are met. Action: NHS England, the Care 
Quality Commission, the General Medical Council, the Nursing and 
Midwifery Council, all Trusts.

29. Clear national standards should be drawn up setting out the 
responsibilities for clinical quality of other managers, including executive 
directors, middle managers and non-executives. All Trusts should provide 
evidence to the Care Quality Commission, as part of their processes, of 
appropriate policies and training to ensure that standards are met. Action: 
NHS England, the Care Quality Commission, all Trusts.

30. A national protocol should be drawn up setting out the duties of all Trusts 
and their staff in relation to inquests. This should include, but not be 
limited to, the avoidance of attempts to ‘fend off’ inquests, a mandatory 
requirement not to coach staff or provide ‘model answers’, the need to 
avoid collusion between staff on lines to take, and the inappropriateness of 
relying on coronial processes or expert opinions provided to coroners to 
substitute for incident investigation. Action: NHS England, the Care Quality 
Commission.

31. The NHS complaints system in the University Hospitals of Morecambe 
Bay NHS Foundation Trust failed relatives at almost every turn. Although it 
was not within our remit to examine the operation of the NHS complaints 
system nationally, both the nature of the failures and persistent comment 
from elsewhere lead us to suppose that this is not unique to this Trust. We 
believe that a fundamental review of the NHS complaints system is 
required, with particular reference to strengthening local resolution and 
improving its timeliness, introducing external scrutiny of local resolution 
and reducing reliance on the Parliamentary and Health Service 
Ombudsman to intervene in unresolved complaints. Action: the 
Department of Health, NHS England, the Care Quality Commission, the 
Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman.

32. The Local Supervising Authority system for midwives was ineffectual at 
detecting manifest problems at the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay 
NHS Foundation Trust, not only in individual failures of care but also with 
the systems to investigate them. As with complaints, our remit was not to 
examine the operation of the system nationally; however, the nature of the 
failures and the recent King’s Fund review (Midwifery regulation in the 
United Kingdom) lead us to suppose that this is not unique to this Trust, 
although there were specific problems there that exacerbated the more 
systematic concern. We believe that an urgent response is required to the 
King’s Fund findings, with effective reform of the system. Action: the 
Department of Health, NHS England, the Nursing and Midwifery Council.

Page 29



33. We considered carefully the effectiveness of separating organisationally 
the regulation of quality by the Care Quality Commission from the 
regulation of finance and performance by Monitor, given the close inter-
relationship between Trust decisions in each area. However, we were 
persuaded that there is more to be gained than lost by keeping regulation 
separated in this way, not least that decisions on safety are not perceived 
to be biased by their financial implications. The close links, however, 
require a carefully coordinated approach, and we recommend that the 
organisations draw up a memorandum of understanding specifying roles, 
relationships and communication. Action: Monitor, the Care Quality 
Commission, the Department of Health.

34. The relationship between the investigation of individual complaints and the 
investigation of the systemic problems that they exemplify gave us cause 
for concern, in particular the breakdown in communication between the 
Care Quality Commission and the Parliamentary and Health Service 
Ombudsman over necessary action and follow-up. We recommend that a 
memorandum of understanding be drawn up clearly specifying roles, 
responsibilities, communication and follow-up, including explicitly agreed 
actions where issues overlap. Action: the Care Quality Commission, the 
Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman.

35. The division of responsibilities between the Care Quality Commission and 
other parts of the NHS for oversight of service quality and the 
implementation of measures to correct patient safety failures was not 
clear, and we are concerned that potential ambiguity persists. We 
recommend that NHS England draw up a protocol that clearly sets out the 
responsibilities for all parts of the oversight system, including itself, in 
conjunction with the other relevant bodies; the starting point should be that 
one body, the Care Quality Commission, takes prime responsibility. 
Action: the Care Quality Commission, NHS England, Monitor, the 
Department of Health. 

36. The cumulative impact of new policies and processes, particularly the 
perceived pressure to achieve Foundation Trust status, together with 
organisational reconfiguration, placed significant pressure on the 
management capacity of the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS 
Foundation Trust to deliver against changing requirements whilst 
maintaining day-to-day needs, including safeguarding patient safety. 
Whilst we do not absolve Trusts from responsibility for prioritising limited 
capability safely and effectively, we recommend that the Department of 
Health should review how it carries out impact assessments of new 
policies to identify the risks as well as the resources and time required. 
Action: the Department of Health.

Page 30



37. Organisational change that alters or transfers responsibilities and 
accountability carries significant risk, which can be mitigated only if well 
managed. We recommend that an explicit protocol be drawn up setting out 
how such processes will be managed in future. This must include systems 
to secure retention of both electronic and paper documents against future 
need, as well as ensuring a clearly defined transition of responsibilities 
and accountability. Action: the Department of Health.

38. Mortality recording of perinatal deaths is not sufficiently systematic, with 
failures to record properly at individual unit level and to account routinely 
for neonatal deaths of transferred babies by place of birth. This is of added 
significance when maternity units rely inappropriately on headline mortality 
figures to reassure others that all is well. We recommend that recording 
systems are reviewed and plans brought forward to improve systematic 
recording and tracking of perinatal deaths. This should build on the work of 
national audits such as MBRRACE-UK, and include the provision of 
comparative information to Trusts. Action: NHS England.

39. There is no mechanism to scrutinise perinatal deaths or maternal deaths 
independently, to identify patient safety concerns and to provide early 
warning of adverse trends. This shortcoming has been clearly identified in 
relation to adult deaths by Dame Janet Smith in her review of the Shipman 
deaths, but is in our view no less applicable to maternal and perinatal 
deaths, and should have raised concerns in the University Hospitals of 
Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust before they eventually became 
evident. Legislative preparations have already been made to implement a 
system based on medical examiners, as effectively used in other 
countries, and pilot schemes have apparently proved effective. We cannot 
understand why this has not already been implemented in full, and 
recommend that steps are taken to do so without delay. Action: the 
Department of Health.

40. Given that the systematic review of deaths by medical examiners should 
be in place, as above, we recommend that this system be extended to 
stillbirths as well as neonatal deaths, thereby ensuring that appropriate 
recommendations are made to coroners concerning the occasional need 
for inquests in individual cases, including deaths following neonatal 
transfer. Action: the Department of Health.

41. We were concerned by the ad hoc nature and variable quality of the 
numerous external reviews of services that were carried out at the 
University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust. We 
recommend that systematic guidance be drawn up setting out an 
appropriate framework for external reviews and professional 
responsibilities in undertaking them. Action: the Academy of Medical Royal 
Colleges, the Royal College of Nursing, the Royal College of Midwives.

Page 31



42. We further recommend that all external reviews of suspected service 
failures be registered with the Care Quality Commission and Monitor, and 
that the Care Quality Commission develops a system to collate learning 
from reviews and disseminate it to other Trusts. Action: the Care Quality 
Commission, Monitor.

43. We strongly endorse the emphasis placed on the quality of NHS services 
that began with the Darzi review, High Quality Care for All, and gathered 
importance with the response to the events at the Mid Staffordshire NHS 
Foundation Trust. Our findings confirm that this was necessary and must 
not be lost. We are concerned that the scale of recent NHS reconfiguration 
could result in new organisations and post-holders losing the focus on this 
priority. We recommend that the importance of putting quality first is re-
emphasised and local arrangements reviewed to identify any need for 
personal or organisational development, including amongst clinical 
leadership in commissioning organisations. Action: NHS England, the 
Department of Health.

44. This Investigation was hampered at the outset by the lack of an 
established framework covering such matters as access to documents, the 
duty of staff and former staff to cooperate, and the legal basis for handling 
evidence. These obstacles were overcome, but the need to do this from 
scratch each time an investigation of this format is set up is unnecessarily 
time-consuming. We believe that this is an effective investigation format 
that is capable of getting to the bottom of significant service and 
organisational problems without the need for a much more expensive, 
time-consuming and disruptive public inquiry. This being so, we believe 
that there is considerable merit in establishing a proper framework, if 
necessary statutory, on which future investigations could be promptly 
established. This would include setting out the arrangements necessary to 
maintain independence and work effectively and efficiently, as well as 
clarifying responsibilities of current and former health service staff to 
cooperate. Action: the Department of Health.

Page 32



 

1 
 

 

CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – JULY 2015  
 

UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL OF MORECAMBE BAY NHS FOUNDATION TRUST 
MORECAMBE BAY INVESTIGATION BRIEFING PAPER 

 
 

Introduction 
 
This briefing paper has been prepared for the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee, with the 
intention of providing a background summary of historical concerns regarding care provision 
at the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust. The paper will also 
provide an update position, in relation to the current status and progress on the 
implementation of the recommendations from the Kirkup Investigation into these concerns. 
 
 

Background 
 
University Hospital of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust (UHMBT) has been the 
subject of significant external scrutiny since 2009, following the identification of concerns 
relating to a number of maternal and neonatal deaths between 2004 and 2008, which had 
occurred following care at the Maternity Unit of Furness General Hospital, Barrow. The 
families of those who died under the care of the Trust had sought a full and independent 
investigation into these services and the Trust had also proposed an external investigation 
into these events be undertaken.  
  
Between 2009 and 2012, a number of external reviews were commissioned or undertaken 
by the North West Strategic Health Authority, North Lancashire and Cumbria PCTs and the 
NHS Regulators.  
 
In June 2013, an Independent Report into the Care Quality Commission’s (CQC) regulatory 
oversight of UHMBT was published. As a result of the findings of this report, the Secretary of 
State for Health announced the following actions: 

 Amendment of the CQC registration requirements, to refocus on Fundamental 
Standards 

 Revised CQC registration requirements to introduce a statutory Duty of Candour  

 Amendment of the Care Bill, to introduce a Failure regime for NHS Hospitals. 
 
In September 2013 the Secretary of State for Health announced plans for an Independent 
Investigation into maternal and neonatal services at UHMBT, to be chaired by Dr Bill Kirkup 
CBE. The Terms of Reference for the investigation were published on the same day as the 
announcement. The investigation was to cover the period January 1st 2004 to June 30th 
2013, which included the involvement of legacy transition processes to NHS England and 
Cumbria and Lancashire North CCGs.  
 
On March 3rd 2015, the Kirkup Investigation Report was published and made 44 
recommendations in total. Recommendation 1-18 focused on actions required by UHMBT or 
the local health system. The remaining 26 recommendations required action from the wider 
system including regulators, commissioners and other national bodies. On March 3rd 2015, 
the Secretary of State for Health also announced some initial actions that were to be taken: 
:  
 

Page 33



 

2 
 

National Response to Morecambe Bay Investigation 
 
The Secretary of State for Health asked UHMBT to take responsibility for the implementation 
of the first 18 recommendations, which have completion dates between April 2015 to June 
2016 with the exception of Recommendation No. 17, which has an implementation date 
between December 2015 and December 2017. NHS England and partners are required to 
have oversight and Monitor are required to ensure delivery of the recommendations within 
the specified timescales   
 
There will be a full governmental response to the Kirkup Report recommendations, however 
an immediate response to Recommendations 20 (national maternal services review) and 23 
(maternal incident reporting) have been identified. Both requirements have commenced at 
the Secretary of State for Health’s request:  
  

 Recommendation 20: Conduct a national review of maternity (especially in 
rural areas). Develop a national protocol for types of unit/care in different 
areas. The review Chair was announced on March 26th 2015, as Baroness 
Cumberlege 
 

 Recommendation 23: Develop standards for incident reporting and 
investigations in maternity services, including standardised process for 
mandatory reporting and investigation into deaths. Work on this recommendation 
is being led by Dr Mike Durkin, National Director of Patient Safety, NHS England 

 
The remaining 24 national recommendations are currently under review and timescales and 
Leads are still to be formally confirmed. The Department of Health is leading this work, with 
the support of NHS England and other national partners.  
 
The Secretary of State for Health has also asked Sir Bruce Keogh, National Medical Director 
for NHS England, to carry out a review of codes of practice for health professionals including 
those for doctors and nurses. 

 
 

NHS England Governance Arrangements 
 
National oversight arrangements: 
 

 Sir Bruce Keogh, National Medical Director has been appointed as the NHS England 
Senior Responsible Officer for the investigation response. 
 

 National Maternal Review: John Stewart, Director – Quality Framework, NHS 
England Medical Directorate, has been appointed as the NHS England Lead Officer 
for the Review. 

 
  Local oversight arrangements: 
 

 UHMB Single Item QSG: 
 A Single Item Quality Surveillance Group (QSG) led by NHS England 

Lancashire and Greater Manchester Team has been established and Graham 
Urwin, Director of Commissioning Operations, NHS England Lancashire and 
Greater Manchester appointed as Chair of the QSG. The QSG brings together 

Page 34



 

3 
 

partners from across the health economy to ensure that quality standards are 
met 

 Membership of the UHMBT Single Item QSG has been established 
 

 UHMBT Single Item QSG Local Lead Officers have been appointed: 
 Graham Urwin, Director of Commissioning Operations, NHS England North 

(Lancashire and Greater Manchester) – Senior Responsible Officer (Chair) 
 Trish Bennett, Director of Nursing and Quality, NHS England North 

(Lancashire and Greater Manchester) - Nursing Clinical Lead 
 Mike Prentice, Medical Director, NHS England North (North East and Cumbria) 

- Medical Clinical Lead 
 Andrew Bennett, Chief Officer, Lancashire North CCG - Lead CCG Senior 

Responsible Officer (on behalf of both Cumbria and Lancashire North CCGs) 
 

 University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS FT: 
 The Trust has established the Morecambe Bay Investigation Sub-Committee. 

This is a Sub-committee of the UHMBT Trust Board and oversees and 
provides strategic internal Board assurance for the Trust specific 
recommendations (1-18). Membership of the Sub-Committee includes CCG 
and Morecambe Bay Investigation Families representation.  

 The Kirkup Report Implementation Group has also been established as the 
operational oversight group for the Trust’s internal governance and delivery 
systems and processes, relating to the implementation of the 
recommendations and formal reporting to the Morecambe Bay Investigation 
Sub-Committee 

 
A Governance Map outlying the local and national NHS governance arrangements interface 
and the Terms of Reference for the UHMBT Single Item QSG, the Morecambe Bay 
Investigation Sub-Committee and the Kirkup Report Implementation Group are appended to 
this briefing paper (Appendix 1, 2, 3 and 4). 
 

 
Current Position 
 
UHMBT Single Item QSG 
 
Kirkup Report Recommendations Implementation Update: 
 
The latest UHMBT Single Item QSG was held on June 30th 2015. The QSG received 
assurance reports from the Trust outlining the implementation progress made to date. In 
summary, the Trust reported that all required actions which were to be commenced or 
completed by June 30th 2015 were either completed by the required date or were at the 
required stage of implementation in accordance with the required target dates. 
 
The full update position information is appended to this briefing paper (Appendix 5). 
 
 
Recommendation 20: National Maternity Review 

 
In its June 2015 report, the Review team considered that it has made good progress in its 
work to date and it has established a full Review Panel, whose membership is identified 
below: 

Page 35



 

4 
 

 Baroness Julia Cumberlege (Chair) 

 Sir Cyril Chantler (Vice Chair) 

 Professor Cathy Warwick, Royal College of Midwives, Chief Executive 

 Dr David Richmond, Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists, President 

 Annie Francis, Neighbourhood Midwives, Chief Executive 

 Sarah Noble, Consultant Midwife, Birmingham Women’s NHS Foundation Trust 

 Elizabeth Duff, NCT, Senior Policy Adviser 

 Alison Baum, Best Beginnings, Chief Executive 

 Rowan Davies, Mumsnet, Head of Policy and Campaigns 

 James Titcombe, Morecambe Bay parent and CQC adviser on safety 

 Dr Alan Fenton, Consultant Neonatal Paediatrician, Newcastle-Upon-Tyne 

Hospitals NHS FT 

 Professor James Walker,  Professor of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, University of 

Leeds 

 Dr Catherine Calderwood, National Clinical Director for Maternity and Women’s 

Health 

 Dr Jocelyn Cornwell, Point of Care Foundation, Chief Executive 

 Sir Sam Everington, Chair, Tower Hamlets CCG and board member of NHS 

Clinical Commissioners 

 Professor Dame Donna Kinnair, Clinical Director Emergency Department, Barking, 

Havering and Redbridge University Hospitals 

 Melany Pickup, Chief Executive, Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation 

Trust 
 
The Review is due to publish its findings in December 2015. 
 
The Terms of Reference for the Review are appended to this briefing paper (Appendix 6).  
 
The Review can be contacted on:       england.maternityreview@nhs.net 
 
 
Recommendation 23: Develop standards for incident reporting and investigations in 
maternity services 
 
On March 27th 2015, NHS England published a new National Serious Incident Framework, 
for the reporting of all serious incidents within NHS commissioned services. Dr Mike Durkin 
is currently reviewing the specific requirements for the reporting and investigation of 
maternity services related serious incidents and further guidance will be provided, once this 
work is completed.  

 
 
 
 

Page 36

mailto:england.maternityreview@nhs.net


 

5 
 

 
Conclusion 
 
In conclusion, the Trust is considered to have met all of the required milestones and targets 
in the implementation of the Morecambe Bay Investigation recommendations. 
Commissioners and Regulators are currently assured of the progress made and that 
systems are in place to sustain these improvements. 
 
Commissioners and Regulators identify that the Trust is working in partnership with them to 
ensure the delivery of the required quality improvements. 
 
 
Trish Bennett 
Director of Nursing and Quality 
NHS England North (Lancashire and Greater Manchester) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



 

6 
 

APPENDICES  
 
APPENDIX 1 – Morecambe Bay Report – NHS Governance Map 
 

Governance 
Map_v2.pdf

 
 
APPENDIX 2 - UHMBT Single Item QSG Terms of Reference  
 

UHMB QSG ToR 
(draftv3).pdf

 
 
APPENDIX 3 - Morecambe Bay Investigation Sub-Committee Terms of Reference 
 

MBI Report 
Sub-Comm Draft ToR v6.pdf

 
 
APPENDIX 4 - Kirkup Report Implementation Group Terms of Reference 
 

Kirkup 
Implementation Group T0R Draft v1 (4).pdf

 
 
APPENDIX 5 – UHMB Monthly Progress and Highlight Report and associated position 
reports (June 2015) 
 

Monthly_Progress_a
nd_Highlight_Report_June_2015[3].pdf

   

Item 52a (ii) - 15 06 
16 Clinical Quality Kirkup Project Highlight report v0.2.pdf

  

Item 52a (iii) - 15 06 
30 Workforce Highlight report June 2015.pdf

  

Item 52a (iv) - 15 06 
30 Governance Project Highlight Report.pdf

   

Item 52a (v) 15 06 
30 Education, Learning and Development Highlight Report v0.2.pdf

  

Item 52a (vi) - 15 06 
16 Estates highlight report v2.pdf

  

Item 52a (vii) - 15 06 
30 Comms & Engagement Monthly Progress and Highlight Report.pdf

  

Item 52b Kirkup 
Action Plan v0.20 15 07 07.xlsx

 
 
APPENDIX 6 - National Maternity Review Terms of Reference 
 

maternity-rev-tor.pd
f

 
 
 
 

Page 38



 
 APPENDIX 1    Kirkup Investigation Report Implementation – NHS Governance Map 

Governance Map v2 
April 2015   

UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF MORECAMBE BAY NHS FT 
KIRKUP INVESTIGATION REPORT - RESPONSE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

 

 
KIRKUP NHS GOVERNANCE MAP 

  
 
 
                                                            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
UHB Single 
Organisation  

QSG 

University Hospitals of 
Morecambe Bay NHS FT  

Trust Board 

UHMB NHS FT Trust Board  
Morecambe Bay Investigation 

Report Sub-Committee 
 

 
Monitor 

 
CQC 

Department of Health  

National Kirkup Report  
Response Group 

NMC 
Monitor 

PHSO 
CQC 

NHS England 

GMC TDA 

HEE 

NHS England  
North East and 

Cumbria 

NHS England 
Lancashire and 

Greater Manchester 

 
Cumbria CCG 

 
Lancashire North CCG 

Lancashire QSG Cumbria QSG 

North Region QSG 

         HEE 

Cumbria  
Health Watch 

Lancashire  
Health Watch 

 

NHS England 
Communications 

Teams 

Kirkup 
Recommendation 
Implementation 
Group (KRIG) 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2                                                                                                    

UHMB SI QSG ToRv3 April 2015                                                                                                                1 
 

University of Morecambe Bay NHS FT 
Single Item Quality Surveillance Group 

 
Terms of Reference 

 
April 2015 

 
 

 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of the Quality Surveillance Group (QSG) is to systematically bring together the 
different parts of the health care system to share information. The Single Item QSG provides 
a dedicated focus on the quality performance and delivery of services in relation to one 

provider organisation and will be a proactive forum for collaboration, providing:  
 

 a shared view of risks to quality through sharing intelligence;  

 an early warning mechanism of risk about poor quality; and  

 opportunities to co-ordinate actions to drive improvement, respecting statutory 

responsibilities of and on-going operational liaison between organisations.  

and; 

Specifically in relation to University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS FT: 

 monitor and gain assurance in relation to the Care Quality Commission (CQC) 

Quality Improvement Plan 

 monitor and gain assurance in relation to the Trust focused Kirkup Investigation 

recommendations delivery  

 receive assurance on the delivery the Trust focused Kirkup Investigation 

recommendations, from the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS FT’s Trust 

Board Sub-Committee (Morecambe Bay Investigation Report Committee) 

 
 
Objectives 
 
The QSG will collectively consider and triangulate information and intelligence to safeguard 

the quality of care. In particular, the QSG will consider: 
 

 what the data and soft intelligence is indicating about where there might be concerns 

regarding the quality of services 

 where the QSG is most worried about the quality of services 

 

Page 41



APPENDIX 2 

UHMB SI QSG ToRv2 April 2015                                                                                                                2 

 whether further action is required to address concerns, or collect further information, 

and; 

 where is there a lack of information and so a need for further consideration and/or 

information gathering. 

and; 

 provide local oversight and local, regional and national assurance reporting on Trust 

delivery of CQC Quality Improvement Plan 

 provide local oversight and local, regional and national assurance reporting on Trust 

delivery of the Kirkup Investigation Trust specific recommendations 

 co-ordinate the national and Trust specific Kirkup Investigation recommendations 

assurance and provide assurance at an NHS England sub-regional (Lancashire and 

Greater Manchester and North East and Cumbria) and North regional level 

 
 
Scope 
 
The QSG will be primarily concerned with NHS commissioned services: those services that 
are funded by the NHS, including relevant public health services: 
 

 from public, private, not for profit and third sector providers;  

 of primary, secondary, and tertiary services;  

 operating in the community and in acute settings; and  

 of mental health, dentistry, general practice, offender and military health services.  

 
The QSG does not have executive powers and will not: 
 

 be concerned with issues related to the quality of local government commissioned 

social care 

 performance manage Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) or any other 

organisations 

 interfere with the statutory roles of constituent organisations e.g. contractual powers or 

regulatory responsibilities  

 substitute the need for individual organisations to act promptly when pressing concerns 

become apparent. 

 
 
 
 

Page 42



APPENDIX 2 

UHMB SI QSG ToRv2 April 2015                                                                                                                2 

 
 
 
Membership 
 
The core membership of the QSG will include the following representatives: 
 

 NHS England Director of Commissioning Operations (Chair) 

 NHS England Director of Nursing and Quality 

 NHS England Medical Director 

 NHS England Deputy Director of Nursing, Quality and Safety  

 CCG Accountable Officers  - Cumbria and Lancashire North CCGs 

 Local Health Watch representative – Cumbria and Lancashire  

 CQC Compliance Manager  

 Monitor Compliance Manager 

 Monitor Improvement Director 

 Local Education and Training Board Director of Education Quality or Post Graduate 
Dean representative 

 NHS England Communications Team representative – as required 
 

 
 
Working Arrangements 
 
The Single Item QSG will meet monthly in the first instance. A review of frequency will be 
undertaken after the fourth QSG meeting. 
 
The NHS England Lancashire and Greater Manchester Sub- region will be responsible for: 
 

 providing facilities and technology to support the effective operation of QSGs 

 co-ordinating meeting agendas and papers 

 providing a record of the discussions and agreed actions and maintaining suitable 

records 

Meeting Frequency 

The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay Single Item QSG will meet Bi-monthly meetings  

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3  

 
 

The Morecambe Bay Investigation Report Committee 
Terms of Reference 

 
 
CONSTITUTION 
 
1. The Board of Directors approved the establishment of the Morecambe Bay 

Investigation Report Committee (known as “the Committee” in these terms of 
reference) for the purpose of:  

 
a) ensuring the Trust fully responds to and implements the recommendations set 

out in the Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (“the Kirkup report”). 
b) establishing clear commissioner representation and involvement to enable the 

Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG’s) to fulfil their statutory responsibilities 
in respect of the Kirkup report 

c) scrutinising and approving the detailed actions, timescales and responsibilities 
set out in an action plan that will implement the recommendations. The 
committee will have overall responsibility to ‘sign off’ the action plan. 

d) overseeing performance and the delivery of the action plan; in order to provide 
assurance and raise concerns (if appropriate) to the Trust Board of Directors 
and through their representatives to the CCG’s and regulators to enable all 
bodies to undertake their statutory duties 

e) ensuring that progress in delivery of the action plan is publically available and 
reported and that stakeholders are informed and involved as appropriate in the 
governance and delivery of actions. 

f) ensuring that, where appropriate, the recommendations are implemented in 
line with other key initiatives and take account of any relevant issues and 
previous learning raised in national / local reports, patient surveys, serious 
untoward incidents, clinical incidents and inquests. 

g) to determine those matters delegated to the Committee in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation and Standing Financial Instructions as set out in the 
Trust’s Code of Corporate Governance. 

 
The Committee is accountable to the Trust Board of Directors and any changes to these 
terms of reference must be approved by the Board of Directors.  
 
DUTIES 
 
2. In particular the Committee will: 

 
Comprehensive Action Plan  
 
a) oversee the development of a comprehensive and detailed action plan that 

takes account of the findings of the Kirkup report and in particular its 
recommendations. 

b) ensure that these actions are consistent with and  help to further develop and 
promote the vision, values and culture of clinical governance, quality, patient 
safety and clinical standards across the organisation. 

c) consider and review other national/local reports or initiatives that have a 
bearing on the recommendations set out in the report and determine if these 
should be incorporated into the action plan. 

Page 45



APPENDIX 3  

d) ensure that clinical leaders and service users are engaged and involved in the 
development and delivery of the action plan. 

 
Performance management  

 
e) establish a Kirkup Report Implementation group (“the KRIG”) that will take day 

to day responsibility to implement and deliver the agreed action plan. 
f) ensure that the KRIG adopts a programme management approach and links to 

the organisations Programme Management Office to achieve coherence and 
compatibility with other key initiatives. 

g) receive progress reports and assurance from the KRIG on  the delivery of key 
projects included in the action plan. 

h) require the KRIG to provide exception reports to the Chairman of the 
Committee between regular meetings if issues are identified that impact on 
delivery of the action plan thus enabling the committee to take necessary 
steps   

i) welcome and encourage the contribution and comments from stakeholders 
and service users in respect of the action plan and implementation of 
recommendations and wherever reasonable to do so incorporate within the 
plans. 

j) approve and monitor communication and media activities in respect of the 
Trust’s actions and progress in implementing the Kirkup report 
recommendations. 

k) Provide a monthly report to the Trust Board of Directors, the CCG’s, to NHS 
England and to Regulators and for the Quality Surveillance processes on 
delivery of the action plan including exception reports and escalation of issues 
that cannot be resolved at a local level. 
 

Finance, Workforce and Quality 
 
l) Where a matter relating to implementation of the recommendations has a 

significant financial, workforce or quality implication the Committee will refer 
that matter to the relevant Assurance Committee. 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
3. The Morecambe Bay Investigation Report Committee membership will include:- 

 
Anne Garden - NED Chair 
Melanie Weeks - NED Vice Chair 
David Walker - Medical Director 
Sue Smith – Chief Nurse 
Xxx – Public Governor 
Cath Broderick - Independent PPI representative 
Fiona Wise - Monitor representative  
Family representation - TBC 
Service User representative(s) - TBC 

NHS Lancashire North CCG 
Dr Mike Flanagan - Secondary Care Doctor for the Governing Body 
Margaret Williams - Lead Nurse - Integrated Governance and Quality Improvement 

NHS Cumbria CCG 
Geoff Jolliffe - GP Lead Furness locality and Interim Clinical chair  
Eleanor Hodgson - Director for Children and Families 
 
   

Page 46



APPENDIX 3  

 
5. All members may nominate deputies to attend on their behalf 

 
6. The Chair of the Committee is the Non-Executive Director appointed by the Chair of 

the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust.  The Deputy 
Chair of the Committee is the Non-Executive Director appointed by the Chair of the 
University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust. If the Chair is not 
present, then the Deputy Chair shall chair the meeting.  

 
ATTENDANCE 
 

7. The following will be in attendance: 
 
a) Tina Turner – Divisional General Manager – Women and Children’s Division 
b) Judith Griffin – Senior Programme Advisor 
c) Louise Jones –Communication Manager 

 
 
RESPONSIBILITY OF MEMBERS AND ATTENDEES 

8. Members of the Morecambe Bay Investigation Report Committee have a  
responsibility to: 
 
a) attend at least 80% of meetings, having read all papers beforehand; 
 
b) act as ‘champions’, disseminating information and good practice as 

 appropriate; 
 
c) identify agenda items, for consideration by the Chair, to the Lead Director / 

 Secretary at least 12 days before the meeting; 
 
d) prepare and submit papers for a meeting, using the format prescribed by the 

 Trust Board Secretary, at least 5 clear working days before the meeting; 
 
e) if unable to attend, send their apologies to the Chair and Secretary prior to the 

 meeting and, if appropriate, seek the approval of the Chair to send a deputy 
 to attend on their behalf; 

 
f) when matters are discussed in confidence at the meeting, to maintain such 

 confidences; 
 
g) declare any conflicts of interest / potential conflicts of interest in accordance 

 with the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust’s 
 policies and procedures; 

 
h) at the start of the meeting, declare any conflicts of interest / potential conflicts 

 of interest in respect of specific agenda items (even if such a declaration has 
 previously been made in accordance with the University Hospitals of 
 Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust’s policies and procedures).  

 
 
QUORUM 
 
8. A quorum will be three members, of whom: 

 
a)     at least one should be a Non-Executive Director. 

Page 47



APPENDIX 3  

b)     at least one should be an Executive Director. 
c)     at least one should be a non-voting co-opted member. 
 

9. When considering if the meeting is quorate, full members only can be counted, 
deputies and attendees cannot be considered as contributing to the quorum. 

  
FREQUENCY 
 
10.  Meetings will normally take place monthly and at least two weeks before a Board of 

Directors meeting (so as to allow this Committee to report to the Board of Directors). 
 

11. The business of each meeting will be transacted within a maximum of two and a half 
hours. 

 
AUTHORITY 
  
12. The Committee is authorised by the Board of Directors: 

 
a) to determine, investigate and review any activity within its terms of reference. 
b) to establish and approve the terms of reference of such sub-committees, 

groups or task and finish groups as it believes are necessary to fulfil its terms 
of reference. 

 
13. The Committee is only able to commit financial resources in respect of matters 

identified in these terms of reference and as set out in the Scheme of Delegation and 
Standing Financial Instructions. The Director of Finance must be informed of any 
decision requiring use of resources. Any other matters requiring a decision on the 
use of resources are to be referred to the Trust Board and/or the Director of Finance. 
 

DECISION MAKING 
 

14. Wherever possible members of the Committee will seek to make decisions and 
recommendations based on consensus. 
 

15. Where this is not possible then the Chair of the meeting will ask for members to 
vote using a show of hands, provided that nothing in the way of business is 
conducted is prohibited by the standing orders of the University Hospitals of 
Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust. 
 

16. In the event of a formal vote the Chair will clarify what members are being asked 
to vote on – the ‘motion’. Subject to meeting being quorate a simple majority of 
members present will prevail.  In the event of a tied vote, the chair of the meeting 
may have a second and deciding vote. 

 
17. The Trust’s Standing Orders and Standing Financial Instructions apply to the 

operation of this Committee. 
 
REPORTING 
 
19.  The Morecambe Bay Investigation Report Committee will have the following reporting 

responsibilities: 
 

a) to ensure that the minutes of its meetings are formally recorded and submitted 
to the Board of Directors.  These minutes shall be accompanied by a 
summary prepared by the chair of the meeting outlining the key issues 

Page 48



APPENDIX 3  

discussed at the meeting and those issues that need to be brought to the 
attention of the Board of Directors.   

 
b) to produce those assurance and performance management reports listed in 

the Committee’s annual work programme which has been agreed with, and 
are required by, the Board of Directors. 

 
c) any items of specific concern, or which require the Board of Directors 

approval, will be subject to a separate report. 
 
d) to provide exception reports to the Board of Directors highlighting key 

developments / achievements or potential issues. 
 
e) through its Commissioner Representatives the committee will ensure that the 

above reports are available to be included in the governance and reporting 
systems of each CCG. 

 
f) through the Governor Representative the committee will ensure that the 

above reports are available to be included in the governance and reporting 
systems of the Council of Governors for the Trust 
. 

g) the Board of Directors will ensure that the reports submitted by the committee 
are available to Regulators including Monitor, the Care Quality Commission 
and NHS England and that these reports are included in the business of the 
Quality Surveillance Group. This reporting structure will be developed into a 
framework to provide a single version and regular comprehensive report to 
meet the requirements of these organisations  including for performance and 
assurance matters. 

 
h) to ensure that arrangements are in place to provide families, members of the 

public, members of staff and other interested stakeholders with up to date, 
transparent and comprehensive reports on progress. 

 
i) The reporting arrangements will be reviewed within 3 months of the first 

meeting of the committee to ensure they are effective, transparent and 
comprehensive and that they meet requirements.  

 
REPORTING GROUPS 
 
20.  The Kirkup Report Implementation Group (“the KRIG”) 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
21.  The Medical Director is a member of the Committee and has corporate responsibility 

for:  
 

a) liaising with the Chair on all aspects of the work of the Committee, including 
providing advice. 

 
b) ensuring the Committee acts in accordance with standing orders and the 

scheme of reservation and delegation. 
 

c) identifying an officer to undertake the role of Secretary. 
 

d) overseeing the delivery of the Secretary’s duties. 

Page 49



APPENDIX 3  

 
22. The Secretary of the Committee will be responsible for: 

 
a) attending the meeting. 

 
b) ensuring correct and formal minutes are taken in the format prescribed by the 

Trust Board Secretary and, once agreed by the Chair, distributing minutes to 
the members and submitting a copy to the Trust Board Secretary. 
 

c) keeping a record of matters arising and issues to be carried forward. 
 
d) producing an action list following each meeting and ensuring any outstanding 

action is carried forward on the action list until complete. 
 

e) producing a schedule of meetings to be agreed for each calendar year and 
making the necessary arrangements for confirming these dates and booking 
appropriate rooms and facilities. 

 
f) providing appropriate support to the Chair, Lead Director and the Committee 

members. 
 

g) providing notice of each meeting and requesting agenda items no later than 14 
days before a meeting. 
 

h) agreeing the final agenda with the Chair and Lead Director prior to sending the 
agenda and distributing papers to members no later than 3 clear days before 
the meeting. 

 
i) ensuring the Annual Work Programme is up to date and distributed at each 

meeting. 
 
j) ensuring the papers of the Committee are filed in accordance with the 

University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust’s policies and 
procedures. 

 
 
REVIEW 
 
23.  The Committee is established for a period of 12 months for the purposes set out 

above. Terms of Reference will be reviewed after 6 months with recommendations 
on any changes submitted to the Board of Directors. 

 
Date Approved and issued    
Version Number:      
Next Review:      
To be reviewed by:      
To be approved by:     
Executive Responsibility 

Page 50



APPENDIX 4 

 
 

 
The Morecambe Bay Investigation ‘Kirkup’ Report Implementation Group 

 
                                                    Terms of Reference 
 
CONSTITUTION 
 
1. The Board of Directors, via the Morecambe Bay Investigation Report sub-committee, 

hereafter known as ‘the committee’, approved the establishment of the Morecambe 
Bay Investigation Report Implementation Group (known as “KRIG” in these terms of 
reference) for the purpose of:  

 
a) developing and implementing a project plan which addresses  the 

recommendations set out in the Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation 
(“the Kirkup report”) 
 

b) ensuring that this plan describes the detailed actions, timescales and 
responsibilities that will ensure recommendations are fully responded to. 

 
c) proposing additional actions as may be required to fully address the body and 

spirit of the ‘Kirkup’ report, and agreeing these, and any revisions as may be 
considered necessary, with the committee.   

 
d) ensuring that, where appropriate, and as agreed and defined by the 

committee, the action plan is developed in line with other key initiatives 
including the RCOG report and to take account of relevant issues raised in 
national / local reports, patient surveys, serious untoward incidents, clinical 
incidents and inquests. 
 

e) ensuring timely and well-coordinated delivery of all actions working with and 
involving project leads in the work of the KRIG. 

 
f) establishing comprehensive and auditable processes to enable scrutiny of 

performance and the delivery of actions by the committee; in order for them to 
provide assurance to the Board of Directors. 

 
g) ensuring that this progress is reported regularly to the committee, and 

demonstrates the ways in which stakeholders are informed and engaged as 
appropriate in the governance and delivery of actions. 

 
h) establishing and building a comprehensive portfolio of evidence in support of 

actions taken and the improvements in place. 
 
2. The KRIG is directly accountable to the Morecambe Bay Investigation ‘Kirkup’ Report 

Sub-Committee, and any changes to these terms of reference must be approved by 
this sub-committee.  

  
DUTIES 
 
1. In particular the KRIG will: 

 
Comprehensive Project Plan  

Page 51



APPENDIX 4 

 
a) develop a comprehensive and detailed project plan that takes account of the 

findings of the Kirkup report and in particular its recommendations. 
 

b) ensure that these projects and actions are consistent with and  help to further 
develop and promote the vision, values and culture of clinical governance, 
quality, patient safety and clinical standards across the organisation; 

. 
c) ensure that clinical leaders and service users are engaged and involved in the 

development and delivery of the action plan. 
 

d) secure and manage the funding and resources necessary to deliver the project 
plans and associated actions. 

 
e) develop a comprehensive communication and engagement plan that will apply 

to service users, families, public and staff as well as statutory partners and 
stakeholders and the media.  

 
Performance management  

 
f) adopt a programme management approach to implement and deliver the 

agreed project plan, linking to the Trust Programme Management Office 
(PMO) to achieve coherence and compatibility with other key initiatives. 
 

g) establish task and finish groups, reference groups, and work streams as 
required to ensure timely delivery of actions. 

 
h) prepare progress reports for the committee, describing delivery of key actions 

and work streams included in the project plan. 
 

i) prepare and provide exception reports to the Chair of the sub-committee 
between regular meetings if issues are identified that impact on delivery of the 
action plan thus enabling the committee to take necessary steps. 

   
j) work with Independent PPI experts and others to ensure that there is 

appropriate contribution and involvement from stakeholders and service users 
in respect of the action plan and implementation of recommendations. 

 
k) propose and coordinate communication and media activities in respect of the 

Trust’s actions and progress in implementing the Kirkup report 
recommendations. 

 
l) produce a monthly ‘single version’ report that will be submitted to the 

committee, Board of Directors, commissioners, regulators and other 
stakeholders and which will be publically available. This report to include 
progress and exception reports and evidence that provides assurance on 
actions implemented. 
 

Finance 
 
m) Where a matter relating to implementation of the recommendations has a 

significant financial implication the KRIG will refer that matter to the 
Committee or for further consideration by the Finance Committee as 
appropriate. 

 

Page 52



APPENDIX 4 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
2. The Morecambe Bay Investigation Report ‘Kirkup’ Implementation Group will include 

the following members: 
 

a) David Walker -  Medical Director 
b) David Wilkinson – Director of Human Resources 
c) Owen Galt – Clinical Director, Women and Children’s Division (WACS)  
d) Tina Turner – Divisional General Manager - WACS  
e) Judith Griffin – Senior Programme Advisor 
f) Margaret Williams – CCG representative 
g) Fiona Wise – Monitor representative 
h) David Burch – Consultant Obstetrician 
i) Sascha Wells - Head of Midwifery 
j) Lindsey Lewis - Project Manager 
k) Louise Jones – Communication Manager 

 
3. Project leads and/or project sponsors may also be in attendance at each KRIG 

meeting or invited for specific meetings to report on progress and issues. 
 
4. The Chair of the KRIG is the UHMB Medical Director; The Deputy Chair of the KRIG 

is the WACS DGM. If the Chair is not present, then the Deputy Chair will chair the 
meeting. 

 
ATTENDANCE 
 
5. The group will identify other individuals who will be invited to attend in support of the     

work of the group.         
 
QUORUM 
 
6. A quorum will be five.  Of these members, then one will be the chair or the vice chair.
  
FREQUENCY 
 
7.   The KRIG will meet fortnightly in the first instance. 
 
AUTHORITY 
 
8. The Morecambe Bay Investigation KRIG is authorised by The Morecambe Bay 

Investigation Sub-Committee 
 

DECISION MAKING 
 
9. The KRIG will operate in accordance with the instructions of the sub-committee. 
 
REPORTING 
 
10.   The Morecambe Bay Investigation Report ‘Kirkup’ Implementation Group will be         

accountable formally to The UHMB Trust Board, reporting directly to a specifically 
established sub-committee of the Board, the Morecambe Bay Investigation ‘Kirkup’ 
Report Sub-Committee, which will offer assurance and oversight to the Trust 
response to the recommendations of the report.  

 
 

Page 53



APPENDIX 4 

REPORTING GROUPS 
 
11. The Kirkup Report Project Groups  

 
a) Education, Learning and development 
b) Clinical and Women and Children’s 
c) Workforce 
d) Governance 
e) Estates 
f) Communication and Engagement 
g) Partner organisation ( TBC) 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 

12.         All meetings of the KRIG will be provided with full administrative support from a 
dedicated KRIG administrator.       

 
REVIEW 
 
13.  Terms of Reference will normally be reviewed annually, with recommendations on 

 changes submitted to the sub-committee. 
 
Date Approved and issued    
Version Number:      
Next Review:      
To be reviewed by:      
To be approved by:     
Executive Responsibility 

Page 54



March 2015 

Maternity review 

Terms of reference 

Context 

1. Births in this country are up by almost a quarter in the last decade, and are now at their highest 
in 40 years. Having a baby is the most common reason for hospital admission in England.  
 

2. Recent advances in NHS care - including assisted conception technologies - mean we are now 
seeing increasing numbers of multiple births, preterm deliveries, older mothers, and expectant 
women who have pre-existing medical problems.  

 

3. Whilst for the majority of women and their families, having a baby is a joyous experience, for 
some there are significant risks, poor experiences, and still too often heartache and loss as seen 
in the tragic events at the University Hospitals Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust. Stillbirth 
rates, though declining in recent years, are higher than in many other high-income countries, 
and there is also wide variation in the care provided to women across the country.  
 

4. Research by the Women’s Institute and the NCT suggests that whilst only a quarter of women 
want to give birth in a hospital obstetrics unit, over 85% actually do so. Provision of midwife-led 
units has increased in recent years does not provide all women an appropriate choice. The 
latest NICE guidance makes clear  that births in midwife-led units (both freestanding and 
alongside consultant led obstetric-units) and homebirths can be as safe, for low risk 
pregnancies, as those in consultant led obstetric units, and that these result in less intervention.   

 
5. Maternity care costs the NHS around £2.6 billion in 2012-13, a rising share of the NHS budget. 

35% of all clinical negligence claims received last year in the NHS, by value, were for obstetrics. 
The total cost of maternity clinical negligence cover in 2012-13 was £482 million - 20% of the 
total budget. 

 
Scope and purpose  

 
6. The NHS Five Year Forward View committed to a review of maternity services to ensure they 

develop in a safe, responsive and efficient manner.  
 
7. The Review will develop proposals for the future shape of modern, high quality and sustainable 

maternity services across England. The proposals should, in particular, seek to achieve three 
complementary objectives: 

 

 first, review the UK and international evidence and make recommendations on safe and 
efficient models of maternity services, including midwife-led units  

 

 second, ensure that the NHS supports and enables women to make safe and appropriate 
choices of maternity care for them and their babies 

Page 55



 

 third, support NHS staff including midwives to provide responsive care.  
 

8. In developing proposals, the Review will pay particular attention to the challenges of achieving 
the above objectives in more geographically isolated areas, as highlighted in the Morecambe 
Bay Investigation report.  

 

Chair and review panel membership 

9. The Review will be led by an external Chair, supported by a diverse panel of experts and other 

stakeholders with an interest in improving the quality of maternity services. The appointment of 

the Chair and other review panel members will be announced shortly.  

Key principles  

10. In taking forward its work, the Review will be expected to:  

 

 engage widely, openly and transparently at all times; 

 adopt an evidence-based approach, including making use of international comparisons; 

 promote the importance of inter-professional cooperation in achieving good outcomes; 

 make strategic links with other key programmes relevant to the scope of this review, 

including working closely with the recent review announced in Scotland; 

 consider the costs, benefits and implementation challenges of proposals, including the 

workforce; and 

 seek to achieve a broad consensus around final proposals. 

Timeframe 

11. The review will be expected to conclude and publish proposals by the end of the year.  

Page 56



Agenda Item 39 2015/16 
 

 

 
 
  

UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF MORECAMBE BAY NHS FOUNDATION TRUST 

MORECAMBE BAY INVESTIGATION - IMPLEMENTATION OF 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 

Date of Meeting: 9 June  2015 

Title of Report: Implementation of the Recommendations of the Report of the 
Morecambe Bay Investigation – Monthly Progress and Highlight 
Report – May 2015 

Status:  Private 

Report of: David Walker 
Medical Director 

Prepared by and 
contact details: 

Tina Turner & Judith Griffin 
Tina.turner@mbht.nhs.uk & Judith.griffin@mbht.nhs.uk  

Purpose of the 
Report: 

To inform the Sub-committee of the progress with the projects and 
actions that are in place to implement the recommendations of the 
Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (the Kirkup Report) and 
to highlight key achievements, issues and risks. 
 
Following discussion, comment and approval by the Sub-committee 
the report will be finalised as the ‘single version’ monthly report that 
will be publically available and be shared with the Board of Directors, 
Commissioners, Regulators and NHS England. 
 

For 
Decision 

X For 
Assurance 

X For 
information 

 
 

Page 57

mailto:Tina.turner@mbht.nhs.uk
mailto:Judith.griffin@mbht.nhs.uk


Agenda Item 39 2015/16 
 

Executive Summary: 
 

Implementation of the actions required to deliver the 
recommendations in the Kirkup Report are being managed through a 
programme of 5 projects 
 

 Education, Training and Development 

 Clinical Quality 

 Workforce 

 Governance 

 Estates 
 
A separate project, responsible for Communication and Engagement, 
has also has been established. 
 
Progress includes reporting on the project arrangements being 
established as well as planned actions and, where these have been 
achieved or are on target for achievement.  Risks and issues are 
included. 
 
Each project has developed a detailed project plan. These have been 
incorporated into a single workbook. The plans include evidence of 
actions taken since January 2012 which demonstrate progress 
against the recommendations that have April and June deadlines. 
Projects which have a longer timescale have or will undertake a 
similar exercise to establish the baseline against which new actions 
are determined. 
 
The sub-committee at its meeting will receive a presentation from 
each of the Project leads and will be asked to review and comment 
on the project action plans. These comments will then be included 
into the work to finalise the action plans.  
 
It is intended that the Executive Sponsor for each project will approve 
these by 15 June and then at the KRIG meeting on 16 June the plans 

will be ‘signed off’ for submission at the Board of Directors meeting 

on 24 June. 
 
Sub-committee members may wish to discuss and agree if and how 
they want to approve the action plans or if they want to  to delegate 
sign-off to the KRIG and then for formal ratification at the July 
meeting.  
 
It is proposed that further work takes place to agree the outcome 
measures that will provide assurance to families, service users, the 
Board of Directors and Regulators that the recommendations are 
implemented and embedded. Subject to agreement at the sub-
committee planning for this will be taken forward in parallel with the 
finalisation of the action plans and will form a key part of the 
engagement project plans. 

Recommendation(s):  
1. To receive the final draft versions of the project plans and provide 

comment and contribution to enable these to be finalised. 
2. To discuss and advise if the sub-committee wishes to delegate 

‘sign-off’ of the final action plans to the KRIG. 

Page 58



Agenda Item 39 2015/16 
 

3.  To discuss and agree the approach to involve stakeholders in 
agreeing the outcome measures. 

 

Implications and Monitoring Assurance Framework Summary 
 

Links to Trust Values: - Please indicate below with an (X) those values that this report 
relates to 

Our patients should be treated with compassion, dignity and respect. Their experience 
is our most important measure of achievement 

X 

Our people are the ones who make the difference. They understand what we value, 
believe in it themselves and portray this through their work  

X 

Our partnerships make us strong. By investing in them, we will deliver the best 
possible care to our communities 

X 

Our performance drives our business. Providing consistently safe high quality care is 
how we define ourselves and our success 

X 

Our promotion of innovation and technology will enable us to better meet the 
challenges of the future 

 

Links to Strategic and Divisional Objectives(s) - Please insert details below 

 
 

Links to Risks on Board Assurance Framework (BAF),Corporate (CRR) or Divisional 
Risk Register (DRR) - Please insert details below including the Risk Reference Number 
(The BAF and CRR can be found on the Governance Webpages) 

 
 

Please indicate below with an (X) that all areas have been considered 

Have all implications been 
considered?  

Any Action Required? Comment 

Yes 
Detail in report 

N/A 

Quality and Safety    

Legal   

Financial X  

Human Resources X  

IM&T   

Estates   

Patients and Carers X  

Engagement and 
Communication 

X 
 

Equality and Diversity   

Previous Meetings  Please insert the name of the committee/group and date the paper was 
presented and what the outcome was e.g. approved, noted etc. 

Morecambe Bay Investigation Sub-Committee  
17 April 2015 

Version Control:- Please insert the final version control number e.g. 1.0; 

 

Page 59



Agenda Item 39 2015/16 
 

 
Monthly Progress & Highlight Report - June 2015 
University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  
MBI Sub-Committee (9 June 2015)                 
 
 

 

 
 

MORECAMBE BAY INVESTIGATION SUB-COMMITTEE 
Monthly Progress & Highlight Report June 2015 

 

Purpose 

To report on the actions and progress with the implementation of the recommendations in 
the Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (The Kirkup Report) that are required to be 
implemented by the Trust.  

This is the second monthly ‘single version’ report and covers the period to up until 16 June 
2015. It will be submitted to the Board of Directors of the Trust, to Clinical Commissioning 
Groups, NHS England, Monitor and the Care Quality Commission. It will be shared with key 
stakeholders and be publically available on the Trust’s internet site. 

The report and attachments have been considered and agreed by the sub-committee that 
has been established to oversee the implementation of recommendations. 

In addition to this short narrative a number of documents are included: - 

 A highlight report for each of the projects  

 An action plan workbook that includes all 6 projects plus a high level programme 
action plan  

Actions: 12 May to 16 June 2015  

Significant progress has been made in finalising the arrangements to ensure that the Trust 
will fully implement the actions required by the recommendations in the Kirkup report. 

During the reporting period the focus has been on four key elements: - 

1. To finalise the project and governance arrangements that will drive forward and 
oversee the required actions. Each project group is now in place and membership 
confirmed and meetings planned or taking place. Detail of the arrangements is set 
out in the monthly progress and highlight report that was considered by the Board of 
Directors at its meeting on 27 May 2015 and is available on the Trusts Intranet site. 
 

2. To develop and finalise the action plans for each project. At the meeting of the sub-
committee on 9 June Project Leads attended with each presenting an update on their 
project arrangements and provided the committee with a draft of their action plans. 
This enabled the sub-committee members to comment and contribute to the Action 
Plans before they are finalised and submitted to the Board of Directors at its meeting 
on 24 June 2015 and subsequently shared more widely. Each project has required 
scoping including what is already in place and what new actions are needed. To 
enable the sub-committee to consider and contribute towards the actions and 
outcomes identified in each plan a further week of additional development has been 
agreed which will enable comments and suggestions to be taken into account. Action 
Plans will be finalised and ‘signed off’ by the Kirkup Report Implementation Group 
(KRIG) at its meeting on 16 June 2015. 
 

Page 60



Agenda Item 39 2015/16 
 

 
Monthly Progress & Highlight Report - June 2015 
University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  
MBI Sub-Committee (9 June 2015)                 
 
 

3. As part of the development of the action plans work has taken place to identify and 
the developments and changes that have taken place in the Trust since 1 January 
2012 that are relevant and will contribute towards the implementation of 
recommendations. This stocktake of actions already taken will be further developed 
to identify evidence and key performance indicators (KPI’s) that will be used to 
measure the outcomes to be agreed with stakeholders in the next month. 
 

4. To identify and report on the actions already taken in the Trust that directly relate to 
the recommendations that have a June 2015 timescale. The detail of this is included 
with the relevant project plans in the attached workbook.  
 

It is important to note that as the projects and programme of actions are taken forward they 
are expected to continue to evolve. This may be due to new information arising from early 
actions; as a result of involvement from families, service users and other stakeholder; to 
meet new ambitions for example to roll out some of the initiatives and actions across the 
Trust; in response to national and local developments and guidance.  

In addition to the above key actions a Programme Risk and Issues Register is being 
developed. Each project will also identify its own risks and mitigating actions. The sub-
committee at its meeting on 9 June received an update on the risk register and will formally 
receive this at the meeting in July. 

The Board Assurance framework has been updated to include the response to Kirkup 
Report. 

Communication and Engagement 
 
Work continues to finalise the Communication and Engagement Action Plan. The 
Independent Expert in Patient and Public Engagement, engaged by the Trust, has 
established contact with a range of stakeholders especially families affected by the matters 
investigated by Dr Kirkup but also with other service users. The intention is to identify how 
individuals and groups want to be engaged and involved in the programme of work. 
 
The appointment of a family member to the sub-committee and who was able to attend the 
meetings of the sub-committee in May and June is particularly valuable and welcome. 
 
It is intended to finalise the engagement elements of the Communication and Engagement 
Plan by the end of June to be presented at the sub-committee meeting on 10 July 2015. 
 
Progress and key deliverables in this project will be included in the future monthly progress 
and highlight reports. 
 
Planned Activities – 17 June to 10 July 2015 
 
A number of actions are in place or planned to take place that will be reported to the next 
meeting of the Sub-committee on 10 July.  These include: -  
 

1. Reviewing each of the projects and establishing necessary alignment with other 
strategic developments including the report of the Royal College of Obstetricians and 
Gynaecologists (RCOG) and Better care Together. 

2. Reviewing the recommendations in the Kirkup report that are for the wider NHS  

Page 61



Agenda Item 39 2015/16 
 

 
Monthly Progress & Highlight Report - June 2015 
University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  
MBI Sub-Committee (9 June 2015)                 
 
 

(No’s 19-44) and establishing what actions are or may be required by the Trust and, 
where appropriate, incorporating these into the project plans.  

3. Reviewing the actions across each of the project plans and ensuring that these are 
coherent and aligned with each other 

4. Finalising the Engagement Action Plan. 
5. Exploring opportunities to engage and involve families, service users and 

stakeholders in finalising the outcome measures that will be used to provide the 
required assurance that recommendations have been implemented and that actions 
are embedded and sustainable. 

6. Continuing to establish the strategic partnership(s) 
7. Further develop and finalise the Programme Risk and Issues Register for 

presentation at the next sub-committee 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 62



 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Clinical Quality project 

Project Lead Sascha Wells Project Sponsor Sue smith 

 

 

 

Progress Description: 
Recommendation 5 and 6 are completed However as a wider piece of 
work the project will be extended across the whole organisation over the 
next few months 
 

Key Actions since last report/ Milestones achieved 
Updated and finalised action plan 
Group membership and dates of meetings finalised 
 

Milestones not achieved in planned timeframe and rationale 
None 

Actions to be completed in next reporting month 
Review audits undertaken and ensure action plans in place for areas 
requiring improvement 
Meeting with MIAA and terms of reference for assurance audit has been 
agreed for the 9th July 

Issues Log 

Description Mitigating Action 

Duplication of actions across other projects groups 

Representation from CQ 

group on other project 

groups to minimise 

duplication 

Top Project Risks 
 

Description Mitigating Action 

Backfill for safeguarding portfolio holder 
6 month secondment in 
place 

 
Outcomes 

 

Reduced perinatal mortality and morbidity 
Reduced admissions of unexpected neonates to NNU 
Increased FFT scores for women’s and children’s services 
 

Agenda Item 52a (ii) 2015/16

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Workforce 

Project Lead John Bannister Project Sponsor Foluke Ajayi 

 

 

 

 

 

Progress Description: 
Recruitment and retention Strategy approved by Workforce Committee.. 
Leadership structure for WACS reviewed. 
Review of leadership role descriptions underway. 
Action plan reviewed and updated with completed actions described 
against each recommendations since 2012.  
Evidence against completed actions collated. 
 

Key Actions since last report/ Milestones achieved 
Complete role description review. 
 

Milestones not achieved in planned timeframe and rationale 
Not applicable 

Actions to be completed in next reporting month 
Commence divisional plans for implementation of R&R Strategy. 
 

Issues Log 

Description Mitigating Action 
 None reported  

Top Project Risks 
 

Description Mitigating Action 

Duplication across work streams and wider 
organisation 
 

Work closely with other 
work streams 

External factors (BCT, RCOG etc) 
Ensure awareness in all 
discussions of impact of 
external factors 

Regulatory intervention with the Trust and other 
partner organisations 
 

Maintain awareness 

Re-validation of Nursing and Midwifery staff 
 

Maintain awareness 

Agenda Item 52a (iii) 2015/16

P
age 65



 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Workforce 

Project Lead John Bannister Project Sponsor Foluke Ajayi 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Outcomes 
Clinical leaders have current job descriptions with clear roles and responsibilities.  Regular appraisals with staff and clinical director.  Regular proactive 
team meetings with clear decision making and action planning in line with divisional objectives.  Regularly appraised team member with clear aims and 
objectives. Team members working closely together and working closely across specialities to deliver safe excellent patient care. 
Improved recruitment and retention of staff ensuring staffing levels are in line with national guidance and acuity levels.  UHMB is a preferred place of 
employment. 
 
Consistent high quality care provided across the Trust. 
Staff able to work on any Trust site where short term needs necessitate. 
Improved recruitment and retention of staff ensuring staffing levels are in line with national guidance and acuity levels.   
 
All middle managers, senior managers and non-executives have a clear understanding of their roles and responsibilities in relation to quality. 
 

Agenda Item 52a (iii) 2015/16

P
age 66



 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Governance 

Project Lead Val Wilson Project Sponsor Mary Aubrey 

 

 

Progress Description: 
June has been a busy month as the Governance team supports the Trusts preparation for the forthcoming CQC inspection.  The Corporate Governance Leads have met with the Project Lead 
to refine the action plan by adding more detailed actions and completion dates.  Previous improvements (pre-Kirkup report) have been identified and added to the action plan, and 
Corporate Governance Leads are producing narratives to ensure the improvement journey to date is clearly identified so that the context and ‘fit’ of the action plan within the wholesale 
overhaul of corporate and clinical governance is clear. Most of the identified actions are well-underway (see below) and the team are actively engaged in clinical areas to support our 
clinicians and support staff with embedding the on-going changes and improvements in relation to governance which will continue to enhance the culture of open and honest approaches 
to promoting and maintaining safety, and responding empathetically and effectively to users and staff, when outcomes are not as expected.   
 
The team is built on an ethos of continual improvement, and it is assuring that new initiatives are continuing to be developed in conjunction with improvements across the Trust.  It is 
anticipated that new actions will continue to be identified, and that the Governance team will also continue to support the work of other improvement work streams across the Trust. 

Key Actions since last report/ Milestones achieved 

Action 
Description 

11.6.1 Review/Revise training package for incident reporting developed – this is an electronic package for all staff – next steps are to liaise with Learning and Development Team to 
have mandated and added to all staff TMS. 

11.7.1 Training package developed and management training is on-going. 

11.7.2 Minimum training requirement for divisions identified – divisions invited to identify other staff if required. 

11.9 Develop ‘deep dives’ as part of learning to improve bulletin – VTE targeted in latest bulletin – plans for complaints/claims and health and safety in future. 

12.41 External Human Factors training undertaken by cross Bay Multi-disciplinary divisional teams – excellent feedback received from staff and external facilitators. 

12.42 Trust Human Factors Lead appointed. 

13.01  Review of complaints process against National and Ombudsman standards complete – Trust complaints process found to be fully compliant. 

13.51  Patient relations training package refreshed to include ‘best practice’ advice in relation to consistent and supportive management of complainants to include quality in terms of 
content. 

13.61/2 Pilot of complaints management audit tool developed and underway. 

13.7 1 Meeting with Patient experience manager to develop ‘meet and greet’ taken place – further developments to be planned following liaison with leads of other initiatives have 
taken place. 

15.7.2 Internal Audit proposal developed and submitted to Audit Committee. 

Agenda Item 52a (iv) 2015/16

P
age 67



 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Governance 

Project Lead Val Wilson Project Sponsor Mary Aubrey 

 

 

 

  

15.18 1 Initial conversation around staff engagement with Health and Safety with LIA lead undertaken – dates planned and initial plans for engagement expanded. 

Milestones not achieved in planned timeframe and rationale 
13.  2 Streamline reporting to divisions/quality committee in line with national KPI’s.   

National KPI has not yet been released.  However, the department has undertaken a scope of all current reporting to Divisions and has developed a revised report based on 
previous KPIs.  Once the national KPIs are released this will be quickly implemented to support ward to board reporting through one standardised reporting system.  This 
does not impact on the current robust reporting management and learning from complaints, concerns and PALS--date needs to be amended through KRIG to end of 
September 2015 

Actions to be completed in next reporting month 

9.19 1 Failure to follow guidelines task and finish group to be identified. 

11.62 Liaise with Learning and Development for inclusion on TMS. 

12.16 2 Identify more robust process for capturing Trust lessons learnt themes for RCA. 

13.6 3 Implement audit of complaints management. 

15.52 Review of Trust Board strategic function. 

15.7 3 Proposal for internal audit programme - consultation via Audit Committee. 

15.8 1 Review of last year internal audit recommendations. 

15.12 2 Roll out Ulysses audit module to divisions with support. 

15.12 4 Develop training package to support electronic audit module. 

15. 12.5 Identify training target groups for audit module. 

15.13 4 Audits to have action plans - 100% compliance level 1 and 2. 

15.15 2 
 

Develop sustainability plan for   compliance with NHS protect security standards for 2014/15 and develop sustainability plan for on-going compliance to include standardised 
reporting ward to board based on NHS standards. 

15.15. 3 Develop standardised reporting for NHS protect standards ward to board. 

15.16.3 Develop escalation process for non-attendance at security meetings. 

15.18.2 Implement big conversation. 

Agenda Item 52a (iv) 2015/16

P
age 68



 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Governance 

Project Lead Val Wilson Project Sponsor Mary Aubrey 

 

 

 

Issues Log 

Description Mitigating Action 

 None identified  

Description Mitigating Action 

 5. Insufficient resource to implement 
necessary initiatives and improvements – no 
resource to undertaken identified RCA training 
requirement 

TBC 

10.  Current Trust work-streams may overlap 
resulting in potential conflict or wasted 
resources 

Meetings to be confirmed 

2. Failure to meet the expectations of 
stakeholders 

User involvement to be confirmed 

Agenda Item 52a (iv) 2015/16

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Education, Learning & Development 

Project Lead Kathy Duffy Project Sponsor David Wilkinson 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Progress Description: Milestones not achieved in planned timeframe and rationale 
Scoping of the overall approach has taken place and a detailed three 
phased approach has been developed and approved at sub-committee. 
Action plan has been developed and further refined. 
Mandatory TNA has been reviewed and refined. 
Data collection has taken place to support the phase 1 gap analysis. 
 

Detailed action plans for phases 2&3 will be informed by the outputs 
from phase 1 
2.8.4 Senior Divisional review of report for accuracy 
2.8.5  Produce detailed analysis of shortfall in skills and knowledge 

Key Actions since last report/ Milestones achieved Actions to be completed in next reporting month 
Proposal for a three-phased approach has been presented at Kirkup sub-
committee and Workforce Assurance Committee and has received support 
from both groups. 
Action plan has been developed to support the 3-phased approach 
Initial resource requirements to manage the project have been submitted 
to the Kirkup project team 
Task and finish group has been established and has met twice. 
Data collection to inform the gap analysis for phase 2 has taken place. 
Initial mandatory training gap analysis has been completed. 
Review of the gap analysis has been undertaken and minor revisions are 
underway. 
Outline training plans to address the gaps have been discussed. 
Concerns regarding resource requirements to deliver against the gaps have 
been escalated. 

Detailed and finalised gap analysis for Phase 1 completed. 
 
Organisational plan collated from divisional plans and training leads in 
order to put in place development and training to address gaps 
developed. 
 
Implications for resourcing the plan have been identified and escalated 
as appropriate. 
 

Agenda Item 52a (v) 2015/16

P
age 71



 
 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Education, Learning & Development 

Project Lead Kathy Duffy Project Sponsor David Wilkinson 

 

 

 

Issues Log 

Description Mitigating Action 

 Backfill support for L&OD staffing resources requested not yet approved L&OD team have reviewed and rescheduled some work on a temporary basis, 
and working additional hours, to support phase 1 deadlines. 

Anticipated insufficient organisational resource to support delivery of 
additional training and development to address gaps. 

Early escalation of these concerns via the Kirkup programme team, workforce 
assurance committee, divisional leads, training leads, and executive sponsor. 

Top Project Risks 

Description Mitigating Action 

Insufficient capacity to manage the ETD project and action plans Requested backfill support 

Failure to deliver additional training and development required within the 
Kirkup timescales, due to insufficient organisational resource (includes 
internal capacity, funding, and staff release) to support delivery of additional 
training and development identified through the gap analysis 

Issue has been highlighted to workforce Assurance Committee, divisional 
triumvirate leads, training leads, and Executive sponsor. 

Outcomes Changes To Plan 

 
The Trust has an up to date and fully comprehensive mandatory and essential 
Training and Skills Needs Analysis for all professional staff 
Staff are fully trained against the TNA in order to deliver safe effective care. 
The Trust has robust education governance structures to support becoming a 
learning organisation 
 
 

Additional Actions added 
2.1.2 Scope the recommendations with public reference group   
An approach to enable patient and staff engagement is being explored with 
Kirkup programme team.  Public event planned for September 2015 
2.4.3 Review of training data by Senior Divisional staff 
2.5.2  Senior Divisional review of Essential skills 
2.7.3 Senior Divisional review of Essential skills 
2.8.4  Senior Divisional review of report for accuracy 

 

Agenda Item 52a (v) 2015/16

P
age 72



 
 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Education, Learning & Development 

Project Lead Kathy Duffy Project Sponsor David Wilkinson 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 52a (v) 2015/16

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group ESTATES 

Project Lead Tristram Reynolds Project Sponsor Aaron Cummins 

 

 

 

Progress Description: 
Sketch plan issued of proposed areas of the Womens & Childrens 
Unit after development work.  WaCs team still working on nos. of 
beds & cots which is a key input to detailed design. Group of 
Estates & WaCs met Friday 12th   as start of the 3-monbt planned 
process of detailed design. 
 

Key Actions since last report/ Milestones achieved 
As above 

Milestones not achieved in planned timeframe and 
rationale 
None 

Actions to be completed in next reporting month 
Design work ongoing 
 
 

Issues Log 

Description Mitigating Action 
 Need for WaCs to determine nos. of beds & cots This is underway 

  

 
 

 

Top Project Risks 
 

Description Mitigating Action 

Clinical requirements change 
Accommodating those 

changes 

Capital finance not available across the financial 

years (probably 3) required to carry through the 

whole project 

Ensure that Monitor 

understands the need 

 
Outcomes 

 

Planned outcome is a completed building scheme that supports all other work 
within the project 
 

Agenda Item 52a (Vi) 2015/16

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Communications and 

Engagement 

Project Lead Louise Jones Project Sponsor Phil Woodford 

 

 

Progress Description: 

All actions that were due to be completed at the beginning of June were completed on time. 
 
A monthly update has been drafted and approved internally - awaiting comments and ‘sense’ check from Sub-Committee public member. Intranet site has 
been updated and work is on-going to develop the website pages. 
 
Significant progress has been made with the work to engage fully and effectively with patients and the public.  
 

Key Actions since last report/ Milestones achieved 

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS: 

 Engagement workshop held with project leads 

 Key messages from Sub-Committee shared 

 Sub-committee papers and presentations uploaded to website 

 Identified and secured a public representative to sit on the group 

 Team brief slide submitted for July’s briefing sessions 

 Staff information sessions - schedule currently being developed and confirmed  

 ‘Plain English’ report writing guide - currently being drafted 

 Rescheduled filming of Sub-Committee meeting  

 Updated Trust intranet page 
 
PATIENT AND PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT: 

 Interviews have taken place with staff currently leading the wide range of existing user involvement, patient experience and community engagement across 
the Trust and with key stakeholders working with service users and the public 

 Evidence of successful methods and approaches for engagement has been collected to build the ‘map’ of current patient experience and public within the 
organisation and with communities. The ‘Engagement Map’ will be produced in a graphic format in addition to the text version 

 Work is underway to co-produce and establish a Public Reference Group in conjunction with the Morecambe Bay Investigation Sub-Committee Public 

Agenda Item 52a (Vii) 2015/16

P
age 77



 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Communications and 

Engagement 

Project Lead Louise Jones Project Sponsor Phil Woodford 

 

 

Member, and in discussion with patient and public representatives and organisations.  

 Further contact has been made by members of families to discuss how they want be involved in further engagement around the programme for 
implementing Kirkup report recommendations and potentially, the Public Reference Group.  

 A role description for has been jointly produced for the MBI Sub Committee public member.  

 Draft engagement map completed and being quality assured 

 Patient and Public Engagement Strategy in production 

 Planning an engagement event as start up for Reference Group and beginning of a series of engagement events and ‘Panel’ activities - provisional date of 
15 September 2015 (to be confirmed) 

 Working across organisations in Cumbria to advise and support on patient and public engagement for the range of activities in progress (Kirkup, Royal 
College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists’ Review) 

 Working to arrange for public representative and a group of service users and members of the public to visit a number of units, providing high quality, 
accessible Maternity Service services (for example the neonatal unit in Bath). Feedback will be used to inform the plans for the new unit at FGH 

 Working with Clinical Commissioning Groups and the Maternity Service Liaison Committees to ensure that they are well supported and able to engage with 
women who have recently used maternity services 
 

OTHER STAKEHOLDERS (STAFF, EXTERNAL STAKEHOLDERS, ETC): 
It has been recognised that this piece of work does not currently sit within any member of staff’s portfolio. Discussion is taking place about the need for an 
engagement lead to take this important piece of work forward.  
 

Milestones not achieved in planned timeframe and rationale 

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS: 

 Single Version Report uploaded to website 

 One page summary of progress to be produced and uploaded to website 

 Staff update  on progress 

 Press update  on progress 

 Stakeholder update on progress 
 
The above actions were due to be completed within two working days of the Sub-Committee. As it was agreed at the Sub-Committee meeting that the single 

Agenda Item 52a (Vii) 2015/16

P
age 78



 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Communications and 

Engagement 

Project Lead Louise Jones Project Sponsor Phil Woodford 

 

 

version report would be updated after the meeting to reflect the presentations and discussions that took place, and that it would go to the Trust Board as a 
finished item. This meant that we could not complete the planned actions to the deadline originally planned. It was agreed with David Walker and Tina Turner 
that the communications and engagement action plan would be revised to reflect this change in process for future months. 
 
Update communication has not been sent out on the same day as Trust Board as originally planned due to a delay in gaining internal approval. The update is 
currently with the Sub-Committee public member for ‘sense checking’ and will be sent out as soon as comments are received.  
 
PATIENT AND PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT: 

 The PRG launch/engagement event was originally planned for 22 July 2015. Further to planning meetings with staff and family members, and liaison 
with the graphic artist, the event will now be in September with a provisional date of 15 September (depending on availability of the artist or her team). 
 

OTHER STAKEHOLDERS: 
N/A 
 

Actions to be completed in next reporting month 

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS: 

 General update/re-design of website pages 

 Single Version Report/summary of progress uploaded to website 

 Staff update on progress 

 Press update on progress 

 Stakeholder update on progress 

 Confirm staff briefing schedule 

 Finalise ‘Plain English’ report writing guide 

 Review and update of website 
 
PATIENT AND PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT: 

 Confirming details for the engagement event to be held in Septembers, working with a wide group of service users, patients and community 
representatives  

Agenda Item 52a (Vii) 2015/16

P
age 79



 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Communications and 

Engagement 

Project Lead Louise Jones Project Sponsor Phil Woodford 

 

 

 

 

 Approval of the engagement map 

 Develop schedule for visits to services developed elsewhere to identify good practice and environment design to influence the refurbishment of the FGH 
maternity unit 
 

OTHER STAKEHOLDERS: 
N/A 

Issues Log Outcomes 

Description Mitigating Action For staff, stakeholders, service users and the public, to be aware of, and 
understand: 
 

 The Trust’s response and approach to the Morecambe Bay Investigation 

 Progress on the Reports’ recommendations 

 The action taken by the Trust 

 The difference these actions have made to patients and staff 
 
These will be measured in a mixture of quantities and qualitative methods, such as: 
 

 Questionnaires 

 Discussions 

 Briefings and feedback 

 Focus groups 
 
The above measures are dependent on the recruitment of a communications officer 
to support the project. 

 
 
 

Top Project Risks 

Description Mitigating Action 

 
Resource - if appropriate 
resource isn’t identified, 
there’s a risk that the plan 
will not be achieved. 
 

Interviewing two candidates w/c 6 July 
2015. 
 

Confusion in messages 
from each of the maternity 
projects - MBI, Better Care 
Together, RCOG, etc 

An overarching strategic statement and 
set of principles is being developed so 
that all organisations involved continue 
to work closely together and not 
duplicate work.   
 

Agenda Item 52a (Vii) 2015/16

P
age 80



 

The Report of the Morecambe Bay Investigation (Kirkup Report) 

 

Monthly Progress and Highlight Report 
Month June 2015 Name of Project Group Communications and 

Engagement 

Project Lead Louise Jones Project Sponsor Phil Woodford 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 52a (Vii) 2015/16

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Late
Completed
On Track

Ref Actions required Responsible Lead Progress Kirkup date Completion date Expected outcomes/ Benefits KPI/ Measure Evidence/ Output

1

Receive and accept the  Morecambe Bay
Investigation

Pearse Butler/ Jackie Daniel Following publication of the Kirkup report, the
Chairman and Chief Executive of the Trust made a
public apology to the families who had been affected
by the past failings investigated by Dr Kirkup and
accepted the findings within the report
The apology was broadcast on television and a video
of the apology is available on the Trust website.
On 19 March 2015 a letter of apology (ref: Paper a)
was sent to the families who had been involved with
the Investigation.

01 March 2015 a structured programme management
and project approach is to be used to:
1) Facilitate a consistent approach to
planning and delivery across the Kirkup
project                                                2)
Provide accurate and timely
communication of project progress
3) Enhance individual visibility,
transparency and focus
4) Assist with scoping and development
of project plans
5) Strengthen accountability by
challenging progress on individual
projects

Report and apology

2
Establish Kirkup Recommendation Project Team

01 March 2015

2.1
Identify Executive to lead on implementing the
Morecambe Bay investigation Jackie Daniel David Walker identified as Kirkup Programme Sponsor 01 March 2015

2.2 Identify Project Lead Jackie Daniel Tina turner identified as Programme Lead 01 March 2015

2.3 Identify kirkup programme team Tina Turner/ David Walker
Judith Griffin appointed as programme advisor and
Lindsay Lewis as Programme Manager 30 April 2015

2.4 Agree roles and responsibilities of project team TT

Project Management arrangements v0.1 paper
produced and submitted to sub committee for
approval 01 April 2015

2.5 Resource team appropriately TT
Funding secured to backfill project manager for 12
months and appoint Project advisor 01 April 2015

2.6 Recruit to team LL
Admin role appointed to.  Project manager
interviewing on 15th June 2015 01 June 2015

3
Establish Kirkup Recommendation Implementation
Group Tina Turner/ David Walker

3.1 Identify appropriate membership Tina Turner/ David Walker membership included within ToR 09 April 2015

3.2
Develop ToR for group and governance
arrangement Tina Turner/ David Walker

ToR developed and approved at KRIG.  Governance
arrangement paper produced and approved at KRIG
28 April 2015 28 April 2015

3.3 Diarise meetings Tina Turner/ David Walker Meeting diarised for 12 month period 30 April 2015

4 Establish Kirkup Recommendation Sub Committee TT/ DW

4.1

Identify appropriate membership including
representation to meet recommendation 18 and
service user Tina Turner/ David Walker Membership included within ToR 09 April 2015

4.2
Develop ToR for group and governance
arrangement Tina Turner/ David Walker

ToR developed and approved at Sub committee.
Governance arrangement paper produced and
accepted at sub committee

n/a

ToR
KRIG Minutes

Project Management Arrangements
paper v0.1     Sub Committee
minutes 11 May 2015

Kirkup Programme Plan

Kirkup date (NOT
RAG rated)Date: 18 June 2015

P
age 83



4.3 Diarise meetings Tina Turner/ David Walker Meeting diarised for 12 month period

5
Establish Project approach and Governance
arrangement

5.1

Agree project/ programme approach within
programme team

TT/DW/ Judith Griffin Project Management arrangements v0.1 paper
produced and submitted to sub committee for
approval

15 April 2015

5.2
Group recommendations into themes JG/TT/LL Project themes identified and project structure

developed
29 April 2015

5.3 Agree project approach at Trust Board JG/TT
Project structure agreed at Board

29 April 2015

5.4
Agree project approach at MBI sub committee

DW/TT/JG Project structure agreed at Sub committee

6 Identify Project Leads and Project Sponsors TT/ DW

6.1 Identify Project lead and sponsor for Workforce TT/ DW

John Bannister (deputy Chief Operating officer) to be
project lead and Falouki Ajayi (Chief Operating officer)
as project sponsor 30 April 2015

6.2
Identify Project lead and sponsor for Education,
Learning and Development TT/ DW

Kath Duffy (Assistant Director of Organisational
Development) to be project Lead and David Wilkinson
(Director of Workforce and OD) as project sponsor 30 April 2015

6.3 Identify Project lead and sponsor for Governance TT/ DW

Val Wilson (Interim Deputy Director of Governance) to
be project lead and Mary Aubrey (Director of
Governance) as project sponsor 30 April 2015

6.4 Identify Project lead and sponsor for Clinical Quality TT/ DW

Sascha Wells (Deputy Director and Head of Midwifery,
Gynaecology and Obstetrics) to be project lead and
Sue Smith (Executive Chief Nurse) project sponsor 30 April 2015

6.5 Identify Project lead and sponsor for Estates TT/ DW

Tristram Reynolds (Associate Director, Estates &
Facilities) to be project lead and Aaron Cummins
(Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Finance) as
project sponsor 30 April 2015

6.6
Identify Project lead and sponsor for
communication and Engagement TT/ DW

Louise Jones (Communication Manager) to be project
lead and Phil Woodford (Associate Director of
Corporate Affairs) as project sponsor 30 April 2015

6.7 Identify project lead for strategic partnership TT/ DW Jackie Daniel (Chief Executive) to be project sponsor 30 April 2015

7 Project Team Development

7.1 Establish project team for Workforce JB
John Bannister identified project team as part of
project planning 15 May 2015

7.2 Establish project team for Clinical Quality SW
Sascha Wells identified project team as part of project
planning 01 June 2015

7.3 Establish project team for Governance VW
Val Wilson identified  project team

01 June 2015

7.4
Establish project team for Education learning and
development KD Kathy Duffy identifying project team 01 June 2015

7.6 Establish project team for Estates TR
Tristram working with a number of WACS staff to
identify requirements 01 June 2015

8 Scope recommendations

8.1
Each project group to scope their project
recommendations 30 June 2015

8.2 Test scope with wider stakeholders 30 September 2015
9 Resources

9.1 Identify resource to deliver Workforce project Indentied as part of project scope 16 June 2015
9.2 Identify resource to deliver ELD Project Indentied as part of project scope 16 June 2015

9.3 Identify resource to deliver Governance project Indentied as part of project scope 16 June 2015

ToR Sub committee and Minutes

P
age 84



9.4 Identify resource to deliver Clinical quality project Indentied as part of project scope 16 June 2015

9.5 Identify resource to deliver Communication plan Indentied as part of project scope 16 June 2015
9.6 Identify resource to deliver estates project Indentied as part of project scope 16 June 2015

9.7 Secure resource

Project resource requirements collated. Submitted to
Director of finanace for consideration. Priority
resource agreed and in place 31 July 2015

9.8
Identification of implementation resource
requirements ongoing

10 Risk Managements
10.1 Identify risks pertinent to each project project leads In progress 15 June 2015

10.2 Develop Overarching Programme risk register programme manager In progress 15 June 2015
10.3 Sign off Risk register at KRIG KRIG In progress
10.4 Risk register to sub committee for noting 10 July 2015

10.4
Add Kirkup recommendation to corporate risk
register Corporate Governance/ LL In progress 30 June 2015

on BAF Strategic risk 14) and WACS risk
register

10.5 Risk register monitored monthly at KRIG meetings programme manager In progress Ongoing

10.6
Escalate high risks to Sub committee as per risk
register programme manager In progress Ongoing

11 Develop and agree Action plan

11.1 Develop Action Plan proforma LL
Action plan template designed and sent to all project
leads for population 01 May 2015

11.2 Agree proforma at KRIG DW/TT Agreed

11.3
Individual project lead to complete draft Project
Action Plans Project leads In progress 05 June 2015

11.4

Sub-committee to receive a presentation from each
of the Project leads on progress and receive a draft
copy of each action plan. Project leads In progress  9 June 2015

11.5 Final Action plans produced In progress 14 June 2015
11.6 Project sponsors sign off action plans Project leads/ sponsor In progress 15 June 2015
11.7 Action plans to KRIG for sign off TT In progress 16 June 2015
11.8 Agreed Action plan to Board DW/TT In progress 24 June 2015
11.9 Agreed Action plan to Sub Committee DW/TT In progress 24 June 2015

11.10 Agreed Action plan to QSG/CQC DW In progress 24 June 2015

12 Quality Assurance Process

12.1
Identified outputs (evidence) must be submitted
against completed actions identified as part of project scope 15 June 2015

12.2
Establish an electronic evidence folder /
methodology for Evidence files LL assurance files established in sharepoint 01 June 2015

12.3
Identify internal assurance programme with UHMB
Programme Management Office PMO PMO internal assurance process agreed 16 June 2015

12.4 Identify external assurance process TT
PMO/ MIAA -assurance framework for further
discussion 30 June 2015

12.5 Agree Assurance framework TT/DW/ Judith Griffin 30 September 2015

13 Monitoring Project Progress

13.1
Establish programme dashboard to communicate
overall programme and identify where additional LL/PMO In progress Ongoing

13.2

Programme Manager to have Fortnightly meeting
with project leads to monitor progress against
plans/ identify issues and agree escalation LL In progress Ongoing

13.3 To maintain and update action plan LL In progress Ongoing

P
age 85



13.4 To prepare KRIG addenda and arrange papers TT/DW/ Judith Griffin In progress 5 days prior to meeting

13.5 Risk register monitored monthly at KRIG meetings In progress fortnightly

13.6
Escalate high risks to Sub committee as per risk
register In progress monthly

P
age 86



Late
Completed
On Track

5

Ref Actions required Responsible Lead Progress Kirkup date Completion date Expected outcomes/ Benefits KPI/ Measure Evidence/ Output
5.1 Multi-disciplinary and profession meetings in place within the

Division
Sascha Wells A number of Cross bay/ cross professional meetings are now in

place in the Women and Childrens’ Division.  These include-
Divisional Governance Meeting (DGAG), Divisional Management
Team and Board, site based Multi-professional morbidity and
mortality meetings, Cross Bay multi- disciplinary  audit Meeting,
Obstetrics and Gynaecological Guideline meeting,  Obstetrics and
Gynaecological Senior Meeting, Children and Young People multi-
disciplinary - Knowledge, Information, Decision and Sharing days
(KIDS) training and development days, Children and Young
People Seniors meetings, multi-disciplinary Team ward rounds in
Obstetrics and Gynaecology and Children and Young People.

Complete

attendance records/ TNA
5.2 Multi-Disciplinary and professional specific training and

development days introduced in maternity
Multi-Disciplinary Team training and development days were
introduced in Maternity services in 2012. Currently 3 mandatory
study days
Day 1- PROMPT – All maternity and obstetric staff + anaesthetic
staff.
Day 2 – All maternity and obstetric staff.
Day 3 – All midwives and support staff.
Prompt – Practical Obstetric Multi-Professional Training.
Multi-professional PROMPT facilitator training led by the RCOG
in London.  This allows the use of ‘in house’ multi-professional
obstetric emergency drills using our own guidelines and policies.
Multi professional training has allowed staff to deliver training on
their own speciality and become involved in scenarios within
their job role.

Complete

annual training schedules and
attendance records

5.3 Professional specific training and development days introduced
in Children and young Peoples services

Paediatric and Neonatal Development activity (PANDA) study
days in place in Children and Young people’s service, which
provide essential profession-specific training to all children and
young people nurses.

Complete

5.4 Skills passports have been developed The skills passport is a document that has been produced to
review skills and competencies.

Complete

Recommendation Number

Clinical Quality

Kirkup date (NOT
RAG rated)

Findings /failures which led to the recommendation

1.3 the relationships between different groups of staff were extremely poor…with repeated failures to communicate important clinical information about patients…poor relationships hampered the development of the unit…multi-disciplinary
meetings whether to discuss clinical policies or to examine poor outcomes, were difficult to arrange, took place infrequently and were often poorly attended by one or more staff groups
1.5 emergency transfers of sick babies which could have been prevented
1.6 many reports were extremely brief, failed to identify failures of care, and showed evidence of adopting an inappropriately protective approach…defensive ‘blame-shifting’ behaviour predominated
1.7 together, they constituted a lethal mix that we have no doubt led to the unnecessary deaths of mothers and babies
1.3 obstetricians, midwives and paediatricians had allowed the breakdown of personal and interdisciplinary relationships to jeopardise care

Recommendation
Should identify and develop measures that will promote effective multidisciplinary team-working, in particular between paediatricians, obstetricians, midwives and neonatal staff. These measures should include, but not be limited to, joint training
sessions, clinical, policy and management meetings and staff development activities. Attendance at designated events must be compulsory within terms of employment. These measures should be identified by April 2015 and begun by June 2015.

April 2015 and

The joint training and development days
have provided an opportunity to learn
from each professional group and
improved the knowledge and skills of

Reduced variation in
clinical decisions and
management leading to
improved outcomes
including:
1.  lower than national
average transfers of sick
babies transferred

P
age 87



5.5 Preceptorship programme introduced The Preceptorship programme was introduced in 2012 and
provides a framework to develop staff to progress from band 5 to
band 6 in maternity care.  This includes rotation around all sites.
This again ensures all band 5 and 6 midwives will be adaptable to
the organisation and enable a consistent approach across the
Bay.

Complete

preceptorship programme
5.6 WACS MDT Leadership programme in place. Tina turner The Leadership & Development programme was effective from

9th October 2014 and runs on a fortnightly basis.  This is a
Division wide leadership programme and includes
representatives from all departments/ professions of band 7 and
above.  Topics covered to date include: Finance, leadership,
values and visions, complaints, attendance management, CQC.

Ongoing

programme and attendance records
5.7 identify additional measures to promote multidisciplinary

working
Sascha Wells Mandated attendance at , prenatal mortality meetings, caesarean

section meetings, SIRI panel, Patient safety summit, cross bay
audit, labour ward forums and DGAG

complete

TNA

5.7.1
There is a need to scope which of these meetings are the key
ones for clinicians to attend in order to review and influence
clinical standards of care. Sascha Wells as above complete TNA

5.7.2
 Attendance at the key meetings and at MDT joint training
sessions, and staff development opportunities to be explicit in
the job description of every registered professional. Katy Stretch/ Kathy Duffy ongoing standardised JD's

5.7.3
Review of all cross bay meetings to ensure that attendance is
from the appropriate people and that there is a clear
framework for cascading key clinical information including
learning from incidents, changes to protocols etc. Louise Jones

Divisional news letters, handover briefings, communication
boards complete news letters and briefings

5.7.4
Policy to be developed that specifies the requirement of
debrief for all staff involved to include clinical supervision in a
critical incident (align to recommendation 12;governance). Val Wilson ongoing updated policy

5.7.5

Attendance at mortality and morbidity debrief meetings for
those staff involved in an incident to be included as an explicit
requirement in the TNA and job description/job plan of every
registered professional

Sascha Wells as 5.7.1

ongoing attendance records/ TNA
6

6.1
Review and update all current risk assessment and transfer
policies

A protocol is in place (embed). This was last updated in 2012. It
includes who should be offered the option of delivery at FGH and
who should not; who will carry out this assessment against which
criteria and how this will be discussed with pregnant women and
their families. The protocol was developed locally in conjunction
with NICE guidelines, the neonatal network requirements.

Complete
antenatal clinical risk assessment
policy, transfer policy, clinical risk
assessment of suspected labour

April 2015 and
begun by June

2015.

improved the knowledge and skills of
the MDT and provide consistent advice.
It also allows all staff to understand
responsibilities of others and fosters
respectful working relationships.

babies transferred
unexpectedly
2.  lower than national
average mortality and
morbidity of babies and
mothers
3. Higher than average
IWantGreatCare score
from service users

Recommendation Number

Findings /failures which led to the recommendation

1.4 midwives took over the risk assessment process without in many cases discussing the intended outcomes with obstetricians, and we found repeated instances of women being inappropriately classified as being at low risk and managed
incorrectly
1.5 paediatricians often adopted a wait and see approach, as a result, this necessitated emergency transfers of sick babies which could have been prevented
1.8 the safety of maternity units
 depends on their level of  vigilance to detect risk and  deviation from the norm, and  on their taking effective action  when it is found
1.3  Clinical records were extremely poor and often  written in retrospect, also  jeopardising the necessary  transfer of vital information

Recommendation
Draw up a protocol for risk assessment in maternity services, setting out clearly: who should be offered the option of delivery at Furness General Hospital and who should not; who will carry out this assessment against which criteria; and how this
will be discussed with pregnant women and families. The protocol should involve all relevant staff groups, including midwives, paediatricians, obstetricians and those in the receiving units within the region. The Trust should ensure that individual
decisions on delivery are clearly recorded as part of the plan of care, including what risk factors may trigger escalation of care, and that all Trust staff are aware that they should not vary decisions without a documented risk assessment. This should
be completed by June 2015.

Reduced variation in
clinical decisions and

P
age 88



6.2
Perinatal Institute  Maternity Health Record in place for all
women within the Trust

Sascha Wells

The perinatal institute maternity health record is used within the
Trust. This is updated in line with each new NICE/national
recommendation. Staff are trained in its use at induction and at
regular intervals when changes have occurred in line with
national recommendation.

Complete
Perinatal Institute Maternity
Health Record

6.3
Implement continuous Perinatal Institute Maternity Care
Records Audit

Audit Team
Audit of Perinatal Institute Maternity care records is part of the
annual forward audit plan

Complete
Perinatal Institute Maternity
Health Record Audit  and Action
Plan Trust Audit Plan

6.4 Recording of transfer through a Patient Safety Incident Louise Jones
Every transfer is recorded through a patient safety incident
report.

Complete Transfer PSI report

6.5 Letter of apology for transfer due to capacity Sascha Wells
 In 2014, the Trust implemented a system that results in writing
to women to apologise for transfers of care which are due to
capacity reasons

Complete copy of template letter

6.6
Benchmark Trust policy against another similar unit. Louise Jones policies obtained from Preston, Salisbury and neonatal network complete

Trust policies that meet national
standards

6.7
Ensure induction document refers to perinatal institute
document rather than just documentation review and update 30 June 2015 new starter induction pack

7

7 Ensure annual forward audit plan in place Louise Jones/ Owen Galt

The Women and Children's Division have a robust forward audit
plan in place which includes annual audits for Obstetrics/
Maternity/ Gynaecology and Paediatrics. which is monitored
through WACS Divisional Governance and the Quality
Committee.  The audits included within the plan include a
number of audits to demonstrate NICE and CNST compliance and
include record keeping and neonatal transfer.  Following
completion of audit, action plans are developed to ensure the
required improvements are managed in a timely manner.  The
Women and Children's Division forward audit plan, forms part of
the Trusts forward audit plan.

complete- ongoing annual forward audit plan

7.1.1 Monthly record keeping/ documentation audits in place Owen Galt/ Louise Jones

complete-ongoing documentation audits/results with
action plans

7.1.2
Audits of transfers of neonates to external units to be
completed Paula Evans

30 September 2015 results of neonatal audits and
action plans

7.1.3  Bi - annual audits of antenatal risk assessment Amanda Andrews

Complete/ ongoing results of risk assessment and
action plans

This should be
completed by June

2015.

clinical decisions and
management leading to
improved outcomes
including:
1.  lower than national
average transfers of sick
babies
2.  lower than national
average mortality and
morbidity of babies and
mothers
3. Higher than average
IWantGreatCare score
from service users

in place by
September 2015.

Reduced variation in
clinical decisions and
management leading to
improved outcomes
including:
1.  lower than national
average transfers of sick
babies
2.  lower than national
average mortality and
morbidity of babies and
mothers
3. Higher than average
IWantGreatCare score
from service users

Recommendation Number

Findings /failures which led to the recommendation

1.4 we found repeated instances of women being inappropriately classified as being at low risk and managed incorrectly
1.5 paediatricians often adopted a wait and see approach, as a result, this necessitated emergency transfers of sick babies which could have been prevented
1.8  the safety of maternity units
 depends on their level of  vigilance to detect risk and  deviation from the norm, and  on their taking effective action  when it is found

Recommendations
Should audit the operation of maternity and paediatric services, to ensure that they follow risk assessment protocols on place of delivery, transfers and management of care, and that effective multidisciplinary care operates without inflexible
demarcations between professional groups. This should be in place by September 2015.P

age 89



Late
Completed
On Track

2

Ref Actions required Progress Kirkup date Completion date Expected outcomes/
Benefits

KPI/ Measure Evidence/ Output

2.1 Scope and agree the full recommendation
requirements

Kathy Duffy Underway. Comprehensive action plan and
narrative to describe a phase
strategic approach

fully developed action
plan for all phases

2.1.1 Fully scope the recommendations to ensure a
strategic approach is taken and that planned
actions will deliver measurably and relevant
outcomes with project team

Kathy Duffy Underway in liaison with a number of
stakeholders. A three-phased approach
has been developed and this received
support from the Kirkup sub committee
in June.

30 June 2015

2.1.2 Scope the recommendations with public reference
group

An approach to enable patient and staff
engagement is being explored with
Kirkup programme team.  Public event
planned for September 2015

30 September 2015

2.1. Identify and capture changes and developments
implemented since 2012 to ensure that action plan
builds on improvements already embedded

Kate Casey Identification, and evidence, of
developments to date is underway.  This
includes improvements to corporate
induction, adoption of the national Core
Skills Framework, improvements to
recruitment processes, strategic
approach to staff engagement and
improvement activities, values and
behaviours work.

30 June 2015 a range of evidence being
identified and collated.

2.1.3 Ensure best practice and external expertise is
utilised to inform development of strategic
approach

Kathy Duffy/Kate Casey Library expertise being utilised to
undertake full literature review to inform
best practice approach.  Discussions with
HENW and other external experts
underway to explore possible external
input to the ELD projects.
Initial scoping completed, but team will
continue to engage with external
partners and best practise evidence
throughout the project cycle.

30 June 2015

2.2 * Establish appropriate multi disciplinary education
governance structures to support  delivery of the
actions required in the Kirkup recommendations

Kathy Duffy completed Organisational rigour, utilising a
multi professional approach

alignment of strategic
approach across all
professional groups

30 June 2015

Education, Learning and Development

Kirkup date (Not RAG
rated)

Recommendation 2:
Review the skills, knowledge, competencies and professional duties of care of all obstetric, paediatric, midwifery and neonatal nursing staff, and other staff caring for critically ill patients in anaesthetics and intensive and high dependency care, against all relevant guidance from professional and

regulatory bodies. This review should be completed by June 2015, and identify requirements for additional training, development and, where necessary, a period of experience elsewhere.

P
age 90



2.2.1 Establish a multi disciplinary education governance
task and finish group to lead and support the
delivery of the actions required in the Kirkup
recommendations

Kathy Duffy/Kate Casey Date of first meeting: 17 June 2015.
Terms of reference were agreed. Action
plan updated as a result of detailed
discussion at that meeting.
2nd meeting took place on 02/07/15.

completed

2.2.2 Establish sub group to work  on Phase 1 actions Kathy Duffy/Carl Hunter Individuals identified.  Individual liaison
ongoing. First group  meeting took place
12/06/15

completed

2.3 Identify staff groups and key people within each
group (to include midwives, neonatal nurses,
qualified nurses working in WAC division,
paediatricians, obstetricians, anaesthetists,
Intensivists, qualified nurses working in HDU and
ICU)  to scope relevant professional guidance and
regulatory bodies

Kathy Duffy/Carl Hunter complete completed Trust has access to robust staff
in post lists for the identified
staff groups

Staff in post list held by
L&OD dept reflects
information in ESR
accurately for the
identified staff groups

2.3.1 Produce accurate staff in post lists, including length
of time in current role, for each identified staff
group, cross checking information with ESR and
TMS

Carl Hunter/Employee
Services/Kevin Whittaker

reconciliation complete completed

2.4 Mandatory Professional Training and Skills Needs
Analysis for each staff group that meet national
standards and requirements

Kathy Duffy/Carl Hunter Initial mandatory TNA complete.  Final
revisions underway.

30 June 2015 accurate mandatory and role
essential training requirements
clearly defined for identified
staff groups

mandatory and role
essential training matrix
produced

2.4.1 Review alignment of  Mandatory TNA to ensure
correct alignment with staff role/position groups

Carl Hunter/Kevin Whitaker Mandatory TNA already in place aligned
with Core Skills Framework
requirements. Spreadsheet format
developed to collate information.
Further work to align with roles on TMS
is underway.

Completed Trust is already aligned to the
national and local Core Skills
Framework recommendations for
the 10 CSF mandatory topics.

2.4.2 Collate essential role specific training requirements,
and refresher periods, for each professional staff
group, including reference to external /professional
requirements

Carl Hunter/ Identified
leads for each professional
group

Requirements for nurses and midwives
in Women's and Children's division
identified and held in division. Leads
identified for all other relevant staff
groups. Spreadsheet format developed
to collate information.
First meeting of sub group took place
12/06/15.

30 June 2015

2.4.3 Review of training data by Senior Divisional staff Divisional senior leads Most data now collated and being
reviewed by senior divisional staff for
accuracy. initial findings discussed at T&F
group meting on 02/07/15

30 June 2015

2.5 Devise training matrix and skills passport for all
staff groups

Kathy Duffy/Carl Hunter accurate mandatory and role
essential training requirements
clearly defined for identified
staff groups

Role specific training
matrices produced

P
age 91



2.5.1 Produce detailed mandatory and role specific
training matrix for each of the identified staff
groups, including reference to external guidance

Carl Hunter/ Identified
leads for each professional
group

Mandatory section complete. 30 June 2015

2.5.2 Senior Divisional review of Essential skills Divisional senior leads Final revisions for essential skills under
senior divisional review before sign off.

31 July 2015

2.5.3 Align essential role specific training requirements
with TMS roles/positions

Carl Hunter/Kevin Whitaker This work is part of the planned TMS
development work and will be
completed in phase 2

30 September 2015

2.5.4 Seek external review and validation of training and
skills matrix

Carl Hunter Identification of appropriate regional
skills networks has been undertaken.
Contact made with CSF network and SfH.
Confirmation of CSF alignment with
mandatory matrix is best practice
approach.

complete

2.6 Ensure TMS reflects requirements Carl Hunter/Kevin Whitaker Sep-15 Robust training management
information

accurate monthly
Workforce training
reports produced

2.6.1 Ensure current TMS accounts reflect Mandatory
requirements and refresher periods

Carl Hunter/Kevin Whitaker Mandatory training alignment on TMS is
complete.  Go live date TBC

complete

2.6.2 Ensure staff TMS accounts reflect all role specific
essential training requirements and refresher
periods

Carl Hunter/Kevin Whitaker This work will follow from identification
of the role specific requirements and will
then form part of the planned TMS
development work in phase 2

30 September 2015

2.7 * Collate training and development records for all
identified staff groups

Kathy Duffy/Kate
Casey/Carl Hunter

30 September 2015 Increased organisational
knowledge of knowledge and
skills of workforce, facilitating
strategic approach to
development and talent
management

Collated training and
development records
available

2.7.1 Identify internal and external training provided for
identified staff groups, to include mandatory and
essential role specific information

Kate Casey/Carl
Hunter/Leads for identified
professional groups

training leads and topics identified. complete

2.7.2 Collate training records from range of sources, to
include mandatory and  essential role specific
training records

Kate Casey/Carl
Hunter/Leads for identified
professional groups

Mandatory training records collated.
Essential training records collated.

30 June 2015

2.7.3 Senior Divisional review of Essential skills Divisional senior staff Senior Divisional leads reviewing to
ensure all local training delivery is
captured.

31 July 2015

2.7.4 Identify and collate a list of any staff in the
identified staff groups not having had an appraisal
within required time period from TMS records and
medical appraisal records.

Carl Hunter/Medical
revalidation lead

Complete complete

P
age 92



2.8 * Undertake a  gap analysis of training and
development for all identified staff groups

Kathy Duffy/Carl Hunter Identification of all staff in the
identified staff group who
would benefit from additional
training, development or other
experience

production of a list of all
staff within the
identified staff group
who fall within the
agreed parameters as
requiring additional
training, development
or other experience

2.8.1 Design and produce report to collate all
information gathered

Carl Hunter/Kevin Whitaker complete completed

2.8.2 Agree parameters to identify the priorities for those
requiring additional training, development or other
experience

Education governance task
and finish group

Agreed that priorities are mandatory CSF
topics aligned to national guidance

completed

2.8.3 Interrogate report to identify staff falling within
these parameters

Carl Hunter/Kevin Whitaker Initial report produced. 30 June 2015

2.8.4 Senior Divisional review of report for accuracy Divisional  Senior review  Senior divisional leads reviewing for
accuracy.

30 June 2015

2.8.5 Produce detailed analysis of shortfall in skills and
knowledge

Carl Hunter Analysis of mandatory training shortfall
completed.

30 June 2015

2.8.6 Senior Divisional review of report for accuracy Divisional  Senior review Essential skills analysis underway and will
be completed following senior divisional
review.

30 June 2015

2.8.7 Develop an approach to addressing the training
priorities identified

Kathy Duffy/T&F group Options for approaches to deliver against
gaps discussed at T&F group meeting on
02/07/15. Outline plan being formulated
following that discussion.

30 June 2015

Note: * Additional actions added in order to fully
deliver effective outcomes

3

3.1 Scope and develop approach to address  the full
recommendation requirements

Kathy Duffy/Kate Casey Scoping underway, however will be
informed in part by outcomes from
completion of June phase 1 gap analysis

Comprehensive action plan and
narrative to describe a phase
strategic approach

fully developed action
plan for all phases

3.1.1 Describe the approach to be taken to develop
training and education plan to address priorities
identified in phase 1

Kathy Duffy Options for approaches to deliver against
gaps discussed at T&F group meeting on
02/07/15. Outline plan being formulated
following that discussion.

30 June 2015

3.2

Develop annual training plan for staff groups
Kathy Duffy/Kate
Casey/Educational
Governance group

Existing cycle for production of annual
training plans in place - currently being
reviewed commenced June 2015

Increased alignment between
annual training plans and
organisational priorities and
staff need Annual training plans

3.3 Refine approach based on outcomes of gap analysis Kathy Duffy

Recommendation 3:
Draw up plans to deliver the training and development of staff identified as a result of the review of maternity, neonatal and other staff, and should identify opportunities to broaden staff experience in other units, including by secondment and by supernumerary practice. These should be in

place in time for June 2015.

30 June 2015

P
age 93



3.3.1 Detailed education and training plan developed and
refined as a consequence of the outputs of the gap
analysis.

Kathy Duffy/T&F
group/divisional
leads/training leads

31 July 2015

3.4
Scope current training programmes in professional
groups  to identify gaps in delivery Kathy Duffy/Kate Casey

Identification of gaps in current
professional training gap analysis

3.4.1
Assess capacity and resource issues in relation to
delivery of training required to address gaps

Kathy Duffy/T&F group,
divisional leads/Training
leads

Discussions are underway to facilitate
identification of anticipated significant
resource issues. Escalation of these
concerns has taken place to Exec
sponsor, divisional leads and workforce
assurance committee

31 July 2015

3.4.2
Develop plans to deliver training to address gaps,
according to priorities set in 2.9.2

Training Leads/Subject
Matter Experts 31 July 2015

3.4.3
Develop proposals/options to facilitate release of
staff to access training required

Kathy Duffy/T&F
group/divisional leads

31 July 2015

3.5 Identify Clinical rotation requirements for all staff
groups within the Annual Work Roster to other
units

Kathy
Duffy/T&Fgroup/divisional
leads

30 September 2015 Identification of additional
experience requirements and
benefits for staff identified
through gap analysis.

experience needs
analysis  for identified
staff

4

4.1
Scope and agree the full recommendation

requirements Kathy Duffy
Full scoping exercise will be informed by

the outcomes from phases 1 & 2. 30 September 2015

Comprehensive action plan and
narrative to describe a phased

strategic approach
fully developed action

plan for all phases

4.2 Scope CPD requirements of staff groups

Kathy Duffy / Kate Casey /
Education Governance T&F

group 30 September 2015

Clearly defined CPD
requirements for all

professional  staff

CPD requirements
described for all

professional roles

4.2.1

Collate CPD requirements,  for each professional
staff group, including leadership development, and
with reference to internal and external experts and
professional requirements

Kate Casey/Carl Hunter 30 September 2015
4.2.3 Collate available CPD records held internally Kate Casey/Carl Hunter 30 September 2015

4.2.4

Develop a plan to collate all CPD training records
not held centrally within the organisation Kate Casey/Carl

Hunter/Kevin Whittaker 30 September 2015
4.2.5 Collate remaining CPD training records Kate Casey/Carl Hunter 30 September 2015

4.3

Develop band specific Continuing Professional
Development plans for all staff groups including

revalidation

Kathy Duffy/Kate
Casey/Educational
governance group 30 September 2015

Clear professional development
pathways for all staff groups

Clear professional
development pathways

for all staff groups

4.4
Review CPD portfolio/ documentation for all staff

groups Kathy Duffy / Kate Casey 30 September 2015

Plan developed to improve CPD
record keeping and to align with

appraisal processes
Robust CPD records of

all professional staff
14.2

Recommendation 4:
Following completion of additional training or experience where necessary, the University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should: Identify requirements for continuing professional development of staff and link this explicitly with professional requirements

including revalidation. This should be completed by September 2015.

Recommendation 14.2:
All staff with defined responsibilities for clinical leadership should show evidence of attendance at appropriate training and development events. This review should be commenced by April 2015.

30 September 2015

P
age 94



14.2.1 Scope and agree the full recommendation
requirements

Kathy Duffy Underway. Full scoping will be informed
by outcomes from workforce
recommendation 14.1

commenced April 15 Comprehensive action plan and
narrative to describe a phase
strategic approach

fully developed action
plan for all phases

14.2.2 Initial scoping and diagnostics of clinical leadership
development to be commissioned

Kathy Duffy Commissioned May 2015 completed

14.2.3 Report and recommendations from scoping and
diagnostics

Kathy Duffy 30 September 2015

14.2.2 Link  internal leadership training to TMS Kathy Duffy/Carl Hunter Will form part of work under 4.2 to
collate all training and CPD records.

30 September 2015 Robust collated training
information

Collated training
information

14.2.3 Review CPD portfolio/ documentation for all staff
groups

Kathy Duffy /  Kate Casey will form part of the work under 4.4 30 September 2015 Plan developed to improve CPD
record keeping and to align with

appraisal processes

Robust CPD records of
all professional staff

commenced April 15

P
age 95



Governance

Late
Completed
On Track

Recommendation Number 9.1

Recommendations

Progress to date

Ref Actions required Responsible Lead Progress Kirkup date Completion date Expected outcomes/ Benefits KPI/ Measure Evidence/ Output
9.11 Maternity compile all guidelines and undertake risk

assessment prior to  benchmark against  national
standards and guidance Sascha Wells risk assessment document

9.12
Maternity develop a multi-disciplinary guideline group
with robust development and monitoring process's Sascha Wells TOR

9.13 Multi-disciplinary review of 50 CNST guidelines Sascha Wells report for CNST compliance
9.1 4

failure to follow guidelines trigger added to PSI reporting
to support review of all care outside of guidelines Sascha Wells trigger tool

9.1    5 Development of consistent approach to procedural
document (guideline/policy/protocol/sop) review and
ratification across divisions/Trust

Barbara Becker Trust policy ratified and implemented.  Procedural
Documents group on-going chaired by Director of
Governance To be commenced by

September 2015

A multidisciplinary approach to the
development and ratification of all
procedural documents to ensure

consistency of approach across the Trust

compliance with Trust
policy

Trust Policy
Audit/monitoring of Policy

9.1   6 development and implementation of standard divisional
process for development, ratification and
implementation of divisional procedural documents

Barbara Becker developed in WACs - for further review and
consultation for implementation in all divisions

31 Sept 2015

A multidisciplinary approach to the
development and implementation of all

procedural documents to ensure
consistency of approach across the  all
sites  and services that underpins the

delivery of  safe,  high quality care and
excellent patient experience by an

engaged workforce

standardised MDT
approach to
development and on-
going review

Process chart
Guideline groups meeting minutes

9.16 1 Proceedural documents Policy to be implemented

9.16 2 maternity divisional process to be aligned across
divisions 31-Aug-15

9.16 3 divisional process to be implemented
31 sept 2015

9.1   7 Transfer of all document to SharePoint documents
management system

Barbara Becker all documents identified by divisions - work on-going
to put into new Trust format before transfer to
SharePoint repository

30 October 2015

Central repository to ensure safe
storage, efficient retrieval for clinical
staff and on-going management of

procedural documents

central repository Audit

9.17 1 all corporate/divisional documents to be identified

9.17  2 all documents to be reformated into Trust format prior
to transfer to sharepoint

30 September 2015

Findings /failures which led to the recommendation There is evidence of poor interdisciplinary working relations and substandard care. Identified  failure of clinicians to work as an effective clinical team. Local and national guidelines were followed inconsistently, and there were repeated
instances of failure to apply basic principles of care.  Midwives took the lead in developing guidelines, with limited input from consultants

The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should identify an approach to developing better joint working between its main hospital sites , including the development and operation of common policies, systems and
standards. Whilst we do not believe that the introduction of extensive split-site responsibilities for clinical staff will do much other than lead to time wasted in travelling, we do consider that, as part of this approach, flexibility should be built

into working responsibilities to provide temporary solutions to short-term staffing problems. This approach should be begun by September 2015
The Trust has a new Procedural Document Policy which underpins the corporate Procedural Documents Group, chair by the Director of Governance and attended my cross divisional, multi-disciplinary staff.  Maternity have had a mutli-

disciplinary process for development of guidelines and a robust process for ratification and communication and a centrally managed electronic repository for 2+ years with Paediatrics coming on line at a later date.  Compliance of guidance is
monitored via incident reporting and records review and any trends arising are reported and managed via the divisional governance process.  this has substantially increased the engagement with all staff groups and increased compliance with

national standards for care. this process is now being rolled out across all divisions under the remit of Trust Policy co-ordinator

P
age 96



9.17  3  Trust wide communication and engagement to ensure
all staff aware of how to access documents at 'go live'

31 August 2015
9.1   8 all documents to be reviewed, in date and of a high

quality
Barbara Becker all out of date guidelines identified and divisions

asked to risk assess

30 March 2016

a safe framework of guidelines, policies,
protocols and SOP's for clinicians

compliance with Trust
policy

Audit

9.18 1 divisions to undetake risk assessment of 'out of date'
guidelines

Barbara Becker

01 August 2016
9.18  2 programme of review and refresh to be developed Barbara Becker

2016 feb
9.18 3 all reviewed guidance to have MDT consultation and be

ratified via agreed Trust process prior to uploading to
Sharepoint

Barbara Becker

30 March 2016
9.1   9 Review of failure to follow guidelines

incidents/investigations
Geoff Hind                Christine
Morris

a task and finish group is to be identified to review
the ways in which we identify, collate and manage
'failure to follow guidance' from incidents,
investigations and complaints.  This is not to diminish
the autonomy of professional groups, but to support
identification of practice or culture  that falls below
the expected norm i

31 October 2015

a rigorous process to support
identification of incidents where
practice falls below what should

reasonable be expected

applying basic principles
of care to ensure safe
high quality services
and excellent patient
experience

TBC

9.19 1
failure to follow guidelines task and finish group to be
identified

Geoff Hind                    Christine
Morris 31-Jul-15 TORS

9.19 2 tors to be established
Geoff Hind                   Christine
Morris 31-Aug-15 TORS

9. 19 3
1st report to Director of Governance for review of group
and TORs

Geoff Hind                   Christine
Morris 31 Sept 2015 report

TBC tbc

Recommendation Number 11
Findings
/failures
which led to
the
recommendat
ion
Recommendations

Progress to date

Ref Actions required Responsible Lead Progress Kirkup date Completion date Expected outcomes/ Benefits KPI/ Measure Evidence/ Output

The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust has taken the following actions to improve the percentage of patient safety incidents resulting in harm, and so the quality of its services, by undertaking the following actions:
The trust will continue to encourage and maintain a strong reporting culture

Training has been increased for staff on reporting, managing and investigating patient safety incidents;
Weekly senior manager review of all incidents causing moderate or greater harm have been maintained;

Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation (SIRI) continue to be investigated and scrutinised at the SIRI Panel with the assistance of commissioners.
Duty of candour is applied and monitored

In January 2014 the Trust introduced ‘weekly meetings’ led by the Executive Chief Nurse and the Medical Director. These meetings are designed to ensure all incidents / complaints resulting in moderate harm are investigated promptly and
identify any trends or themes arising from these investigations. They are cross divisional meetings attended by Clinical Directors, senior nurses, midwives and governance leads from across the Trust. These meetings have continued in the year

and have improved clinical engagement in incident investigation.  The introduction of standardised reporting to divisions has assisted with the identification of themes arising from incidents
Staff Survey - Improving incident reporting :dealing with incidents & day to day issues is under review as part of a specific focus group that  has been established to review the findings and agree the actions for the remainder of the year.

Inclusive of this group are 2 DGM’s, 1 ACN, Lead AHP, staff side representatives, Respect at Work Lead, Head of Communications and a HRBP
The Trust continues to share information on patient safety incidents with commissioners and partner organisations where patient treatment or concerns cross the healthcare boundary. We receive details of incidents that our partner

organisations have identified that relate to our care and we investigate them appropriately.
 

Learning from patient safety incidents is a key feature of the Trusts Risk Management Strategy and staff endeavour to use the knowledge gained from their investigation to improve care. The Trust has a good reporting culture and reported

There was an incident reporting system (Safeguard),  but not all staff had  received training. A key weakness in clinical governance systems exists if the members of the clinical team do not  recognise a poor outcome as a clinical incident that
could potentially have been avoided, or do not report it, so that such cases go unnoticed outside the immediate clinical team. There are a number of reasons why this might have been the case: clinicians knowingly wishing to obscure poor

outcomes to avoid loss of reputation and blame; clinicians not having the knowledge and skills to recognise that problems could have been avoided; or poor engagement and awareness of incidents across the full range of multidisciplinary staff
, and therefore less discussion and challenge about incidents and causes, which might have resulted in the development of greater insight and recognition of problems

The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should identify and implement a programme to raise awareness of incident reporting, including requirements, benefits and processes. The Trust should also review its policy of
openness and honesty in line with the duty of candour of professional staff, and incorporate into the programme compliance with the refreshed policy. This should be begun with maternity staff by April 2015 and rolled out to other staff by

April 2016.

P
age 97



11.1

Incident training provided as part of Mandatory
(midwives/Obstetrics) training days.

All midwives and medical staff within the maternity
service, including agency staff, have been trained to
use the Safeguard system effectively to report
incidents.

To be commenced by
April 2015

Completed-ongoing
part of mandatory
training

When this training began in 2011, there
was a huge immediate increase in the

number of incidents being reported. The
commitment to incident reporting has
continued and number of incidents for

2012/13 and 2013/14 have continued to
rise but with a lower average severity.

The Trust continues to have a good
reporting culture and reported over

15,000 patient safety incidents in
2014/15 which places the trust is in the

highest 25% of reporters
Mandatory training programme
Training record

11.2

TRUST Ulysses safeguard RCA and incident reporting and
investigation training in place Complete training records

11.3

Duty of Candour included within Being Open Policy,
ratified and available on Heritage

The Duty of candour is applied and monitored in line
with the Trust Being Open Policy.  This policy is
currently being reviewed. Complete Policy

11.4

Management procedure in place for the investigation
and  resolution of complaints Complete

Complaints SOP     performance
reports

11.5

Introduction of weekly Patient Safety Summits, led by
clinical executives and attended by senior clinical
medical and nursing staff  to review all clinical incidents

Patient safety Summits now in place to ensure all
incidents are properly reported, actions taken and
learning disseminated to entire organisation. Complete minutes

11.6 Implement additional training in an  electronic  format
for all staff  to continue  to improve the reporting of
safety incidents and promote a learning culture and
reduction of harms. Also to include further information
in relation to open and honest and duty of candour

Geoff Hind Package in development 31 oct 2015 Staff well informed in relation to
incident reporting and safety culture

100% staff trained by
Oct 15

TMS record

11.61 develop package Geoff Hind training package

11.62 liase with Learning and Development for inclusion on
TMS

Geoff Hind 31 July 2015 check TMS

11.63 all staff to undertake electronic training Geoff Hind 31 October 2015 report from TMS

11.   7 review current  training programme  for managers to
ensure that  roles and responsibilities are understood
and that appropriate investigations are undertaken. Also
to cover expanded duty of candour requirement in
Ulysses

Geoff Hind On-going currently
Target groups to be identified
Programme of sessions to be developed

30 September 2015 Managers/leads will have clear sight of
roles and responsibilities in relation to
reporting and managing incidents and

investigations and will therefore
contribute to continually improving

100% identified staff
trained by March 16

TMS record

11.71 develop package Geoff Hind Package

11.72 Identify current managers requiring training Geoff Hind 30 June 2015 training list

11.73 Undertake training for priority groups Geoff Hind 30 September 2015 training records

11.74 ensure new managers have training added via TMS Geoff Hind TMS record

11.  8 Ensure robust feedback to staff Geoff Hind Ulysses gives individual feedback to all reporters.
Further work to be undertaken in relation to
identifying further opportunities for feedback and
linking to learning to improve group.

30 October 2015 staff will receive feedback to every
incident, promoting engagement and

improvements to support the
monitoring of safe care

task and finish group to
report by Oct 2015

TBC

11.81 implement electronic feedback to reporter via ulyssess Geoff Hind ulysess extract

P
age 98



11.82 thematic report to be developed for learning to improve
group and Trust lessons leanrt monthly bulletin

Geoff Hind report

11.83 standardised reporting of incidents to divisions to be
initiated to support WESEE reporting

Geoff Hind report

11.84 review potential for 'impact assessment' for lessons
learnt

Geoff Hind                     Tracey
Robert Cuffin

TBC TBC

11.  9 Develop collaborative learning group for learning from
complaints, litigation, incidents and patient experience
(Learning to Improve group) to include Trust wide
learning to improve bulletin

Tracey Robert Cuffin Group implemented - 3rd bulletin in new format due
for publication.
Rolling programme of deep dives into a complaint,
litigation, Incidents and patient experience to be
included going forward
Potential for ‘impact assessment’ to be reviewed by
Learning to Improve Group

Deep dives June 2015
Impact assessment Oct 15

supported learning to improve insight
and responsiveness into incident

recognition and  learning from mistakes
and from what is done well to ensure

the potential for improved clinical care
and patient experience is maximised

robust learning to
improve process

Trust/Divisional bulletins

11.91 scope Trust  for sources of data Tracey Robert Cuffin NA

11.92 develop action plan for implementing learning to
improve group

Tracey Robert Cuffin action plan

11.93 develop TOR Tracey Robert Cuffin TOR

11.94 initate cross divisional, multi-disciplinary 'Learning to
Improve' group (formerly CLIPgroup)

Tracey Robert Cuffin Agenda/minutes

11.95 publish bulletin Tracey Robert Cuffin bulletin

11.96 review potential for 'impact assessment' for lessons
learnt

Tracey Robert Cuffin TBC TBC

11.97 commence 'deep dives' Tracey Robert Cuffin 01 June 2015 bulletin

11.98 develop repository for divisional and Trust lessons learnt
bulletins

Tracey Robert Cuffin view sharepoint repository

11.  10 To monitor staff perceptions of incident reporting and
feedback through the quarterly Pulse surveys to help the
Board measure staff perceptions reported to the
Workforce Committee, about their workplace.

Geoff Hind Staff Survey - Improving incident reporting :dealing
with incidents & day to day issues is under review as
part of a specific focus group that  has been
established to review the findings and agree the
actions for the remainder of the year. Inclusive of this
group are 2 DGM’s, 1 ACN, Lead AHP, staff side
representatives, Respect at Work Lead, Head of
Communications and a HRBP

TBC listening to staff opinion will support the
development of an improved reporting

system and engaged staff to support
monitoring of clinical care

improvement in staff
survey

report to workforce committee
detailing pulse survey

Recommendation Number 12

Recommendations

Findings /failures which led to the recommendation There may have been root cause analyses carried out, but these were generally not undertaken by a multidisciplinary team. They might have been reviewed by the clinical lead. The previous pattern of inadequate, defensive internal
investigations was  replicated, treating each incident in isolation, but subsequent events should have made it clear .  The investigation team  were distressed to hear and see evidence that the investigation of maternal deaths was also

sometimes superficial and rudimentary, and failed to identify clear examples of substandard care that this approach was significantly flawed. In some cases, this reflected an over-reliance on poorly completed records, when it would have been
evident from a conversation with the relatives of the deceased that warning signs were missed some time in advance of the subsequent acute deterioration of the patient’s condition. We were also taken aback to find that none of the unit

clinicians, clinical director or executive directors appeared to have considered that there may have been a pattern to the occurrence of these extremely rare events in a small unit

The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should review the structures, processes and staff involved in investigating incidents, carrying out root cause analyses, reporting results and disseminating learning from
incidents, identifying any residual conflicts of interest and requirements for additional training. The Trust should ensure that robust documentation is used, based on a recognised system, and that Board reports include details of how services
have been improved in response. The review should include the provision of appropriate arrangements for staff debriefing and support following a serious incident. This should be begun with maternity units by April 2015 and rolled out across

the Trust by April 2016.

P
age 99



Progress to date

Ref Actions required Responsible Lead Progress Kirkup date Completion date Expected outcomes/ Benefits KPI/ Measure Evidence/ Output
12.1 Current Maternity Risk Management Policy on

Heritage system
begun  by April 2015 19 December 2012

A programme of general RCA training
has been completed for a cohort of
clinicians and managers to provide
capacity for RCA work to underpin

robust investigation of serious
12.2 Current UHMB Risk management Policy available on

Heritage
15 April 2015

12.3 Safeguard (Ulysses) incident reporting system used
for reporting and managing patient safety incidents Ongoing

12.4 WACS Governance lead and risk management team
in maternity and CYP  with processes in place aligned
to Divisional and Trust Risk Management Policy

12.5 Trust standardised investigation templates and
action plans in use for RCA/ rapid review based on
NPSA tools.

12.6 All WACS incident themes monitored with lessons
learnt and linked to audit and education programme

Ongoing

12.7 Issues with clinical component of care of midwives
results in referral to Supervision of midwives for
further investigation

12.8 WACS monthly lessons learned newsletter

Ongoing

12.9 All divisions now completing monthly lessons learnt

Ongoing

12.10 WACS bi monthly Bulletin including lessons learnt

Ongoing

• Training has been increased for staff on reporting, investigating patient safety incidents;
• Weekly senior manager review of all incidents causing moderate or greater harm have been maintained;

• Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation (SIRI) continue to be investigated and scrutinised at the SIRI Panel with the assistance of commissioners.
• Duty of candour is applied and monitored

• In January 2014 the Trust introduced ‘weekly meetings’ led by the Executive Chief Nurse and the Medical Director. These meetings are designed to ensure all incidents / complaints resulting in moderate harm are investigated promptly and
identify any trends or themes arising from these investigations. They are cross divisional meetings attended by Clinical Directors, senior nurses, midwives and governance leads from across the Trust. These meetings have continued in the year

and have improved clinical engagement in incident investigation.
A significant number of clinicians and managers have now received general RCA training to underpin robust investigation of serious incidents. The development of specific RCA advice and prompts to enable investigating staff to continue to

improve the analysis of pressure ulcers to aid specific lines of enquiry has resulted in more effective learning from review of pressure ulcer incidents.

A review of ‘lessons learnt’ communications led to the development of the Trust Learning to Improve bulletin, a monthly organisation publication supported by the Learning to Improve Group (formally CLIP group) ensuring themes arising and
improvements are widely shared electronically, in hard copy for display and via local governance meetings – staff feedback has been encouraging.  Divisional bulletins reflect specific learning within divisions.

P
age 100



12.11 TRUST Learning to improve group (formerly
CLIP)receives themes and develops New format
TRUST Lessons learnt newsletter-Learning to
Improve

Ongoing

12.12 Trust weekly patient safety summit in place to review
all near misses and moderate and above incidents-
led by Executive Chief Nurse and Medical Director
with senior representation from all Divisions

Weekly

12.13 SIRI panel in place with NED chair

Ongoing Monthly

12.  14 Human factors training to increase awareness TBC Trust Lead appointed
External training organised for June 2015 for MDT
from all clinical divisions

Initial training June 2015
Development of wider

Trust initiative TBC

Awareness of human factors such as
those above can help  to:

• understand why healthcare staff make
errors and in particular, which ‘systems

factors’ threaten patient safety
• improve the safety culture of teams

and organisations
• enhance teamwork and improve

communication between healthcare
staff

• improve the design of healthcare
systems and equipment

• identify ‘what went wrong’ and
predict ‘what could go wrong’
• appreciate how certain tools

mentioned  can help to lessen the
likelihood of patient harm

TBC TBC

12.14 1 external training to be arranged and delivered for cross
divisional, mutli disciplanry teams

training records

12.14 2 Trust Lead appointed JD

TBC trust wide human factors initiatives to be developed
(?in edication learning and development action plan)

TBC

12.  15 Trust standardised investigation templates and action
plans in use for RCA/ rapid review based on NPSA tools.

Geoff Hind current RCA training on-going to include
management of the process and undertaking the
investigation 31 August 2015

highly skilled investigators who are able
to identify root cause, residual conflicts,

training requirements to timely and
effective responses when things go

wrong.

reduction in harm
timely investigation

performance in relation to
STEIS/RCA timescales
training schedules completed
reduction in incidents 'within
theme'

12.15 1 standardised templates for RCA investigation developed Geoff Hind

12.51 2 Ulysses RCA module implemented Geoff Hind TBC

P
age 101



12.  16 Ensure identified practice (positive and negative) from
RCA is communicated to Learning to Improve Group to
ensure Trust wide learning

Geoff Hind as per 11.4

30 October 2015

supported learning to improve insight
and responsiveness into incident

recognition and  learning from mistakes
and from what is done well to ensure

the potential for improved clinical care
and patient experience is maximised

monthly trust  and
divisional bulletins
Reduction in harms

Trust/Divisional bulletins
Themed incident reports

12.16 1 monthly report initiated Geoff Hind

12.16 2 identify more robust process for capturing Trust lessons
learnt themes for RCA

Geoff Hind
30 July 2015

12.   17 Development of internal RCA scrutiny panel (pre SIRI) to
provide cross service, multi-disciplinary ‘fresh eyes’ and
to include management and completion of actions
arising from RCA.  To support identification of themes
and trends and identification of residual conflicts and
training requirements

Geoff Hind new development - no progress to date

30 September 2015

To ensure a robust process for
investigation and learning from

incidents to maintain public confidence
and to continually protect and improve

safe high quality care and to ensure that
going forward the Trust and partners

TBC TBC

12.17 1 develop RCA QA process (pre completion) Geoff Hind process flow chart

12.17 2 implement Patient Safety Lead RCA QA process Geoff Hind tbc
12.17 3 scope ways to provide 'fresh eyes' QA Geoff Hind process flow chart

12.17 4 develop 'electronic fresh eyes' scrutiny panel Geoff Hind 01 September 2015

12.17 5 identify staff for scrutiny panel Geoff Hind 31 sept 2105
12.17 6 train scrutiny panel Geoff Hind 31 October 2015
12.17 7 Implement panel Geoff Hind 30 November 2015
12.   18 Roll out ‘Sign up to safety’ campaign Geoff Hind 2 elements currently underdevelopment

31 May 2016

Sign up to Safety aims to deliver harm
free care for every patient, every time,
everywhere.  It champions openness
and honesty and supports everyone to
improve the safety of patients

Reduction in harm          TBC

12.   19 Develop NW Safety Hub to develop collegiate working
across the region

Geoff Hind new development - no progress to date

TBC

to embed the ethos of sign up to safety
across the region and stakeholders by
sharing good practices, initiatives and
learning

Reduction in harm
across the region

TBC

12.19 1

Establishing links in terms of links across the
health economy in relation to incoming
outgoing traffic - process driven in relation
to incident management

Geoff Hind 31 October 2016 TBC

12.19 2

Establish connection with previous LATS
group in relation to learning lessons across
the patch Geoff Hind 31 October 2016 TBC

Recommendation Number 13

Findings
/failures
which led to
the
recommendat
ion

Recommendations

Patients, parents and families indicated that they had not received adequate – or in some cases any – explanations of why something went wrong, and  had basic questions about aspects of the care received. Throughout the period under
investigation, information was provided to the governance committees and, through them, to the Board. The focus is not on the lessons learnt or the issues arising from the complaints, but predominantly on the time taken to process an
investigation. Information of a valuable nature that might have identified trends, clinical issues or consistent service failures appears to be absent in any meaningful way. The investigation formed the view that complaints were seen as an
administrative chore by the Trust, to be completed as quickly as possible before addressing the next case. Opportunities for learning were missed, and it was hard to see how complaints were being used by the Trust to improve the care it

offered patients. The Trust needs to consider carefully how it interacts with patients and families through complaints. It cannot see them as administrative tasks, but rather as insights into the working of the organisation. Complaints can be an
essential route to tackling systemic and individual failings within an organisation. The approach during the period of the Investigation does not demonstrate that anything changed as a result of the lessons learnt by the failures in service. The

Board needs to be vigilant and to challenge its officers about the complaints it receives, and not be satisfied with number-based reports.

The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should review the structures, processes and staff involved in responding to complaints, and introduce measures to promote the use of complaints as a source of improvement
and reduce defensive ‘closed’ responses to complainants. The Trust should increase public and patient involvement in resolving complaints, in the case of maternity services through the Maternity Services Liaison Committee. This should be

completed, and the improvements demonstrated at an open Board meeting, by December 2015.

P
age 102



Progress to date

Ref Actions required Responsible Lead Progress Kirkup date Completion date Expected outcomes/ Benefits KPI/ Measure Evidence/ Output
13.  1 Review of complaints procedures to ensure compliance

with national  ombudsman recommendations and other
national standards

Lee Brady

31 December 2015

30 June 2015 to align our policies and procedures
with the ombudsman to enhance
patient experience in relation to making
a complaint

reduced referrals to
PHSMO

Board report/dashboard

13.  2 Streamline reporting to divisions/quality committee in
line with national KPI’s

Lee Brady National KPI has not yet been released.  However,
the department has undertaken a scope of all current
reporting to Divisions and has developed a revised
report based on previous KPIs.  Once the national
KPIs are released this will be quickly implemented to
support ward to board reporting through one
standardised reporting system.  This does not impact
on the current robust reporting management and
learning from complaints, concerns and PALS--date
needs to be amended through KRIG to end of
September 2015

30 June 2015 to ensure high quality data is shared to
support customer engagement,
response performance and
identification of themes arising and
shared learning--  national KPI data not
yet released Need to amend date
formally

National KPI divisional and board
reports/dashboard

13.4 Develop Management Procedure for the
Investigation and Resolution of Complaints

Lee Brady 31 August 2015 procedural document

13.  5 Roll out of existing awareness training from Patient
relations Team and develop to include ‘best practice’
advice in relation to consistent and supportive
management of complainants  to include quality in
terms of content

Lee Brady training on going Training development July
2015      Divisional training
rolling programme to
March 2016

to ensure staff feel confident and able
to respond with sensitivity and
compassion  when patient experience
has caused concern

User survey - rate my
response
staff survey -
confidence levels

survey results

13.5 1 review/refresh training package Lee Brady 31 July 2015 package
13.5 2 identify target group Lee Brady 31 August 2015 divisional triaing lists
13.5 3 implemet training Lee Brady 31 March 2016 training attendance
13.  6 Review/Audit of complaints mangaement to include all

‘re-visits
Lee Brady Continual audit

commencing July 2015
responsive and high quality responses
to complaints at first response

reduction in re-visits audit

13.6 1 develop audit Lee Brady na
13.6 2 pilot audit tool Lee Brady 01 June 2016 na
13.6 3 implement audit Lee Brady 31 July 2016 audit tool
13.6 4 report findings (on-going) and review training

requirement based on findings
Lee Brady 31 August 2015 report to Governance Director

13.  7 Develop managers  ‘meet and greet’ customer contact
process

Fliss Swift 30 October 2015 increase in patient customer contact to
identify concerns at point of care

reduction of formal
complaints

complaints numbers

13.7 1 intial development meeting 01 July 2015

13.7 2 TBC

13.  8 Develop North West Experience Hub Lee Brady 31 January 2016 to embed the ethos of patient
satisfaction the region and stakeholders
by sharing good practices, initiatives and
learning

TBC TBC

13.8 1 intial scoping of other providers
13.8.2 TBC

Significant work has been undertaken to promote the numerous pathways available for complaints and comments to patients and visitors, providing a more visible presence of the service, which could account for the growth in complaint
number.  Performance in relation to timely response has improved significantly and is now compliant with Trust Policy

Promotion of complaints has included creating the dedicated web page for Patient Relations and PALS on the Trust’s internet site; the amendment of the complaint leaflet with the creation of the Concerns or complaints leaflet on what to do to
raise a comment or complaint; and promotion within the Trust’s weekly newsletter, Weekly News and Divisional Complaints Workshops and presentations

The Patient Relations department is working towards forging improved relationships with divisional staff and by providing complaints workshops in 2015/16 and beyond, the aim is to promote local resolution to resolve a concern or complaint
at source. This, it is predicted, will result in the number of concerns/complaints being resolved at a local level.

Through the attendance at the Learning to Improve  group, it is anticipated that the sharing of information from these departments with Divisional Governance Leads will have a positive impact on identifying trends of concerns and complaints
throughout the Trust and ultimately result in robust lessons learned when taken forward by the divisions.

P
age 103



Recommendation Number 15

Recommendations

Progress to date

Ref Actions required Responsible Lead Progress Kirkup date Completion date Expected outcomes/ Benefits KPI/ Measure Evidence/ Output
15.  1 Standardised process for management of divisional risk

registers
Carl Foulkes monthly review and reporting process in place and

led by clinical Directors via the Quality Committee.
Further work to be undertaken to standardise
management and quality assurance on new risks, on-
going management and risks for closure to reflect the
newly ratified Trust Risk Management Strategy

not specified

31 August 2015 Robust Risk management will ensure
recognition and effective management

of all threats and opportunities that may
have an impact on the Trusts ability to

deliver its statutory responsibilities and
the achievement of its objectives and

values., thereby limiting the assurance

assurance Via internal
committee review and
NHS internal audit
programme

Audit

15.1 1 development of standardised risk register QA process in
maternity

Val Wilson QA process's

15.1 2 annual internal audit compliance - risk management Paul Jones Final report from MIAA

15.1.3 consultation with divisions in relation to standardised
QA process

Carl Foulkes 31 August 2015 standardised process

15.1.4 implementation of agreed process Carl Foulkes 30 September 2015 completed process/report

15.  2 Standardised reporting in relation to divisional risk
register

TBC 30 September 2015 Robust and consistent
reporting with
congruent objectives
ward to board

audit of divisional risk registers and
BAF

15.2 1 clinical directors to deliver standardised report to the
Quality Committee monthly

Carl Foulkes divisional reports

15.2.2 wesee/performance reporting to be reviewed after QA
process decided

Carl Foulkes 31 nov 2015 revised divisional WESEE reports

15.  3 Training packages for the management of risks on the
risk register

TBC training on-going but requiring review in terms of
content and target audience

31 March 2016 100% training of
identified staff groups

TMS

15.3 1 develop training package Carl Foulkes training package

15.3 2 implement training as requested ad hoc Carl Foulkes training register

15.3 3 undertake review of divisional training requirement Carl Foulkes 30 September 2015 TNA

15.   4 further development of standardised divisional report
templates for
• Workforce
• Experience
• Safety
• Effectiveness
• Efficiency
To link with identified Trust KPI’s within corporate/trust
committees/dashboard

Christine Morris templates in place but further work required in
relation to content, alignment with Trust dashboards
and KPI's

30 December 2015 To drive improvement in patient safety
the Trust will develop reporting

templates (and subsequently fully
integrate them to the Trust dashboards)

to ensure it receives the best quality
information possible,

standardised reports for
performance and
governance meeting

completed report

 The past 12 months have seen a significant review and development phase within both the structure and delivery of Clinical and Corporate Governance at the Trust.  The lack of confidence in the Trusts’ governance systems identified by our
regulators has been used as a framework to undertake a wholesale review of governance from ward to board.  Using the Monitor Governance Framework and key national documents, the Governance Team have systematically reviewed,

developed and implemented  robust methodology to ensure going forward, we can have confidence in the monitoring of the standard and quality of all the care we provide, and in the responses we make when areas of concern are identified.
The pace of change has been rapid, and  significant assurance is now being reported by our external auditors. There is still much to do to ensure we sustain the incredible progress that has been made, but we are now in a position to progress

from ensuring minimum standards for governance are in place, to making plans for innovative and sophisticated models of integrated quality governance to enhance the robust reporting and assurance process’s now in evidence.

 A number of projects have been reviewed externally receiving either significant or full assurance

Findings /failures which led to the recommendation
Although the content of the meetings appeared appropriate, the committee operated at a high level, and received little detailed information related to actual clinical risks and outcomes in a systematic way but focused on quality development
and strategy, and on receiving minutes from other committees. Quality and governance had a low profile at the Board, with the predominant focus being on finance and performance targets. Although there was evidence of systematic failings

in the FGH maternity unit prior to 2008, it is clear that none of it reached senior levels in the Trust, particularly executive directors and the Board itself. Partly, this was due to poorly developed systems of clinical governance within the Trust
which meant that there was little formal oversight of safety or other quality matters in clinical services. Staff identified the fact that governance structures functioned less well at divisional level and Divisional middle managers  were not

involved in the clinical governance process.

The University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust should continue to prioritise the work commenced in response to the review of governance systems already carried out, including clinical governance, so that the Board has
adequate assurance of the quality of care provided by the Trust’s services. This work is already underway with the facilitation of Monitor, and we would not seek to vary or add to it, which would serve only to detract from implementation. We

do, however, recommend that a full audit of implementation be undertaken before this is signed off as completed.

P
age 104



previous development and implementation of
standarised divisional reporting process (WESEE)
internally assured by MIAA

Christine Morris MIAA final report

benchmark against dashboards and committee
reporting requirements

Christine Morris 31 August 2015 gap analysis

develop new wesee metric if required Christine Morris 30 September 2015 revised template

consultation process with divisions Christine Morris 31 nov 2015 NA

implement agreed wesee templates Christine Morris 31 December 2015 revised template

15.   5 Review of commons aims and objective in meeting
structures, management, reporting, attendance and
TORs
• Ward level meetings
• Service/area/matron level meetings
• Divisional
• Corporate/governors/NEDS
• Sub committee
• Executive Board

Paul Jones work already started in relation to standardised TOR,
minutes,agendas and reporting

31 March 2016 TBC TBC

15.51 Trust level Governance process (WESEE) internally
assured by MIAA

Paul Jones final MIAA report

15.52 Review of Trust Board strategic function Paul Jones 31.7.2015 updated policy
15.53

scope  current coporate meetings to seek further
assurance in respect of meeting purpose,
effectiveness and connectivity Paul Jones 31.8.15

Reviewing how we govern clinical
quality and corporate function, we will

ensure that we not only  identifies,
actions and remedies harms, but also

continual monitoring and reporting will
ensure our Trust Board are able to out

the needs and experiances of our
patients at the heart of all decision

making.

15.54 agree common meeting purpose and align divisional,
corporate and Board business and reporting

Paul Jones 31/09/2015 see below

15.55 review pertainant TORs to ensure congruency post
review and scope (15.52,3,4)

31.12.15

15.56 review potential for electronic versions of WEESEE Paul Jones
Chrisinte Morris

31 December 2015 standardised electronic meeting
spaces for sharepoint

15.57 consult with divisions to agree new templates Paul Jones
Chrisinte Morris

31.jan 2016 na

15.58 agree Trust templates for TORs, agendas, minutes,
action plans and associated meeting documents

Paul Jones 30 September 2015 agreed templates showing agreed
aims and objectives

15.59 implement new templates Paul Jones 31/11/2015

15.  6 Development of Governance Strategy to include
assurance weightings and escalation process

Paul Jones review of other provider Governance Strategy
undertaken

30 November 2015 To ensure that an effect and
transparent, patient centred

compliance with
Governance Strategy

15.6 1 review other Trust governance strategies Val Wilson

15.6 2 develop strategy and benchmark against other  Trust
strategy for congruence and to avoid duplication

Val Wilson 31 August 2015

15.6 3 share with governance team and executive Val Wilson 30 September 2015
15.6 4 ratify as per Trust policy 30 October 2015 Governance Srategy

P
age 105



15  7 Review of Internal Audit forward plan for Governance Paul Jones 01 June 2015 to ensure robust challenge of Trust
governance process

full compliance with
internal audit
programme with levels
of significant assurance

internal audit programme

15.7 1 undertake robust internal audit programme 2014/2015 Paul Jones 2014/15 internal audit reports

15.7 2 propose internal audit plan 2015/16 Paul Jones

15.7 3 consultation via Audit Committee Paul Jones 31 July 2015

15.7 4 agreed internal audit programme 2015/16 Paul Jones 31 August 2015
15.  8 Review of 2014/15 internal Audit findings to ensure all

recommendations implemented
Paul Jones 31 July 2015 to ensure full compliance with audit

recommendations to maximise the
effectiveness of our governance

full implementation of
all recommendations

audit review

15.8 1 review all reports to identify recommendations Paul Jones 31 July 2015

15.8 2 benchmark recommendations against each report
subject to identify gaps

Paul Jones 30 September 2015 gap analysis

15.8 3 undertake actions to remedy any outstanding actions Paul Jones 31 December 2015 completed action plan

15.  9 Undertake external 'well-led' review and partial review
of divisional governance

Mary Aubrey TBC TBC TBC TBC

15.  10 Annual clinical audit plans  to be developed using
Healthcare Quality Improvement Partnership (HQIP)
Guidance to prioritise audits.

Heather Pratt Annual clinical audit plan developed using Healthcare
Quality Improvement Partnership (HQIP) Guidance. 
Annual clinical audit plan presented to the Quality
Committee on 20.4.16

complete standardised practice to maximise
potential for learning and

improvements in clinical care

compliance against
HQUIP standards

audit

Internal Audit review by MIAA assuring heather Pratt internal audit report
15.  11 All audits will have an action plan developed in line with

Healthcare Quality Improvement Partnership (HQIP)
Guidance.

Heather Pratt An action plan template has been devised and
implemented in line with HQIP to capture the
actions required, required date and person
responsible. 

complete 100% of audits to have
action plan

audit

15.  12 Develop a clinical audit module on the Ulysses safeguard
system to follow up and monitor the timely
implementation of clinical audit and action plans arising

Heather Pratt a new clinical audit module is due to be rolled out
which will be similar to the incident and risk module.
As soon as a request for audit is raised (new
proposal) and, once the audit has been completed,
the actions can be assigned to the action lead who is
responsible for uploading the evidence and closing
down the action.  Reports will then be run off by
specialty and priority level so that divisions can
monitor their action plans

31 October 2015 To further improve the audit process
in terms of engagement, clinical

improvements and shared learning
to support the ongoing development

of effective and safe care

standardise module
with full divisional
engagement

audit

15.12 1 develop audit module for ulysses Heather Pratt Ulyses module
15.12 2 roll out with support Heather Pratt 31 July 2015
15.12 3 independent divisional use of module Heather Pratt 31 October 2015
15.12 4 develop training package to support electronic module Heather Pratt 31 July 2015

15. 12.5 identify training target groups Heather Pratt 31 July 2015

15.12 6 implement training Heather Pratt 31 October 2015 training programme

15.  13 100% of audits will have an action plan implemented
within the allocated timescales

Heather Pratt For every audit that has been completed an
action plan is developed using the template.  An
action plan module for clinical audit has been
developed in ULYSSES so that every action plan
received can be entered onto the system.  We
have improved our standard by escalating any
outstanding action plans monthly to the Clinical
Audit and Effectiveness Steering Group where
by a letter is sent to the healthcare professional

31 December 2015 identified improvement measures will
be implemented in a timely manner to
ensure highest clinical standards and

patient experience

100% completed Action
plans

audit

15.13 1 action plan template developed Heather Pratt template

P
age 106



15.13 2 audit leads appraised of requirement to add to every
audit without exception

Heather Pratt

15.13 3 compliance reported to Clincal Audit and Effectivess
group

Heather Pratt monthly report

15.13 4 100% complinance level 1 and 2 Heather Pratt 21 July 2015 compliance report

15.13 5 100% compliance 3 and 4 Heather Pratt 31 October 2015 compliance report

15.  14 To ensure the objectives of the clinical audit and
effectiveness committee are embedded at divisional
level and are expressed in local audit meeting structures
and reporting

Heather Pratt underway as part of the Ulysses module
development

31 August 2015 to ensure common aims and
transparent process are embedded

through the organisation

congruent Tors
standardised reporting
template

audit

15.14 1 develop standardised divisional reports to reflect ulysses
module

31 August 2015 divisional report

15.14 2 review local audit meeting TOR and align to committee 31 August 2015 standardised tor

15.  15 Gain compliance with NHS protect security standards for
2014/15 and develop sustainability plan for on-going
compliance to include standardised reporting ward to
board based on NHS standards

Dan Willis Gained compliance with NHS protect security
standards for 2014/15 further work TBC

31 July 2015 on-going compliance with national
standards to protect patients and staff

on-going compliance to
protect patients and
staff

audit

15.15 1 gain compliance as above Dan Willis compliance report
15.15 2 develop sustainability plan Dan Willis 31 July 2015 compliant plan
15.15 3 develop standardised reporting ward to board Dan Willis 31 July 2015 report
15.  16 Review tors for trust security strategy group against

guidance/standards – Inc. schedule of business,
monitoring of attendance and escalation of non-
attendance and  wider Trust engagement to raise profile
within the organisation

Dan Willis 30 November 2015 robust TORs           Staff
aware and enabled to
manage local security to
safeguard all within the
hospital environment

TOR
staff survey

15.16 1 undertake review and align tors  to national standards Dan Willis 31 December 2015 revised tors

15.16 2 identify reporting requirements for divisions and align
with WESEE reporting

31 December 2015

15.16 3 develop escalation process for non attendance Dan Willis 31 July 2015 attendance monitoring tool and
monthly compliance

15.16 4 develop engagement tools to increase awareness Dan Willis 30 September 2015

15.16 5 implementation of engagement tools Dan Willis 30 November 2015 enagagement tools and schedule

15.  17 Review NHS employers health and safety standards and
benchmark current Trust activity and policy/strategy and
review meeting structure and TOR to reflect business
requirement following review to ensure progress in
relation to warning notices and all H&S workstreams is
sustained

Anna Smith warning notices lifted and HSE review satisfactory 30 November 2015 ensure high levels of compliance with
Health and Safety standards to maintain

safe practices for patients and staff

standards met audit

15.17 1 undertake review and align tors  to national standards Anna Smith tors

15.17 2 review meeting structure Anna Smith meeting structure

15.17 3 benchmark UHMBT against national standards Anna Smith gap analysis

15.17 4 implement remedial action plan to adress any gaps
identified

Anna Smith compliant action plan

15.  18 undertake LIA big conversation  around demystifying
and engaging in H&S  and embedding that H&S is
'everyone’s business '–  to include understanding risk
assessment.  Develop programme of action once LIA
complete

Anna Smith 31 August 2015 elicit staff opinion and suggestions to
ensure a fully engaged workforce

NA output from LIA event

P
age 107



15.18 1 liasie with LIA Lead Anna Smith 30 June 2015

15.18 2 implement big conversation Anna Smith 31 July 2015

15.18 3 review findings and develop actions/response Anna Smith 14 August 2015

15.18 4 implement agreed actions Anna Smith 31 August 2015

15.  19 increase visibilty of Corporate Governance Team to
underpin Governance improvement journey

Christine Morris 30 September 2015 increase engagement with corporate
teams to increase staff awareness and
confidence with governance process

15.19 1 all governance leads to attend divisional DGAG meetings
Christine Morris attendance rota

attendance monitoring

15.19 2
governance team to meet with ward leads to discuss
governance performance and raise awareness

Christine Morris

attendance rota
attendance monitoring

P
age 108



Late
Completed
On Track

Ref Actions required Responsible Lead Progress Kirkup date Completion date Expected outcomes/ Benefits KPI/ Measure Evidence/ Output

14.1

14.1.1 Review of leadership structure in Womens and
Children Division

There has been significant change in the
management and leadership structures within the
Women and Children’s Division, which became a
standalone division in March 2012 when it and Core
Clinical Services were separated.

To be commenced
by April 2015 Complete

14.1.2 Review of clinical leadership structure Clinical leadership in the Division changed in in April
2012 when an interim Clinical Director and interim
Divisional General Manager were appointed for the
Division on an initial 12 month contract. This was part
of the Trust’s move to put clinicians in charge of
clinical divisions with support from managers, not the
other way around as it had been previously. The
clinical leadership structure was made permanent in
April 2013.
The new clinical leadership structure that was
launched in April 2012 has had a positive impact on
culture. These are all cross Bay roles to promote
consistency and team-working across the Bay.

Complete

Organisational Charts.

14.1.3 Review of midwifery leadership structure Midwifery leadership structure in place with. The
Trust has also appointed specialist midwives to take a
lead for important areas, including a Governance
Lead, a Risk Manager, a Practise Development
Midwife, an Audit Midwife, Clinical Educators, a
Quality and Safety Midwife, and two Bereavement
Midwives

Complete

Organisational Charts.

14.1.4 Review of Children and Young Peoples Nursing
Structure

Nursing leadership structure in place in Children and
Young Peoples Service

Complete

Organisational Charts.

14.1.5 Identify lead roles within the consultant team Consultant obstetrician and paediatricians allocated
specific roles for leadership roles in
neonatal/audit/governance

Complete

Job Plans

Workforce

Recommendation Number

Kirkup date (NOT
RAG rated)

Findings /failures which led to the recommendation

Leadership within maternity identified as a major concern.  No strong role models. Lack of visibility. No strong and decisive leadership.  Ineffective clinical leadership-lack of vision and strategic planning of these services, but also due
to the lack of managerial support and the increasingly defiant behaviour by clinical colleagues.  No evidence of high quality leadership skills/ weak leadership at directorate and divisional levels.  Poor strategic leadership.  No clear
leadership responsibility.

Recommendations

Should review arrangements for clinical leadership in obstetrics, paediatrics and midwifery, to ensure that the right people are in place with appropriate skills and support. The Trust has implemented change at executive level, but
this needs to be carried through to the levels below. This review should be commenced by April 2015.
link to Education, Learning and Development workbook 14.2

Progress to date Leadership roles for Midwifery, Obstetrics and Paediatrics collated and under review.

Clinical leaders have current job
descriptions with clear roles and
responsibilities.  Regular appraisals with
staff and clinical director.  Regular
proactive team meetings with clear
decision making and action planning in
line with divisional objectives.  Regularly
appraised team member with clear aims
and objectives. Team members working
closely together and working closely
across specialities to deliver safe
excellent patient care.

P
age 109



14.1.6 WACS MDT Leadership programme in place. The Leadership & Development programme was
effective from 9th October 2014 and runs on a
fortnightly basis.  This is a Division wide leadership
programme and includes representatives from all
departments/ professions of band 7 and above.
Topics covered to date include: Finance, leadership,
values and visions, complaints, attendance
management, CQC.

Leadership Programme

14.1.7 Further review of WACS leadership structure To be commenced by
April 2015

14.1.7.1
Collate organisational structure for midwifery,
obstetrics and paediatrics John Bannister Structure collated 30 April 2015 Organisational Charts.

14.1.7.2 Collate job descriptions John Bannister JD and Person Spec collated 30 April 2015 Job Description

14.1.7.3
Review and revise job descriptions including roles
and responsibilities

Sue Smith/David Walker/
Foluke Ajayi Ongoing 31 July 2015 Job Description

14.1.7.4 Ensure that job descriptions are clear with regards
to multi-disciplinary team working and strong cross
speciality relationships. John Bannister/Katy Stretch Ongoing 31 July 2015 Job Description

14.1.7.5

Ensure leadership arrangements, roles and
responsibilities are consistent across clinical
divisions within the organisation John Bannister Ongoing 31 August 2015

Job Description and organisational
charts.

14.1.7.6
Review and revise job plans to ensure clear
expectations for clinical leadership roles John Bannister Ongoing 31 August 2015

8

8.1 Draft recruitment and retention strategy David Wilkinson Draft strategy prepared. 30 April 2015
8.2 Present recruitment and retention strategy to

Workforce Committee.
David Wilkinson Draft strategy presented to Workforce Committee

30 April 2015
8.3 Develop divisional plans to support delivery of R&R

Strategy
John Bannister 31 August 2015

31 August 2015
8.4 Audit divisional plans to support delivery of R&R

Strategy
Gertie Nicphilib Not commenced as yet. Commence

01 October 2015

8.5
cross reference to ELD workbook re cross
organisational working etc.-recommendation 3 John Bannister Not commenced as yet. 31 July 2015

8.6

cross reference to Strategic Partnership work re
cross organisational working etc.-recommendation
3 John Bannister Not commenced as yet. 31 July 2015

8.7

Review standard contract of employment to
ensure inclusion of flexibility with regards to
flexibility of staff John Bannister Not commenced as yet. 31 July 2015

9.2

100% clinical leads with
JD.

95% of appraisals up to
date.

Recommendation Number
Findings /failures which led to the recommendation Dysfunctional nature of maternity service at FGH. Deficient skills and knowledge. Difficulties with recruitment and retention of midwives, obstetricians and paediatricians. High levels of sickness absence.

Recommendations

Identify a recruitment and retention strategy aimed at achieving a balanced and sustainable workforce with the requisite skills and experience. This should include, but not be limited to, seeking links with one or more other centre(s)
to encourage development of specialist and/or academic practice whilst offering opportunities in generalist practice in the Trust; in addition, opportunities for flexible working to maximise the advantages of close proximity to South
Lakelands should be sought. Development of the strategy should be completed by January 2016.
(Cross reference with Recommendation 10)

Progress to date Draft organisation recruitment and retention strategy produced.

To be completed
by January 2016

Improved recruitment and retention of
staff ensuring staffing levels are in line
with national guidance and acuity levels.
UHMB is a preferred place of
employment.

Percentage of vacant
posts.

Staff turnover.
Sickness absence rates.

Vacancy fill rates.

Recruitment and Retention
Strategy and Board Report
Link to Better Care Together
Recruitment and retention
strategy
HENW Workforce Planning
Submission

Recommendation Number
Findings /failures which led to the recommendation Lack of common/consistent policies. Differences between FGH and RLI with regard to systems and processes. Difficulties in moving staff between sites due to these different systems and processes. Dysfunctional nature of maternity

service at FGH. Deficient skills and knowledge. Difficulties with recruitment and retention of midwives, obstetricians and paediatricians. High levels of sickness absence.

Cross Referenced with Governance Project (9.1)

P
age 110



9.2.1 Cross Bay Obstetric and Midwifery guidelines in
place, available on Heritage (electronic repository)

All Obstetric and midwifery Guidelines as required by
CNST are available on heritage.  Guidelines have been
reviewed against NICE guidelines (where available) to
ensure compliance.  The Trust achieved CNST level 1
in February 2013

Complete Guidelines on Heritage
CNST report

9.2.2 Multi-Disciplinary and professional specific training
and development days introduced in maternity

See Clinical Quality ref 5.2 Complete Maternity Training programme and
attendance records

9.2.3 Preceptorship programme introduced The Preceptorship programme was introduced in
2012 and provides a framework to develop staff to
progress from band 5 to band 6 in maternity care.
This includes rotation around all sites.  This again
ensures all band 5 and 6 midwives will be adaptable
to the organisation and enable a consistent approach
across the Bay.

Complete Preceptorship programme and
number of midwives completing

9.2.4 A number of cross bay speciality roles in place
within WACS

The Trust has also appointed specialist midwives to
take a lead for important areas, including a
Governance Lead, a Risk Manager, a Practise
Development Midwife, an Audit Midwife, Clinical
Educators, a Quality and Safety Midwife, and two
Bereavement Midwives

Complete Job descriptions.

9.2.5 Escalation policy in place in WACS

9.2.6 Review job descriptions for clinical staff to ensure
flexibility regarding service provision.

Sascha Wells/Paula
Evans/Paul Gibson and
Sanjay Sinha

Considerable work already undertaken but a formal
review is required to ensure consistency 30 September 2015

TBC

9.2.6.1.
Undertake job description review (cross reference
14.1.6.3) Sue Smith/David Walker ref 14.1.6.3 ref 14.1.6.3

9.2.6.2 Amend job descriptions Sue Smith/David Walker ref 14.1.6.4 ref 14.1.6.4

9.2.6.3
Job description sign of by  the Chief Nurse and
Medical Director. Sue Smith/David Walker ref 14.1.6.5 ref 14.1.6.5

9.2.7
Undertake a review of policies to ensure
consistency and review/amend where required.

Sascha Wells/Paula
Evans/Paul Gibson and
Sanjay Sinha Not commenced as yet. 30 September 2015

TBC

9.2.8
Undertake a review of systems to ensure
consistency and review/amend where required.

Sascha Wells/Paula
Evans/Paul Gibson and
Sanjay Sinha Not commenced as yet. 30 September 2015

TBC

9.2.9
Undertake a review of standards to ensure
consistency and review/amend where required.

Sascha Wells/Paula
Evans/Paul Gibson and
Sanjay Sinha Not commenced as yet. 30 September 2015

TBC

16

Recommendations Identify an approach to develop a better joint working between its main hospital sites, including the development and operation of common policies, systems and standards. Flexibility should be built into working responsibilities to
provide temporary solutions to short term staffing problems. This should have begun by September 2015

Progress to date Considerable work already undertaken regarding job descriptions  but a formal review is required to ensure consistency.
No further action has commenced as yet.

should be begun
by September

2015

Job Descriptions.

Policy Documentation.

Standard Operating Procedures.

Standard Operating Procedures.

Consistent high quality care provided
across the Trust.

Staff able to work on any Trust site
where short term needs necessitate.

Improved recruitment and retention of
staff ensuring staffing levels are in line

with national guidance and acuity levels.

Recommendation Number
Findings /failures which led to the recommendation Lack of understanding regarding escalation of risk. Failure to appropriately spot and escalate concerns regarding quality and risk. Poor functioning and understanding of governance structures. Middle managers stated that they were

not involved in the governance process. Divisional Manager had little to do with clinical quality. Structure meant it was difficult for concerns to be heard. Lack of wider involvement in incident reviews.

Recommendations Ensure that middle manager, seniors manager and non-executives have the appropriate clarity over roles and responsibilities in relation to quality and it should provide appropriate guidance and where necessary training. To be
completed by December 2015

Progress to date Review of job descriptions commenced.

P
age 111



16.1

Clinical Service Managers/ DGM included within
Membership of key Divisional Governance
Meetings

Clinical service managers and Divisional General
Managers are key members of Divisional meetings
such as the Divisional Governance and Assurance
Group.

Complete ToR for Divisional Governance and
Assurance Meetings

16.2
Annual Mandatory training for risk and Incident
management training

There is annual mandatory training for all  employees
within the Trust.  The annual mandatory training
workbook contains information relating to incident
reporting and risk management

Complete and ongoing

16.3 Incident training and feedback of incidents
E-learning packages are available for managers to
access

Complete and ongoing

16.4 Information governance
Information Governance is part of mandatory
training and corporate induction

Complete and ongoing

16.5 NEDS chair meetings

the Non-Executive Directors chair a range of quality
meetings within the trust including Quality
committee

Complete and ongoing

16.6
Review and revise job descriptions including roles
and responsibilities (reference action 14.1.3) Sue Smith/David Walker Ongoing 31 July 2015

TBC

16.7

Undertake self-assessment exercise to highlight
any shortfalls in understanding regarding roles and
responsibilities in relation to quality. TBC

Need to cross reference with ELD project and capture
within those recommendations           Not
commenced as yet. 31 July 2015

TBC

16.8
Develop training programme based upon gap
analysis TBC Not commenced as yet. 30 September 2015

TBC

16.9 Deliver training programme TBC Not commenced as yet. 30 October 2015
TBC

16.10 Repeat self-assessment exercise TBC Not commenced as yet. 31 December 2015

TBC

All middle managers, senior managers
and non-executives have a clear
understanding of their roles and
responsibilities in relation to quality.

Job Description.
Self-assessment documentation.
Training programme.

To be completed
by December 2015

P
age 112



Late
Completed
On Track

Ref Actions required Responsible Lead Progress Kirkup date
Completion
date

Expected outcomes/
Benefits KPI/ Measure Evidence/ Output

17

1 Formulation of UHMB Estates Strategy, including proposals
to resolve clinical vulnerabilities.  This document includes a
series of linked moves within the Womens & Childrens
Division at Furness General Hospital, one purpose of which
is to bring the delivery suite next to the maternity theatre.

Tristram Reynolds Approved by Board March 2015 Dec-17 Mar-15 Framework within which the
Kirkup recommednations will
be pursued

Complete Document available

2 WaCs team agree what rooms required in each area of
remodelled Dept - (a) gynae ward to former SCBU (b) paed
ward to vacant gynae ward (c) maternity ward & delivery
suite to vacant paed ward (d) paed outpatients to PART of
vacant maternity ward (e)  early pregnancy unit to vacated
pead outpatients

Tristram Reynolds Proforma issued asking WaCs to specifiy key criteria on rooms,
in particular how many beds & cots.  Initial outline and detail
discussed and final agreement to occur.  The detail of the
plans will be developed by 30 September 2015 (4)

Dec-17 mid June Essential component of the
design scheme

Complete Proforma completed

3 Sketch layout for each part of the remodelled Dept Tristram Reynolds Initial sketch complete.  Reqires detailed sketch layout which
will be completed by 30 September 2015 (action 4)

Dec-17 mid June Component of scheme Complete Sketch scheme completed

4 Detailed layout agreed in conjunction with WaCs team,
including external teams such as Infection Prevention and
patients/families.  A series of meetings involving different
people within WaCs

Tristram Reynolds WaCs formulating membership of the groups to work on this
exercise

Dec-17 end September Component of scheme Complete Detailed scheme completed

5 Board appoints P21 development partner Tristram Reynolds Potential partners identified Dec-17 end November Component of scheme Complete Appointment

6 Partner does working drawing design & consents Tristram Reynolds Planned Dec-17 2 Component of scheme Complete Completed

7 Partner obtains subcontractors - up to 10 subcontract
packaged prepared and tendered out to suppliers

Tristram Reynolds Planned Dec-17 2 Component of scheme Complete Completed

8 Clinical teams plan for sequential moves Tristram Reynolds Planned Dec-17 2 Component of scheme Complete Completed

9 Gynae to former SCBU construction Tristram Reynolds Planned Dec-17 8 Component of scheme Complete Completed

10 Paediatric Ward to former Ward 1 Gynae Tristram Reynolds Planned Dec-17 11 Component of scheme Complete Completed

11 Maternity/Delivery  to former Paed Ward Tristram Reynolds Planned Dec-17 14 Component of scheme Complete Completed

12 Paediatric Outpatients to part of former Maternity Tristram Reynolds Planned Dec-17 16 Component of scheme Complete Completed

13 Early Pregnancy Unit to former Paed Outpatients Tristram Reynolds Planned Dec-17 16 Component of scheme Complete Completed

Kirkup recommendations action Plan

THEN TRUST AWAITS FINANCE FOR THE PROJECT, estimated at £10m, WITH SUBSEQUENT STAGES EXPRESSED IN COLUMN F AS MONTHS FROM DATE WHEN FINANCE IS CONFIRMED

Privacy & dignity plus patient safety are both prejudiced bt current arrangements

Need for better relationship between delivery suite and emergency theatre

Recommendation Number

Findings /failures which led to the recommendation

Recommendations

Progress to date

Kirkup date (NOT
RAG rated)ESTATES PROJECT - tracker/Action Plan v4

P
age 113



Late

Completed

On Track

Ref Actions required Responsible Lead Progress Kirkup date
Completion
date

Expected outcomes/
Benefits KPI/ Measure Evidence/ Output

10

1 Develop a scoping paper to outline proposals for
partnership arrangement

Sue Smith Completed 01 June 2015 Framework within which the
Kirkup recommendations will
be pursued

Complete Document available

2 Identify and contact local potential partner Trusts Jackie Daniel Completed 01 June 2015 Range of potential partners
identified

Complete Responses received

2.1 Preliminary discussion with CEO Central Manchester Jackie Daniel Completed 01 June 2015 Exploration of potential
partnership

Complete Review of contact

2.2 Preliminary discussion with Coventry and Warwick Sue Smith Completed 01 June 2015 Exploration of potential
partnership

Complete Review of contact

2.3 Preliminary discussion with North Tees and Hartlepool Sue Smith Completed 01 June 2015 Exploration of potential
partnership

Complete Review of contact

2.4 Preliminary discussion with CEO/MD Preston David Walker Completed 01 June 2015 Exploration of potential
partnership

Complete Review of contact

3 Joint planning meeting with partner organisation to scope
and agree process

Jackie Daniel Planned 01/09/2015 Shared understanding of
goals and process for
development of partnership

Next steps identified Meeting minutes

4 Joint development of MOU Jackie Daniel Planned 01/12/2015 Clarity of expectations of
partners.

Agreement reached MOU in place

5 Establishment of project structure to lead development of
partnership

Jackie Daniel Planned 01/12/2015 Project established Structure agreed Structure in place

6 Development of project plan TBC Planned 01/01/2016 Partnership work
systematised

Complete Completed

Recommendation Number

PARTNERSHIP DEVELOPMENT - tracker/Action Plan v1

Kirkup date (NOT
RAG rated)

Sep-15

Findings /failures which led to the recommendation Clinical isolation. Need to share best practice between organisations and enhance development of clinicians and teams.

Recommendations
The Trust should seek to forge links with a partner Trust so that both can benefit from opportunities for learning, mentoring, secondment, staff development and sharing
approaches to problems.

To begin Sept 2015

Executive team discussion  and board consultation about scope and nature of potential partnership arrangement

P
age 114



Late
Completed
On Track

Ref Actions required Responsible
Lead

Progress Kirkup date Completion date Expected outcomes/ Benefits KPI/ Measure Evidence/ Output

1

1.1 Update in the June all staff briefing sessions - recap of why the
Investigation's work was so important, update on what we have done since
and how we will keep people updated and involved.

Louise Jones Drafted and ready. N/A 04/06/2015 Ensuring all staff are aware of the
Investigation, the outcomes, the progress to date, the next steps, and
where they can find further information.

Inclusion in the June Staff Briefing.

1.2 Session for project leads focused on communications and engagement to
assist them in producing their own communication and engagement plans
and activities. Also discuss the need for the work streams to develop their
own monthly narrative and key messages - i.e. if people only remember a
few things from what we've said about progress, what are they?

Phil Woodford /
Cath Broderick

Planned for 9 June.
Boardroom booked for 12.30pm - 2pm
before the Sub-Committee

N/A 09/06/2015 Giving the project leads the ideas and tools to be able to produce a
meaningful communications and engagement plan for their own work
streams.

Event takes place.

1.3 Pilot recording of Sub-Committee Meeting Phil Woodford Due to unexpected
sickness, the filming had to be cancelled.
It has been rearranged for the July Sub-
Committee meeting.

N/A 09/06/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings. Pilot recording will
be shared with the public reference group when set up to test whether it
would be a useful tool for those that want to listen to the discussions
that take place at the meeting.

Recording to take place and shared with
public reference group for feedback.

1.4 Share agreed key messages from Sub-Committee Meeting Phil Woodford N/A 10/06/2015 Ensure all members of the Sub-Committee agree and understand the key
messages taken from the meeting

All Sub-Committee members
receive an electronic copy of the key
messages from the meeting.

1.5 Upload Sub-Committee papers and any relevant presentations to the Trust
website

Louise Jones N/A 11/06/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

1.6 Produce one page review of progress from Single Version
Report

Louise Jones N/A 23/06/2015 Allowing the public to access an overview of progress made with links to
where the full information is available if they wish to look at it.

One page review of progress drafted and
approved.

1.7 Upload one page review of progress and Single Version Report to the Trust
intranet

Louise Jones N/A 24/06/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

1.8 Stakeholder letter to be issued to key stakeholders (identified in the
accompanying plan) to update from the Sub-Committee meeting - progress
to date, next steps, how the Trust will keep people informed, and directing
people to more information. A copy of the Single Version Report will also be
attached for information.

Louise Jones N/A 24/06/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Letter sent to identified stakeholders.

1.9 Press release to be issued to update from the
Sub-Committee meeting - progress to date, next steps, how the Trust will
keep people informed, and directing people to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 24/06/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Press release issued and any subsequent
online, print and broadcast coverage.

1.10 Schedule tweets on Twitter to inform followers that the Sub-Committee
and update are now available on the Trust website. Tweets to  include
references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 24/06/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Tweets scheduled and posted as appropriate

1.11 Schedule small number of posts on Facebook to inform followers that the
Sub-Committee and update are now available on the Trust website. Posts
to  include references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 24/06/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Facebook posts scheduled and posted as
appropriate

1.12 Update in the July Team Brief for
managers and supervisors

Louise Jones N/A 25/06/2015 Ensuring managers and supervisors are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Inclusion in the July Team Brief
which is then cascaded down to teams across
the Trust.

1.13 Mention of any progress to date in the Friday Message Phil Woodford N/A 26/06/2015 Allowing staff and others to hear updates directly from the Chief
Executive and where appropriate, her thoughts on the next steps and
actions to date.

Inclusion in the Friday Message on 30 May
2015.

1.14 Weekly News article with an update from the
Sub-Committee meeting and directing staff to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 30/06/2015 Ensuring staff are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Article appears in Weekly News
on 30 June 2015.

1.15 Create and finalise a plan for monthly staff drop in sessions so they can
receive an update on progress and ask and questions. To be run by a
member of Divisional / project staff and a member of the Communications
team.

Louise Jones Still in planning stages. Awaiting
decision on who should lead the sessions
so dates can be planned.

N/A 30/06/2015 Ensuring staff are given the opportunity to receive a face to face
briefing each month and ask any questions they may have.

Establishment of monthly staff drop in
sessions.

Communication and Engagement Plan

Kirkup date (NOT
RAG rated)

June Communication Plan

P
age 115



1.16 Produce a 'Plain English' approved report writing guidance document for
Project Leads to use when writing any updates for the KRIG or Sub-
Committee.

Louise Jones Draft has been produced. Awaiting
feedback and comments before
distribution.

N/A 30/06/2015 Ensuring that everyone can clearly understand the information we are
sharing in regards to improvements made and progress against
recommendations.

Production of guidance document and
distribution to project leads.

2

2.1 Update article in the  Trust's Foundation Trust Members' newsletter - New
Horizons

Louise Jones Date for submission changed to 31 July-
needs to go through KRIG to amend

N/A 03/07/2015 Ensuring members are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Article appearing in the July/August edition
of New Horizons.

2.2 Share agreed key messages from Sub-Committee Meeting Phil Woodford N/A 13/07/2015 Ensure all members of the Sub-Committee agree and understand the key
messages taken from the meeting

All Sub-Committee members
receive an electronic copy of the key
messages from the meeting.

2.3 Upload Sub-Committee papers and any relevant presentations to the Trust
website

Louise Jones N/A 14/07/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

2.4 Update in the August Team Brief for managers and supervisors Louise Jones N/A 27/07/2015 Ensuring managers and supervisors are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Inclusion in the August Team Brief
which is then cascaded down to teams across
the Trust.

2.5 Produce one page review of progress from Single Version
Report

Louise Jones N/A 28/07/2015 Allowing the public to access an overview of progress made with links to
where the full information is available if they wish to look at it.

One page review of progress drafted and
approved.

2.6 Upload one page review of progress and Single Version Report to the Trust
intranet

Louise Jones N/A 29/07/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

2.7 Stakeholder letter to be issued to key stakeholders (identified in the
accompanying plan) to update from the Sub-Committee meeting - progress
to date, next steps, how the Trust will keep people informed, and directing
people to more information. A copy of the Single Version Report will also be
attached for information.

Louise Jones N/A 29/07/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Letter sent to identified stakeholders.

2.8 Press release to be issued to update from the
Sub-Committee meeting - progress to date, next steps, how the Trust will
keep people informed, and directing people to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 29/07/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Press release issued and any subsequent
online, print and broadcast coverage.

2.9 Schedule tweets on Twitter to inform followers that the Sub-Committee
and update are now available on the Trust website. Tweets to  include
references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 29/07/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Tweets scheduled and posted as appropriate

2.10 Schedule small number of posts on Facebook to inform followers that the
Sub-Committee and update are now available on the Trust website. Posts
to  include references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 29/07/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Facebook posts scheduled and posted as
appropriate

2.11 Mention of any progress to date in the Friday Message Phil Woodford N/A 31/07/2015 Allowing staff and others to hear updates directly from the Chief
Executive and where appropriate, her thoughts on the next steps and
actions to date.

Inclusion in the Friday Message on 31 July
2015.

2.12 Create a plan for attendance and display at the Annual Members' Meeting
in September.

Louise Jones N/A 31/07/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about progress and
improvements made

Attendance at the Member's Meeting on 17
September.

2.13 Weekly News article with an update from the
Sub-Committee meeting and directing staff to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 04/08/2015 Ensuring staff are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Article appears in Weekly News
on 4 August 2015.

2.14 Monthly staff drop in session Louise Jones /
Division

N/A

TBC

Ensuring staff are given the opportunity to receive a face to face
briefing each month and ask any questions they may have.

Monthly staff drop in session takes place.

3

3.1 Share agreed key messages from Sub-Committee Meeting Phil Woodford N/A 06/08/2015 Ensure all members of the Sub-Committee agree and understand the key
messages taken from the meeting

All Sub-Committee members
receive an electronic copy of the key
messages from the meeting.

3.2 Upload Sub-Committee papers and any relevant presentations to the Trust
website

Louise Jones N/A 09/08/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

3.3 Produce one page review of progress from Single Version
Report

Louise Jones N/A 28/07/2015 Allowing the public to access an overview of progress made with links to
where the full information is available if they wish to look at it.

One page review of progress drafted and
approved.

3.4 Upload one page review of progress and Single Version Report to the Trust
intranet

Louise Jones N/A 26/08/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

3.5 Stakeholder letter to be issued to key stakeholders (identified in the
accompanying plan) to update from the Sub-Committee meeting - progress
to date, next steps, how the Trust will keep people informed, and directing
people to more information. A copy of the Single Version Report will also be
attached for information.

Louise Jones N/A 26/08/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Letter sent to identified stakeholders.

August Communication Plan

July Communication Plan

P
age 116



3.6 Press release to be issued to update from the
Sub-Committee meeting - progress to date, next steps, how the Trust will
keep people informed, and directing people to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 26/08/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Press release issued and any subsequent
online, print and broadcast coverage.

3.7 Schedule tweets on Twitter to inform followers that the Sub-Committee
and update are now available on the Trust website. Tweets to  include
references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 26/08/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Tweets scheduled and posted as appropriate

3.8 Schedule small number of posts on Facebook to inform followers that the
Sub-Committee and update are now available on the Trust website. Posts
to  include references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 26/08/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Facebook posts scheduled and posted as
appropriate

3.9 Update in the September all staff briefing sessions - update on what we
have done since and how we will continue keep people updated and
involved.

Louise Jones N/A 26/08/2015 Ensuring all staff are aware of the Investigation, the outcomes, the
progress to date, the next steps, and where they can find further
information.

Inclusion in the September Staff Briefing.

3.10 Mention of any progress to date in the Friday Message Phil Woodford N/A 28/08/2015 Allowing staff and others to hear updates directly from the Chief
Executive and where appropriate, her thoughts on the next steps and
actions to date.

Inclusion in the Friday Message on 28 August
2015.

3.11 Case study focused on Listening and involving service users. To focus on:
what was the problem, what have we done, what is still to do, and a
personal quote/story of how it has had a positive effect on someone/a
group. Will be sent as a press release and posted on the website.

Louise Jones N/A 28/08/2015 Helps to keep the public and staff confidence in work that is ongoing and
what the actual impact of making the changes are for service users and
staff.

Case study produced, sent out via press
release and posted on website.

3.12 Weekly News article with an update from the
Sub-Committee meeting and directing staff to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 31/08/2015 Ensuring staff are aware of the latest progress against the
recommendations and are aware where to go for further information

Article appears in Weekly News
on 31 August 2015.

3.13 Update in the September Team Brief for managers and supervisors Louise Jones N/A 31/08/2015 Ensuring managers and supervisors are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Inclusion in the September Team Brief which
is then cascaded down to teams across the
Trust.

3.14 Confirm attendees and materials for display at Annual Members'
meeting

Louise Jones N/A 31/08/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about progress and
improvements made

Attendance at the Members' Meeting on 17
September.

3.15 Monthly staff drop in session Louise Jones /
Division

N/A TBC Ensuring staff are given the opportunity to receive a face to face briefing
each month and ask any questions they may have.

Monthly staff drop in session takes place.

4

4.1 Share agreed key messages from Sub-Committee Meeting Phil Woodford N/A 07/09/2015 Ensure all members of the Sub-Committee agree and understand the key
messages taken from the meeting

All Sub-Committee members
receive an electronic copy of the key
messages from the meeting.

4.2 Upload Sub-Committee papers and any relevant presentations to the Trust
website

Louise Jones N/A 07/09/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

4.3 Produce one page review of progress from Single Version
Report

Louise Jones N/A 28/07/2015 Allowing the public to access an overview of progress made with links to
where the full information is available if they wish to look at it.

One page review of progress drafted and
approved.

4.4 Stand at the Trust's Annual General Meeting (17 September 2015). Stand to
include display to show progress, improvements, and work still to do.
Ideally have clinical staff on hand to  answer any specific public questions.

Louise Jones N/A 17/09/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about progress and
improvements made

Attendance at the Members' Meeting on 17
September.

4.5 Update in the October Team Brief for managers and supervisors Louise Jones N/A 28/09/2015 Ensuring managers and supervisors are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Inclusion in the October Team Brief
which is then cascaded down to teams across
the Trust.

4.6 Upload one page review of progress and Single Version Report to the Trust
intranet

Louise Jones N/A 30/09/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

4.7 Stakeholder letter to be issued to key stakeholders (identified in the
accompanying plan) to update from the Sub-Committee meeting - progress
to date, next steps, how the Trust will keep people informed, and directing
people to more information. A copy of the Single Version Report will also be
attached for information.

Louise Jones N/A 30/09/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Letter sent to identified stakeholders.

4.8 Press release to be issued to update from the
Sub-Committee meeting - progress to date, next steps, how the Trust will
keep people informed, and directing people to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 30/09/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Press release issued and any subsequent
online, print and broadcast coverage.

4.9 Schedule tweets on Twitter to inform followers that the Sub-Committee
and update are now available on the Trust website. Tweets to  include
references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 30/09/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Tweets scheduled and posted as appropriate

4.10 Schedule small number of posts on Facebook to inform followers that the
Sub-Committee and update are now available on the Trust website. Posts
to  include references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 30/09/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Facebook posts scheduled and posted as
appropriate

September Communication Plan

P
age 117



4.11 Update article in the  Trust's Foundation Trust Members' newsletter - New
Horizons

Louise Jones N/A 30/09/2015 Ensuring members are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Article appearing in the September/October
edition of New Horizons.

4.12 Create plan and engage with relevant people to organise and facilitate an
open day at FGH for the public to come in and talk to staff about the
improvements, and see and comment on plans for the new maternity unit.
To take place at some point in late November/early December to coincide
with recommendation timescales.

Louise Jones N/A 30/09/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about progress, and allows the
public to get involved, aske questions and have their say on plans for the
future.

Plan produced.

4.13 Mention of any progress to date in the Friday Message Phil Woodford N/A 02/10/2015 Allowing staff and others to hear updates directly from the Chief
Executive and where appropriate, her thoughts on the next steps and
actions to date.

Inclusion in the Friday Message on 2 October
2015.

4.14 Weekly News article with an update from the
Sub-Committee meeting and directing staff to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 06/10/2015 Ensuring staff are aware of the latest progress against the
recommendations and are aware where to go for further information

Article appears in Weekly News
on 6 October 2015.

4.15 Monthly staff drop in session Louise Jones /
Division

N/A TBC Ensuring staff are given the opportunity to receive a face to face
briefing each month and ask any questions they may have.

Monthly staff drop in
session takes place.

5

5.1 Share agreed key messages from Sub-Committee Meeting Phil Woodford N/A 11/10/2015 Ensure all members of the Sub-Committee agree and understand the key
messages taken from the meeting

All Sub-Committee members
receive an electronic copy of the key
messages from the meeting.

5.2 Upload Sub-Committee papers and any relevant presentations to the Trust
website

Louise Jones N/A 12/10/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

5.3 Update in the November Team Brief for managers and supervisors Louise Jones N/A 26/10/2015 Ensuring managers and supervisors are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Inclusion in the November Team Brief which
is then cascaded down to teams across the
Trust.

5.4 Produce one page review of progress from Single Version
Report

Louise Jones N/A 27/10/2015 Allowing the public to access an overview of progress made with links to
where the full information is available if they wish to look at it.

One page review of progress drafted and
approved.

5.5 Upload one page review of progress and Single Version Report to the Trust
intranet

Louise Jones N/A 28/10/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

5.6 Stakeholder letter to be issued to key stakeholders (identified in the
accompanying plan) to update from the Sub-Committee meeting - progress
to date, next steps, how the Trust will keep people informed, and directing
people to more information. A copy of the Single Version Report will also be
attached for information.

Louise Jones N/A 28/10/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Letter sent to identified stakeholders.

5.7 Press release to be issued to update from the
Sub-Committee meeting - progress to date, next steps, how the Trust will
keep people informed, and directing people to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 28/10/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Press release issued and any subsequent
online, print and broadcast coverage.

5.8 Schedule tweets on Twitter to inform followers that the Sub-Committee
and update are now available on the Trust website. Tweets to  include
references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 28/10/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Tweets scheduled and posted as appropriate

5.9 Schedule small number of posts on Facebook to inform followers that the
Sub-Committee and update are now available on the Trust website. Posts
to  include references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 28/10/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Facebook posts scheduled and posted as
appropriate

5.10 Mention of any progress to date in the Friday Message Phil Woodford N/A 30/10/2015 Allowing staff and others to hear updates directly from the Chief
Executive and where appropriate, her thoughts on the next steps and
actions to date.

Inclusion in the Friday Message on 30
October 2015.

5.11 Two case studies focused on Culture Change and Incident Reporting. To
focus on: what was the problem, what have we done, what is still to do,
and a personal quote/story of how it has had a positive effect on
someone/a group. Will be sent as a press release and posted on the
website.

Louise Jones N/A 30/10/2015 Helps to keep the public and staff confidence in work that is ongoing and
what the actual impact of making the changes are for service users and
staff.

Case study produced, sent out via press
release and posted on website.

5.12 Finalise plan and confirm details for the open day at FGH. Louise Jones N/A 31/10/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about progress, and allows the
public to get involved, aske questions and have their say on plans for the
future.

Plan produced.

5.13 Weekly News article with an update from the
Sub-Committee meeting and directing staff to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 03/11/2015 Ensuring staff are aware of the latest progress against the
recommendations and are aware where to go for further information

Article appears in Weekly News
on 3 November 2015.

5.14 Monthly staff drop in session Louise Jones /
Division

N/A TBC Ensuring staff are given the opportunity to receive a face to face
briefing each month and ask any questions they may have.

Monthly staff drop in session takes place.

6 November Communication Plan

October Communication Plan

P
age 118



6.1 Update in the November all staff briefing sessions - update on what we
have done since and how we will continue keep people updated and
involved.

Louise Jones N/A 05/11/2015 Ensuring all staff are aware of the Investigation, the outcomes, the
progress to date, the next steps, and where they can find further
information.

Inclusion in the November Staff Briefing.

6.2 Share agreed key messages from Sub-Committee Meeting Phil Woodford N/A 08/11/2015 Ensure all members of the Sub-Committee agree and understand the key
messages taken from the meeting

All Sub-Committee members
receive an electronic copy of the key
messages from the meeting.

6.3 Upload Sub-Committee papers and any relevant presentations to the Trust
website

Louise Jones N/A 09/11/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

6.4 Produce one page review of progress from Single Version
Report

Louise Jones N/A 24/11/2015 Allowing the public to access an overview of progress made with links to
where the full information is available if they wish to look at it.

One page review of progress drafted and
approved.

6.5 Upload one page review of progress and Single Version Report to the Trust
intranet

Louise Jones N/A 25/11/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

6.6 Stakeholder letter to be issued to key stakeholders (identified in the
accompanying plan) to update from the Sub-Committee meeting - progress
to date, next steps, how the Trust will keep people informed, and directing
people to more information. A copy of the Single Version Report will also be
attached for information.

Louise Jones N/A 25/11/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Letter sent to identified stakeholders.

6.7 Press release to be issued to update from the
Sub-Committee meeting - progress to date, next steps, how the Trust will
keep people informed, and directing people to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 25/11/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Press release issued and any subsequent
online, print and broadcast coverage.

6.8 Schedule tweets on Twitter to inform followers that the Sub-Committee
and update are now available on the Trust website. Tweets to  include
references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 25/11/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Tweets scheduled and posted as appropriate

6.9 Schedule small number of posts on Facebook to inform followers that the
Sub-Committee and update are now available on the Trust website. Posts
to  include references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 25/11/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Facebook posts scheduled and posted as
appropriate

6.10 Update in the December Team Brief for managers and supervisors Louise Jones N/A 26/11/2015 Ensuring managers and supervisors are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Inclusion in the December Team Brief which
is then cascaded down to teams across the
Trust.

6.11 Mention of any progress to date in the Friday Message Phil Woodford N/A 27/11/2015 Allowing staff and others to hear updates directly from the Chief
Executive and where appropriate, her thoughts on the next steps and
actions to date.

Inclusion in the Friday Message on 27
November 2015.

6.12 Weekly News article with an update from the
Sub-Committee meeting and directing staff to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 01/12/2015 Ensuring staff are aware of the latest progress against the
recommendations and are aware where to go for further information

Article appears in Weekly News
on 1 December 2015.

6.13 Monthly staff drop in session Louise Jones /
Division

N/A TBC Ensuring staff are given the opportunity to receive a face to face
briefing each month and ask any questions they may have.

Monthly staff drop in session takes place.

7

7.1 Share agreed key messages from Sub-Committee Meeting Phil Woodford N/A 07/12/2015 Ensure all members of the Sub-Committee agree and understand the key
messages taken from the meeting

All Sub-Committee members
receive an electronic copy of the key

7.2 Upload Sub-Committee papers and any relevant presentations to the Trust
website

Louise Jones N/A 09/12/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

7.3 Produce one page review of progress from Single Version
Report

Louise Jones N/A 15/12/2015 Allowing the public to access an overview of progress made with links to
where the full information is available if they wish to look at it.

One page review of progress drafted and
approved.

7.4 Upload one page review of progress and Single Version Report to the Trust
intranet

Louise Jones N/A 16/12/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

7.5 Stakeholder letter to be issued to key stakeholders (identified in the
accompanying plan) to update from the Sub-Committee meeting - progress
to date, next steps, how the Trust will keep people informed, and directing
people to more information. A copy of the Single Version Report will also be
attached for information.

Louise Jones N/A 16/12/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Letter sent to identified stakeholders.

7.6 Press release to be issued to update from the
Sub-Committee meeting - progress to date, next steps, how the Trust will
keep people informed, and directing people to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 16/12/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Press release issued and any subsequent
online, print and broadcast coverage.

7.7 Schedule tweets on Twitter to inform followers that the Sub-Committee
and update are now available on the Trust website. Tweets to  include
references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 16/12/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Tweets scheduled and posted as appropriate

December Communication Plan

P
age 119



7.8 Schedule small number of posts on Facebook to inform followers that the
Sub-Committee and update are now available on the Trust website. Posts
to  include references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 16/12/2015 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Facebook posts scheduled and posted as
appropriate

7.9 Mention of any progress to date in the Friday Message Phil Woodford N/A 18/12/2015 Allowing staff and others to hear updates directly from the Chief
Executive and where appropriate, her thoughts on the next steps and
actions to date.

Inclusion in the Friday Message on 18
December 2015.

7.10 Update article in the  Trust's Foundation Trust Members' newsletter - New
Horizons

Louise Jones N/A 20/12/2015 Ensuring members are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Article appearing in the December/January
edition of New Horizons.

7.11 Weekly News article with an update from the
Sub-Committee meeting and directing staff to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 21/12/2015 Ensuring staff are aware of the latest progress against the
recommendations and are aware where to go for further information

Article appears in Weekly News
on 21 December 2015.

7.12 Two case studies focused on Staffing and Leadership. To focus on: what was
the problem, what have we done, what is still to do, and a personal
quote/story of how it has had a positive effect on someone/a group. Will be
sent as a press release and posted on the website.

Louise Jones N/A 31/12/2015 Helps to keep the public and staff confidence in work that is ongoing and
what the actual impact of making the changes are for service users and
staff.

Case study produced, sent out via press
release and posted on website.

7.13 Update in the January Team Brief for managers and supervisors Louise Jones N/A TBC (dates for
sessions not yet
confirmed)

Ensuring managers and supervisors are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Inclusion in the January Team Brief
which is then cascaded down to teams across
the Trust.

7.14 Monthly staff drop in session Louise Jones /
Division

N/A TBC Ensuring staff are given the opportunity to receive a face to face
briefing each month and ask any questions they may have.

Monthly staff drop in session takes place.

8

8.1 Share agreed key messages from Sub-Committee Meeting Phil Woodford N/A 11/01/2016 Ensure all members of the Sub-Committee agree and understand the key
messages taken from the meeting

All Sub-Committee members
receive an electronic copy of the key
messages from the meeting.

8.2 Upload Sub-Committee papers and any relevant presentations to the Trust
website

Louise Jones N/A 12/01/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

8.3 Produce one page review of progress from Single Version
Report

Louise Jones N/A 26/01/2016 Allowing the public to access an overview of progress made with links to
where the full information is available if they wish to look at it.

One page review of progress drafted and
approved.

8.4 Upload one page review of progress and Single Version Report to the Trust
intranet

Louise Jones N/A 27/01/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

8.5 Stakeholder letter to be issued to key stakeholders (identified in the
accompanying plan) to update from the Sub-Committee meeting - progress
to date, next steps, how the Trust will keep people informed, and directing
people to more information. A copy of the Single Version Report will also be
attached for information.

Louise Jones N/A 27/01/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Letter sent to identified stakeholders.

8.6 Press release to be issued to update from the
Sub-Committee meeting - progress to date, next steps, how the Trust will
keep people informed, and directing people to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 27/01/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Press release issued and any subsequent
online, print and broadcast coverage.

8.7 Schedule tweets on Twitter to inform followers that the Sub-Committee
and update are now available on the Trust website. Tweets to  include
references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 27/01/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Tweets scheduled and posted as appropriate

8.8 Schedule small number of posts on Facebook to inform followers that the
Sub-Committee and update are now available on the Trust website. Posts
to  include references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 27/01/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Facebook posts scheduled and posted as
appropriate

8.9 Mention of any progress to date in the Friday Message Phil Woodford N/A 29/01/2016 Allowing staff and others to hear updates directly from the Chief
Executive and where appropriate, her thoughts on the next steps and
actions to date.

Inclusion in the Friday Message on 29
January 2016.

8.10 Weekly News article with an update from the
Sub-Committee meeting and directing staff to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 02/02/2016 Ensuring staff are aware of the latest progress against the
recommendations and are aware where to go for further information

Article appears in Weekly News
on 2 February 2016.

8.11 Update in the February Team Brief for managers and supervisors Louise Jones N/A TBC (dates for
sessions not yet
confirmed)

Ensuring managers and supervisors are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Inclusion in the February Team Brief
which is then cascaded down to teams across
the Trust.

8.12 Monthly staff drop in session Louise Jones /
Division

N/A TBC Ensuring staff are given the opportunity to receive a face to face
briefing each month and ask any questions they may have.

Monthly staff drop in session takes place.

9

January Communication Plan

February Communication Plan

P
age 120



9.1 Share agreed key messages from Sub-Committee Meeting Phil Woodford N/A 08/02/2016 Ensure all members of the Sub-Committee agree and understand the key
messages taken from the meeting

All Sub-Committee members
receive an electronic copy of the key
messages from the meeting.

9.2 Upload Sub-Committee papers and any relevant presentations to the Trust
website

Louise Jones N/A 09/02/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

9.3 Produce one page review of progress from Single Version
Report

Louise Jones N/A 23/02/2016 Allowing the public to access an overview of progress made with links to
where the full information is available if they wish to look at it.

One page review of progress drafted and
approved.

9.4 Upload one page review of progress and Single Version Report to the Trust
intranet

Louise Jones N/A 24/02/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

9.5 Stakeholder letter to be issued to key stakeholders (identified in the
accompanying plan) to update from the Sub-Committee meeting - progress
to date, next steps, how the Trust will keep people informed, and directing
people to more information. A copy of the Single Version Report will also be
attached for information.

Louise Jones N/A 24/02/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Letter sent to identified stakeholders.

9.6 Press release to be issued to update from the
Sub-Committee meeting - progress to date, next steps, how the Trust will
keep people informed, and directing people to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 24/02/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Press release issued and any subsequent
online, print and broadcast coverage.

9.7 Schedule tweets on Twitter to inform followers that the Sub-Committee
and update are now available on the Trust website. Tweets to  include
references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 24/02/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Tweets scheduled and posted as appropriate

9.8 Schedule small number of posts on Facebook to inform followers that the
Sub-Committee and update are now available on the Trust website. Posts
to  include references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 24/02/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Facebook posts scheduled and posted as
appropriate

9.9 Mention of any progress to date in the Friday Message Phil Woodford N/A 26/02/2016 Allowing staff and others to hear updates directly from the Chief
Executive and where appropriate, her thoughts on the next steps and
actions to date.

Inclusion in the Friday Message on 26
February 2016.

9.10 Case study focused on Openness and Transparency. To focus on: what was
the problem, what have we done, what is still to do, and a personal
quote/story of how it has had a positive effect on someone/a group. Will be
sent as a press release and posted on the website.

Louise Jones N/A 26/02/2016 Helps to keep the public and staff confidence in work that is ongoing and
what the actual impact of making the changes are for service users and
staff.

Case study produced, sent out via press
release and posted on website.

9.11 Weekly News article with an update from the
Sub-Committee meeting and directing staff to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 01/03/2016 Ensuring staff are aware of the latest progress against the
recommendations and are aware where to go for further information

Article appears in Weekly News
on 1 March 2016.

9.12 Update in the March Team Brief for managers and supervisors Louise Jones N/A TBC (dates for
sessions not yet
confirmed)

Ensuring managers and supervisors are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Inclusion in the March Team Brief
which is then cascaded down to teams across
the Trust.

9.13 Monthly staff drop in session Louise Jones /
Division

N/A TBC Ensuring staff are given the opportunity to receive a face to face
briefing each month and ask any questions they may have.

Monthly staff drop in session takes place.

10

10.1 Share agreed key messages from Sub-Committee Meeting Phil Woodford N/A 07/03/2016 Ensure all members of the Sub-Committee agree and understand the key
messages taken from the meeting

All Sub-Committee members
receive an electronic copy of the key
messages from the meeting.

10.2 Upload Sub-Committee papers and any relevant presentations to the Trust
website

Louise Jones N/A 08/03/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

10.3 Update article in the  Trust's Foundation Trust Members' newsletter - New
Horizons

Louise Jones N/A 20/03/2016 Ensuring members are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Article appearing in the March/April edition
of New Horizons.

10.4 Case study focused on Openness and Transparency. To focus on: what was
the problem, what have we done, what is still to do, and a personal
quote/story of how it has had a positive effect on someone/a group. Will be
sent as a press release and posted on the website.

Louise Jones N/A 26/02/2016 Helps to keep the public and staff confidence in work that is ongoing and
what the actual impact of making the changes are for service users and
staff.

Case study produced, sent out via press
release and posted on website.

10.5 Produce one page review of progress from Single Version
Report

Louise Jones N/A 29/03/2016 Allowing the public to access an overview of progress made with links to
where the full information is available if they wish to look at it.

One page review of progress drafted and
approved.

10.6 Upload one page review of progress and Single Version Report to the Trust
intranet

Louise Jones N/A 30/03/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Papers uploaded to website

March Communication Plan

P
age 121



10.7 Stakeholder letter to be issued to key stakeholders (identified in the
accompanying plan) to update from the Sub-Committee meeting - progress
to date, next steps, how the Trust will keep people informed, and directing
people to more information. A copy of the Single Version Report will also be
attached for information.

Louise Jones N/A 30/03/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Letter sent to identified stakeholders.

10.8 Press release to be issued to update from the
Sub-Committee meeting - progress to date, next steps, how the Trust will
keep people informed, and directing people to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 30/03/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Press release issued and any subsequent
online, print and broadcast coverage.

10.9 Schedule tweets on Twitter to inform followers that the Sub-Committee
and update are now available on the Trust website. Tweets to  include
references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 30/03/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Tweets scheduled and posted as appropriate

10.10 Schedule small number of posts on Facebook to inform followers that the
Sub-Committee and update are now available on the Trust website. Posts
to  include references to key progress where appropriate.

Louise Jones N/A 30/03/2016 Allowing the Trust to be open and honest about items that are
presented/discussed at the Sub-Committee meetings

Facebook posts scheduled and posted as
appropriate

10.11 Mention of any progress to date in the Friday Message Phil Woodford N/A 01/04/2016 Allowing staff and others to hear updates directly from the Chief
Executive and where appropriate, her thoughts on the next steps and
actions to date.

Inclusion in the Friday Message on 1 April
2016.

10.12 Weekly News article with an update from the
Sub-Committee meeting and directing staff to more information.

Louise Jones N/A 05/04/2016 Ensuring staff are aware of the latest progress against the
recommendations and are aware where to go for further information

Article appears in Weekly News
on 5 April 2016.

10.13 Update in the April Team Brief for managers and supervisors Louise Jones N/A TBC (dates for
sessions not yet
confirmed)

Ensuring managers and supervisors are aware of the latest
progress against the recommendations and are aware where to go for
further information

Inclusion in the April Team Brief
which is then cascaded down to teams across
the Trust.

P
age 122



Project Risk and Issue Register
Project Name: 0
Project Manager: 0
Executive Sponsor: 0

IMPORTANT NOTE:

Expected level of
impact should risk

occur

Likelihood of risk
happening

Priority rating /
overall risk
assessment

Date actions to be
completed by

Date actions
completed

Expected level of
impact should risk

occur

Likelihood of risk
happening

Priority rating /
overall risk
assessment

Estimated impact on
ability to deliver

project successfully

Estimated likelihood -
canvas opinion from

others

Automatically
calculated

Estimated impact on
ability to deliver

project successfully

Estimated likelihood -
canvas opinion from

others

Automatically
calculated

3 3 9 01/06/2015 01/05/2015 3 2 6

3 3 9 01/06/2015 01/06/2015 2 2 4

3 3 9 30/06/2015 3 2 6

4 3 12 31/05/2015 31/05/2015 4 2 8

4 3 12 30/06/2015 4 2 8

3 2 6 30/06/2015 08/06/2015 2 1 2

4 3 12 30/06/2015 4 1 4

4 4 16 30/06/2015 4 2 8

3 4 12 30/06/2015 3 2 6

3 3 9 30/06/2015 3 2 6

4 4 16 4 1 4

3 3 9 3 2 6

3 3 9 3 2 6

3 3 9 31/05/2015 31/05/2015 3 1 3

Date issue occurred Expected impact on
project delivery Date issue addressed

Enter in format
DD/MM/YYYY

Estimated impact on
ability to deliver

project successfully

Enter in format
DD/MM/YYYY

An issue  is something which has already happened prior to the start of the project, or something that occurs during the course of the project, which has had an impact on the ability of the project to meet its key objectives

Original risk rating before taking mitigating actions

Date Risk & Issue Register Last
Updated  [DD/MM/YYYY]:

04/06/2015

A risk is something which may happen during the course of the project, and if it does it will have an impact the ability of the project to meet its key objectives as detailed on the 'Project Overview' sheet

Expected risk rating after taking mitigating actions

Risk (something that has not yet occurred) Risk to be escalated to the Programme
Board (or equivalent body)? Mitigating actions

1. Failure to meet the expectations of families
Yes

Family member invited onto the Morecambe Bay Investigation Sub
Committee.  Cath Broderick appointed as engagement officer to work
with index families and wider service user groups

Description of the identified risk to delivery of
the project

Must be done for all risks scoring 8 or
above (ORANGE)

Actions to be taken/being taken to reduce the impact of the
risk and/or likelihood of it occurring Enter in format DD/MM/YYYY

3. Failure to interpret and understand the
improvements and outcomes required.

Yes

Recommendations will be scoped as part of the individual projects and
actions will be identified to meet recommendations.  Action plans will
be developed for each project group and tested with stakeholders to
ensure agreement.  Action plans will be agreed with KRIG/ sub
committee and QSG/ CQC etc.

2. Failure to meet the expectations of stakeholders

4. Insufficient capacity and resource to  support
project structures and arrangements

Yes
Agree a resource plan to increase competence and capacity at senior
level. Appoint to posts identified as being required to deliver project
objectives.

Sub committee established with representatives from stakeholders.
CCG and Monitor representatives members of Kirkup Implementation
Group.  Project updates provided to the Quality Surveillance Group
monthly.  CQC will review Morecambe Bay Investigation
Recommendation Action plans as part of inspections

Yes

5. Insufficient resource to implement necessary
initiatives and improvements

Yes
Each project team to identify resource requirements as part of project
planning.  Tina Turner to develop resource plan and submit for
approval.

6. Failure to gain support from staff in the Trust No
Communication plan to be established and all staff to be regularly
communicated with throughout the project lifespan

9. Decisions made by the Trust regarding
amendments to job descriptions may not align to
subsequent national recommendations.

Yes
Feed agreed amendments to national team via QSG; receive national
updates via QSG.

7. Inability  to provide assurance and evidence of the
improvements in place and the outcomes achieved

Yes
Assurance process to be established as part of the programme work.
Assurance process to be agreed through KRIG/ Sub Committee

8. Inability to meet short deadlines of some
recommendations

Yes

For recommendations with a short deadline April and June the ongoing
work which has taken place has been identified.  Staff who have the
necessary skills to deliver on the recommendations will be identified
and will require release from their normal workload.

Issue (a risk becomes an issue when it has
occurred) Mitigating actions

Description of the issue that has occurred
which is expected to impact on project

delivery.
Actions to be taken/being taken to deal with the issue

Yes

To agree frameworks and linkages to other projects / activity
throughout the Trust to ensure potential conflicts are identified and
acted upon
To review design plans for new facilities at an early enough stage to be
able to bid / apply for sufficient funding to complete work in the
timeframe required

Build contingency into the project plan in order to deal with anticipated
/ known patient flow problems (e.g. outliers on Ward 1 during winter
pressures will prevent closure of that ward and estate development)

14.  Failure to receive appropriate support from
relevant divisional and specialty leads to provide
expert advice

12.  That clinical requirements delay the timing of the
estates work

Yes

To obtain formal agreement of the full plan for redevelopment with
external stakeholders to minimise the risk that funding will not be
provided as work progresses

13.  The estates project is not financed continuously Yes

Obtain executive support and support of clinical directors and DGMs in
order to facilitate access to / time of relevant divisional and specialty
leads as required

Yes

10.  Current Trust work-streams may overlap resulting
in potential conflict or wasted resources

11.  Identified estates costs are inadequate to
complete the work required

Yes

P
age 123



P
age 124



CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 27 July 2015

From: Policy and Scrutiny Team

COMMITTEE BRIEFING REPORT

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report updates the Committee on developments in health scrutiny, the 
Committee’s Work Programme and monitoring of actions not covered 
elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda.

2.0 ISSUES FOR SCRUTINY

The Committee are asked to:

(i) Consider and appoint member champions for each of the four trusts and 
the Clinical Commissioning Group

(ii) To note the arrangements for scrutinising the Better Care Together 
Programme through the Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny 
Committee.

(iii) Review the work programme 

3.0 UPDATES 
Member Champions
3.1 At the Committee meeting on the 4th June the principle of Member Champions 

was discussed and approved. It is proposed that five nominated members from 
the Committee (not Lead Health Members) take the lead on each of the Trusts 
and the CCG:

 North Cumbria Hospitals Trust

 University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay Trust

 Cumbria Partnership Foundation Trust

 North West Ambulance Service

 Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group
This would involve reviewing the board minutes for the organisations attending 
meetings where possible/appropriate and reporting back to the Committee. 

Page 125

Agenda Item 10



3.2 A letter has already been sent to each of these organisations following the 
Development Session on the 18th May, where it was an agreed by all 
participants that there was a need for the Committee to develop closer links 
with health economy partners. One of the proposed ways of achieving this was 
for Members of the Committee to be invited to attend key strategic meetings. 
The Trusts and CCG have been asked to consider which meetings might be 
appropriate for a representative of the Committee to attend. The responses 
received to date are attached at Appendix 1

Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny Committee
3.3 Both the Cumbria Health Scrutiny and Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 

have now agreed that the Joint Cumbria and Lancashire Health Scrutiny 
Committee continue to scrutinise the development and implementation of the 
‘Better Care Together’ Programme. The representatives from this Committee 
are as follows:-

 Representative for South Lakeland District Council
 Mrs D Seward
 Mr D Fletcher
 Mr M Wilson

3.4 The next meeting of the Joint Committee is being arranged for September with 
meetings taking place over the summer between Scrutiny Support Officers and 
the Better Care Together Programme Team to set the Committee’s activity plan 
going forward.

4.0 WORK PROGRAMME 

4.1 The Committee’s work programme is attached at Appendix 2 for information. 

14 July 2015

Appendices

Appendix 1 Response to letter re Committee attendance at key strategic meetings
Appendix 2 Work Programme

Previous Relevant Council or Executive Decisions

None

Background Papers

None

Contact: David Stephens, 
Policy & Scrutiny Project Officer, 
david.stephens@cumbria.gov.uk

Page 126

mailto:david.stephens@cumbria.gov.uk


Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



Work Programme 2015/16

Issue Notes Timeline
Mental Health - Autism 1 Day joint with CYP Board 

T&F 
Autumn

Mental Health - Transition from Children’s to Adults Joint T&F with Children’s.  
Need to prioritise against 
other potential calls on 
resources

No current space in 
work programme – 
would need to be spring 
2016

Mental Health - CAHMS T&F to be undertaken by 
Children’s Scrutiny though 
members of health will be 
able to participate

September

Mental Health – Mental Health Strategy Input included on agenda.  
Potential follow-up half day 
Task and Finish
Awaiting publication of 
Strategy

Spring 2016

Countywide review of Maternity Services Update at June meeting – 
could follow up after 6 
months - CCG

15 December

Together for a Healthier Future/Success Regime Announcement of North 
Cumbria being in the 
Success Regime.  Update 
from regime

15 October meeting

Identified at 
Development Day

Better Care Together Carried out through the 
joint scrutiny with 
Lancashire. Need to 
identify key milestones in 
the BCT programme for 
involvement – Update in 
main report.

Autumn 2015

Appendix 2

P
age 129



Vascular Services Review implementation of 
mitigation. Defer 
consideration of whether 
include in work programme 
until 27 July Meeting

Already Identified

Inequalities and Public Health Outcomes Has been in work 
programme for some 
considerable time.  There 
was Seminar on 9th June – 
has this met the need.

In work programme for 
July to January – if 
decision to proceed 
need to clarify scope 
and timescales.

Kirkup Report Update from NHS 
England/UHMBT at 
committee meeting

27 July meeting

Change to Service – acute stroke Depending on committee 
decision could be 
delegated to lead 
members

No time known

Change to Service – deteriorating pathway Depending on committee 
decision could be 
delegated to lead 
members

No time known

Root cause review of Internal Major Incident in North 
Cumbria

Will report in Summer 15 October meeting

Outcome of CQC Inspection of NCUHT Outcome of inspection 
expected mid-June

15 October meeting

Outcome of CQC Inspection of UHMBT Inspection taking place in 
July

15 October meeting

Health & Well Being Strategy Engagement on emerging 
priorities

15 October meeting

Arising out of 
previous 
work/ongoing 
monitoring

Takeover of NCUHT by Northumbria Has already been 
discussed by health 
scrutiny when first 
proposed 

No timetable

P
age 130


	Agenda
	7 Minutes
	9 Kirkup Report  [10.50 TO 11.30 AM]
	Kirkup Report Appendix 1
	Kirkup Report Appendix 2
	Kirkup Report Appendix 3
	Kirkup Report Appendix 4
	Kirkup Report Appendix 5
	Kirkup Report Appendix 6
	Kirkup Report Appendix 7
	Kirkup Report Appendix 8
	Kirkup Report Appendix 8i
	Kirkup Report Appendix 8ii
	Kirkup Report Appendix 8iii
	Kirkup Report Appendix 8iv
	Kirkup Report Appendix 8v
	Kirkup Report Appendix 8vi
	Kirkup Report Appendix 8vii FINAL

	10 Committee Briefing Report  [11.30 TO 11.40 PM]
	Committee Briefing Appendix 1
	Committee Briefing Appendix 2




